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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(the “Company”) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
including the schedules therein, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in accordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein and submits the same to the stockholders.

Isla Lipana & Co., the Philippine member firm of PwC, the independent auditor appointed by the
shareholders, has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippines
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the shareholders, has expressed its opinion on the
fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

PAUL TAN POH LEE
Chairman of the Board %}

President

FELICID V. RAZON
Vice President/Treasurer

Signed this 24th day of January 2019



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES}
CITY OF MAKATI )

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

. : . Lo APR 11 2018
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, for and in the City of Makati, Philippines, on this

day of April 2019, affiants exhibiting to me their Tax Identification Numbers (TIN) as
follows:

Name Tax Identification Numbers
PAUL TAN POH LEE 438-159-145
ALAN 1. CLAVERIA 127-165-720
FELICIDAD V RAZON 112-942-756

Sppointment Ho W i35 1201%-2020}
OTR #o, 7323104 Janfd, i FiMakatt

TACLE Compliancy Ho. y-0006934
101 Urkan Ave. Cafnpos Rueda 81dg.
degy, Plo Dal Pflar, piakats city



Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsidiaries
Unit 3-B, Country Space 1 Building

133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Saleedo Village

Barangay Bel-Ajr, Makati City

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (the “Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise:

the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017;

* the consolidated statements of income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2018;

* the consolidated statements of total comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2018;

* the consolidated statements of changes in equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018;

* the consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2018; and

*  the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 845 2728, F: +63 (2) 845 2806, www.pwc.com,/ph

Isla Lipana & Go. is the Philippine member firm of the #wG network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwe.com/structure for further detaits.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants in
the Philippines {Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. Asin all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of
whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
aundit of the consalidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit pertains to the assessment of recoverability of investment
properties.
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Isla Lipana & Co.

Key Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Assessment of recoverability of investment
properties

Refer to Note 7 for the details of the Group’s
investment properties and to Note 19.2 (¢) for
the discussion on critical accounting judgment.

This is an area of focus mainly due to the
number of investment properties held by the
Group. The account, which represents 20% of
total assets, is part of the Group’s real estate
business segment.

We addressed the matter through inspection of
significant long and short-term lease contracts.
The inspection procedures included thorough
understanding of the terms and conditions of the
underlying lease contracts as well as the state of
the individual assets to obtain audit evidence on
the sustainability of cash flows to support
recoverability of investment properties. Qur
inspection did not note any cancellation or
potential cancellation of existing lease
agreements.

Additionally, we examined the latest appraisal
report prepared by a third-party appraiser and
noted that the aggregate and individual fair
values of the investment properties are higher
than their respective carrying amounts. Audit
evidence over the reliability of the appraisal
report was obtained through independent
verification of certain fair value assumptions (i.e.
similar market listing in the area) over the
Group’s land properties, which comprised 100%
of the total carrying amount of the account. We
also verified the independence and competency
of the third-party appraiser by examining their
qualifications, experiences, and business
relationship with the Group.

The results of procedures performed and
discussions with management did not note any
indicators of impairment as at December 31,
2018 and 2017,
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-I8 (Definitive Information Statement), and SEC Form 17-A, but do not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS
{Definitive Information Statement), and SEC Form 17-A are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatjon of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of
each entity within the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of each entity within the Group to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions fuay cause an
entity within the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Roderick M. Danao.

CP¥ Cert. No. 88453

P.T.R. No. 0011280, issued on January 8, 2019 at Makati City

SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1585-A, Category A; effective until September 27, 2019
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0009-FR-4; Category A; effective until June 20, 2021

TIN 152-015-078

BIR A.N. 08-000745-042-2018, issued on February 2, 2018; effective until February 1, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until September 30, 2020

Makati City
January 24, 2019



pwcC Isla Lipana & Co.

Statements Required by Rule 68,
Securities Regulation Code (SRC),
As Amended on October 20, 2011

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidjaries
Unit 3-B, Country Space 1 Building

133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village

Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018, on which we have rendered the attached
report dated January 24, 2019. The supplementary information shown in the Schedule of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations effective as at December 31, 2018, Reconciliation of
Retained Earnings for Dividend Declaration, Map of the Group of Companies within which the
Reporting Entity Belongs, and Key Financial Ratios as required by Part I, Section 4 of Rule 68 of the
SRC, and Schedules A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H as required by Part I, Section 6 of Rule 68 of the SRC,
are presented for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not required
parts of the basic consolidated financial statements. Sach supplementary information are the
responsibility of management and have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information have
been prepared in accordance with Parts I and II of Rule 68 of the SRC.

Islj/Hipana & Co.

Rofikrick M, Danao
Pagtmer

CPY Cert. No. 88453

PIR. No. 0011280, issued on January 8, 2019 at Makati City

SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1585-A, Category A; effective until September 27, 2019
SEC AN. (firm) as general auditors 0009-FR-4; Category A; effective until June 20, 2021

TIN 152-015-078

BIR A.N. 08-000745-042-2018, issued on February 2, 2018; effective until February 1, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until September 30, 2020

Makati City
January 24, 2019

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 845 2728, F: +63 (2) 845 2806, www.pwc.com/ph

Isla Lipana & Go. is the Philippine member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers 1o the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwe.com/siructure for further details.



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2018 and 2017

{All amounts in Philippine Peso)

.@curitieﬁi w et HEAD\

=
Notes é%gg S o ion MThhqy
= " grederante Herutl H.‘,..M
ASSETS gmr PR’; ‘Zﬁ W%
Current assets 2}: e e OF B

Cash and cash equivalents 2 k " ,fs@-qeq contenTs 27 029

Receivables, net 3 277,255,220 200, 279 624

Other current assets, net 4 1,514,501 742,995

Total current assets 347/751,872 297,066,548

Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income, net b 35,000,001 -

Available-for-sale financial assets, net 5 - : - 20,000,001

Investment in associates 6 421,739,664 420,435 364
Loan receivables, net of current portion 3 - 37,500,000

Lease receivables, net of current portion 3 28,310,410 29,234 677

Investment properties, net 7 205,288,439 205,801,940

Property and equipment, net 8 98,896 134,690

Qther non-current assets 17 4,140,710 4,140,710

Total non-current assets ’ 694,578,120 717,347,382

Total assetis

1,012,329,892

1,015,313,930

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 9. 14,547 091 8,028,814
Refundabie deposits 7 2,409,883 487,080 -
income tax payable 14 677,714 1,093,310
Total current iabilities 17,634,688 9,608,204
Non-current liability '
Deferred income tax liability 14 1,600,372 1,494,418
Total liabilities 19,235,060 11,103,622
Equity o ]
Share capital 11 73,173,500 73,173,500
Share premium 11 73,203,734 73,203,734
Retained earnings 12 476,686,367 477,212,523
investment revaluation reserve 5 34,422,058 - 12,422,058
Treasury shares 12 (22,622,976) {22,622,978)
634,862,683 620,395,839
Non-controlling interesis 20 358,232,249 383,814,469
Total equity 993,094,932 1,004,210,308

_ Total liabilities and equity

1,012,329,992

1,015,313,830

The notes on pages 1 to 46 are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2018 2017 20186
Revenue and income
Rental income 7,10 22714210 17,988,509 20,451,326
Interest income 2,10 12,209,199 12,466,267 10,628,678
Equity in net earnings of associates 6 10,037,399 8,742,280 10,314,776
Gain on sale of investment properties 7 1,822,001 49,560,165 -
Management fees 10 756,000 1,780,200 1,394,400
Dividend income 8, 10 - - 1,622,168
Others 825,435 693,704 257,219
48,464 244 91,231,525 44,668,567
Operating expenses 13 (31,399,379) (23,577,624) (16,726,590)
Income before income tax 17,084,865 67,653,901 27,941,977
Income tax expense 14 (2,875,899) (12,781,217) (4,182,377)
Net income for the year 14,188,966 54,872,684 23,759,600
Attributable to: _
Equity holders of the parent 15 5,247,186 44,796,093 13,568,566
Non-controlling interests 8,941,780 10,076,591 10,191,034
14,188,966 54,872,684 23,759,600
Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the parent 15 0.091 0.775 0.235

The notes on pages 1 to 46 are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Total Comprehensive Income
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Note 2018 2017 2016
Net income for the year 14,188,966 54,872,684 23,759,600
Other comprehensive income
item that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Unrealized fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income 5 15,000,000 - -
ltem that may be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Unrealized fair value gain on available-for-sale
financial assets 5 - 500,000 3,700,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 20,188,966 55372684 27,459,600
Attributabie to:
Equity holders of the parent 20,247,186 45,296,093 17,268,566
Nen-controfling interest 8,941,780 10,076,581 10,191,034
29,188,966 55,372,684 27,459,600

The notes on pages 1 to 46 are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2018 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income tax 17,064,865 67,653,901 27,941,977
Adjustments for:
Provision for impairment losses - net 3,4, 13 497,115 660,748 135,863
Depreciation and amortization 7.8,13 315,852 310,552 412,651
Dividend income 6, 10 - - {1,622,168)
Equity in net earnings of associates 6, 10 (10,037,399) (8,742,280) (10,314,778)
Interest income 2,10 {12,208,199) {12,466,267) (10,628,678)
Gain on sale of investment properfies 7 (1,822,001) (49,560,165} -
Operating income (loss) before working
capital changes (6,290,967) (2,143,511} 5,924,669
Changes in working capital:
Receivables 1,631,760 1,818,285 390,422
Other current agsets {1,221,989) (2,970,034) {2,021,650)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 5,783,277 3,588,316 1,013,580
Refundable deposits 1,822,803 1,459,758} 61,082
Net cash generated from (absorbed by) operations 1,824,884 {1,186,703} 5,368,103
Income tax paid (2,450,540) (10,295,659) {1,206,981)
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities {625,6585) (11,462,362) 4,161,122
Cash flows from investing activities
Collection of loan receivable from a related party 3,10 120,000,000 207,500,000 147,346,000
Interest received 11,479,478 12,842 846 10,246,346
Cash dividends received 8, 10 8,733,099 3,493,239 12,725,680
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 7 2,300,000 52,894,755 -
Acquisition of property and equipment 8 (44,357) (126,769) {34,821
Loans granted to a related party 3,10 (150,000,000) (132,500,000) {176,846,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (7,531,780) 144,104,171 {(6,562,795)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash dividends paid 12 (40,304,342) (69,014,042} (15,690,742)
Repurchase of shares 12 - - (12,724,798)
Net cash used in financing activities (40,304,342) (69,014,042) (28,415,540)
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (48,461,778) 63,627,767 (30,817.213)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 87,943,929 24,316,162 55,133,375
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 39,482,151 87,943,529 24,316,162

The notes on pages 1 to 46 are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31 2018 and 2017

and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018

(In the notes, all amounts are shown in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 - General information

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries, KPSI Property,
Inc. (KPSI), and Goodwealth Realty and Development Corporation (GRDC), including GRDC's
subsidiary, Goodsoil Marine Realty Inc. (GMRI), collectively referred to as "the Group", were
incorporated in the Philippines. The Parent Company was registered with the Philippine Securities and
Fxchange Commission (SEC) on July 24, 1975 with registered office address at Unit 3-B, Country

Space 1 Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City. The
Parent Company is involved in investment holding while the subsidiaries are in the real estate industry.

In 1987, the Parent Company became a publicly listed entity through initial public offering (IPO) of its
shares. There was no follow on offering after the IPO.

KPHTI's shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). As at December 31, 2018
and 2017, the top three (3) shareholders are the following:

Percentage of ownership

Kepwealth, Inc. 52.8%
Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL) 29.2%
Public 18.0%

The following are the Parent Company’s subsidiaries, which all belong to the real estate industry:

Percentage of ownership

2018 2017
KPSI 100% 100%
GRDC : 51% 51%
GMRI 51% 51%

GRDC is 44% owned by Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Retirement Plan (KPMI Retirement Plan) and
5% by Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (KPMI) in 2018 and 2017. GRDC owns 93.7% of GMRI, thus,
KPHI has 51% effective ownership on GMRI, including 3.2% separate interest in GMRI.

GMRI has 24.95% direct ownership in Consort Land, Inc. (CLI), providing KPHI a 13% indirect
ownership in CLI.

All of the Group’s associates were incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent company of the
Group is Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL), a company incorporated in Singapore. KCL is listed in the
Singapore Exchange (SGX).

The Parent Company has 5 regular emplovees as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - 7 employees). The
administrative functions of the subsidiaries are handled by the Parent Company’s management,



As at December 31, 2018, the Parent Company has 240 shareholders (2017 - 242 shareholders), each

owning at least 100 shares.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issuance

by the Board of Directors (BOD) on January 24, 2019,

Note 2 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 consist of:

2018 2017

Cash equivalents 28,396,321 82,220,201
Cash in banks 11,080,830 5,718,728
Cash on hand 5,000 5,000
39,482 151 87,943,929

Cash in banks earn interests at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term
investments which are placed in financial institutions for varying periods of up to three (3) months,
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earned interest at annual rates that

ranged from 2.0% to 5% in 2018 (2017 - 1.6% to 2.0%).

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents amounted to P1.5 million in 2018 {2017 - Po.9 million;
2016 - P0.6 million). Accrued interest receivable from cash and cash equivalents amounted to

Po.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 (Note 3).

Note 3 - Receivables. net

Receivables, net as at December 31 consist of;

Notes 2018 2017
Loan receivables from a related party 10 272,000,000 242,000,000
Lease receivables:

Related parties 10 32,007,455 32,931,722
Others - 707,493
304,007 455 275,638,215
Non-trade 2,152,580 2,152,580
Interest receivable 2,10 1,058,175 828,454
307,718,210 278,620,249

Less non-current portion:
Loan receivables 10 - 37,500,000
Lease receivables 28,310,410 29,234 677
28,310,410 56,734,677
279,407,800 211,885,672
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 2,152 580 2,605,048
277,255 220 209,279,624

(2)



Movements in the allowance for impairment related to lease receivables - others and non-trade
receivables for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017

Lease Lease
receivables - receivables -
Note others Non-irade Total others Non-frade Total
January 1 453,368 2,152,580 2,605,948 - 2,152,580 2,152 580
Provision 13
_{recovery) {453,368) - {453,368) 453 368 - 453,368
December 31 - 2,152,580 2,152,580 453,368 2,152,880 2,605,948

The Group recognized provision for doubtful accounts related to its third-party receivables amounting
to Po.5 million in 2017 (2018 and 2016 - nil). This aceount pertains to terminated lease contract with a
third party customer. This was subsequently recovered in 2018.

The loan receivables from a related party pertain to unsecured, short-term and long-term interest-
bearing loans obtained by Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (KPMI), an entity under common control,
from the Parent Company, GMRI and KPSI. Refer to Note 10 for the details of the loan receivable,

Current portion of the lease receivables is non-interest bearing and is generally with terms of 30-60
days. The non-current portion of the lease receivables pertains to the difference between straight line
method and contractual annual rents. These amounts are expected to reverse more than one (1) year
from the financial reporting date.

Non-trade receivable represents the Group’s claim against a seller of a parcel of land, the title of which

has not been transferred to the Group. The non-trade receivable has been outstanding for more than
two (2) years and has been fully provided for.

Interest receivable represents the Group’s accrued interest earned from cash equivalents and loan
receivables.

Note 4 - Other current assets, net

Other current assets, net as at December 31 consist of:

2018 2017
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) 4,562,235 2,810,307
Input value-added fax (VAT) 344,334 777,498
Advances to employees 395,135 480,000
Depaosits 55,645 55,645
Prepaid expenses 5,829 12,101
Others 55,000 60,738
5,418,278 4,196,289
Less allowance for impairment losses {4,403,777) {3.453,294)
1,014,501 742 995

()



Movements in the allowance for impairment related to input VAT and CWT for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

2048 2017 2018

Note  Input VAT CWT Total  Input VAT CWT Total  Input VAT CWT Total
January 1 542987 2,810,307 3,453,204 1225075 2032442 3357517 1,840,054 1,281,800 3,121,854
Provision - 1,635,660 1,635,650 288,864 1,067,113 1,356,077 140,053 885,037 1,025,080
Recovery of prevision {542 987) (43,180} (688,177} (871,052} (277.645) (1 448,6897) (755,032} (134,385 (888,427}
Net provision (recovery) 13 {642,987) 1,593,470 950,483 (582,088) 788,458 207,380 (614,979) 750,642 135,663
Write-off - - - “ (11,603) (11,803) - b -
December 31 - 4403777 4403777 642,987 2810,307 3,453,294 1,225075 2032442 3,257,517

In 2018, the Group recovered input VAT and CWT amounting to Po.6 million and Po.o4 million,
respectively (2017 - Po.9 million and Po.3 million, respectively; 2016 - Po.8 million and Po.1 million,

respectively) and such were applied against output VAT and income tax due, respectively, during the
year.

Note 5 - Financial assets through other comprehensive income, net/Available-for-sale

financial assets, net

Finaneial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), net as at December 31,
2018 were previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets, net. Note 20.5 explains the
change of accounting policy and the reclassification of equity investments from available-for-sale
financial assets to FVOCL

2018 2017
Quoted share
Golf club share 35,000,001 20,000,001
Ungquoied share
Golf club share 880,000 880,000
35,880,001 20,880,001
Less allowance for impairment loss (880,000) (880,000)

35,000,001 20,000,001

The above investments represent proprietary club shares that provide the Group with opportunitiés for
return through dividend income and trading gains. These do not have fixed maturity or coupon rate
and the movement is based on closing market prices obtained in an active market.

The movement in the equity investments for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2018 2017
January 1 20,000,001 18,500,001
Fair value gain 15,000,000 500,000
December 31 35,000,001 20,000,001

The movement of investment revaluation reserve for the years ended December 31 is shown below:

2018 2017
January 1 19,422,058 18,822,058
Fair value gain 15,000,000 500,000
December 31 34,422 058 19,422 058

The Group recognized fair value gain amounting to P3.7 million in 2016.

(4)



Note 6 - Investment in associates, at equity

Investment in associates as at December 31 consist of:

2018 2017

Investment in associate {CLD) 337,596,800 337,596,800
Accumulated share in net income

Balance at January 1 82,838,564 77,589,523

Equity in net earnings of associate 10,037,398 8,742,280

Cash dividend received {8,733,099) (3,4983,239)

84,142,864 82,838,564
421,739,664 420,435,364

6.1 Associates
(a) CLI

GMRI owns 24.95% investment or 17,466,196 shares out of 70,000,000 shares in CLI, a company
incorporated in the Philippines, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

KPMI has a Share Purchase Agreement with GMRI for the transfer of 2,950,000 shares dated
September 6, 2012. As at January 26, 2018, the agreement is still awaiting the issuance of tax clearance
before the actual transfer of shares. However, GMRI is already exercising 24.95% beneficial ownership
to CLI

GMRI received cash dividend from CLI in 2018 amounting to P8.7 million (2017 - P3.5 million;
2016 - P11.1 million).

(b) GVI

Goodwealth Ventures, Inc. {GVI),'an entity involved in investment holding with the same principal
place of business as KPHI, incurred continued losses and was eventually dissolved in 2015.

On December 5, 2016, in the joint meeting of GVI's shareholders and the BOD, the distribution of GVI's
remaining investment in Keppel IVI Capital Inc. (KICI) and cash of P2.0 million were approved. The
Group received P1.6 million from GVI as liguidating dividend in 2016.

(5)



6.2

The financial information of CLI as at and for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Finaneial information of CLI

2018 2017
Current assets 80,008,907 76,860,499
Non-current assets 254,610,779 266,491,424
Total assets 334,619,686 333,351,023
Current liabilities 21,765,461 25,647 295
Non-current liabilities - -
Total lizbilities 21,785,461 25,647 295
Net assets 312,854,225 307,704,628
Revenue 164,591,451 162,707,201
income bhefore income tax 43,247 488 37,899,578
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 40,149,597 34,068,123

The Group has 13% indirect ownership in net asset of CLI or P40.7 million share in net asset {stated at
cost) as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P40.0 million).

The non-current assets of CLI represent prime lots held for appreciation, which are carried at cost. The
fair value of the property is P2.3 billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 based on the latest valuation
report of an independent appraiser.

The difference between the share in net asset and carrying amount of the investment amounting to
P421.7 million pertains to fair value adjustments on prime land holdings of CLI (2017 - carrying
amount of P420.4 million).

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associates to transfer funds to the Group in the
form of cash dividends or to repay loans or advances made by the Group.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's investment in associate.

(6)



Note 7 - Investment properties. net

The details and movements of investment properties as at and for the years ended December 31 are as
follows:

Building and Condominium
Note Land improvemernts uniis Total

2018
Cost

January 1 205,666,439 854,751 3,689,178 210,210,368

Disposal (378,000) (854,751) - {1,232,751)

December 31 205,288,438 - 3,689,178 208,977,617
Accumulated depreciation and

amortization

January 1 - 619,250 3,689,178 4,308,428

Depreciation and amortization 13 - 235,501 - 235,501

Disposal - (854,751) - (854,751)

December 31 - - 3,689,178 3,689,178
Net book values 205,288,439 - - 205,288,439
2017 '
Cost

January 1 205,801,939 2,608,001 25,342,689 233,853,629

Disposal {235,500} {1,754.250) (21,663,511} (23,643,261}

December 31 205,666,439 854,751 3,689,178 210,210,368
Accumuiated depreciation and

amortization

January 1 - 2,135,524 22,196,617 24,332,141

Depreciation and amortization 13 - 45,883 235,975 284 958

Disposal - {1,565,257) (18,743,414) {20,308,671)

December 31 - 619,250 3,688,178 4,308,428
Net book values 205,666,439 235,501 - 205,901,940

In 2018, the Group sold a certain land and building and improvements with carrying value of Po.4
million, for a total consideration of P2.3 million resulting in a gain on sale amounting to P1.9 million.
During 2017, the Group sold certain land, building and improvements, and condominium units with
carrying values of Po.2 million, Po.2 million, and P2.9 million, respectively, for a total consideration of
P52.9 million resulting in a gain on sale amounting to P49.6 million.

Land, building and improvements in Batangas are leased out to related parties (Note 10), while
condominium units are leased out to third parties.

The investment properties have an aggregate fair value of P1,022.0 million based on an appraisal made
by an accredited independent appraiser in December 2018 (2017 - P994.0 million). The fair value of
the investment properties was determined using Level 3 inputs. The appraiser determined that the
highest and best use of the subject properties are those of industrial uses, commercial and residential
properties, which are aligned with the current use. The appraisal method involved comparing the
market price of similar properties near the vicinity, which range from P4,000 to P116,000 per square
meter. Factors considered also include zonal value, size and shape of the property, desirability, and
other characteristics of the lots and properties. None of the properties are impaired.

Rental income attributable to the investment properties for the years ended December 31 consists of
the following:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Related parties 10 13,245,179 13,652,062 13,677,005
Third parties 9,469,031 4,336,847 6,774,321

22,714,210 17,988,908 20,451,326

(7)



Details of the advance rentals and refundable deposits received from related and third party customers
as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Related Related
pariies Third parties Third
{Note 10) parties Total  (Note 10) parties Total
Advance rentals
Current 232,956 - 232,956 232,958 - 232,956
Refundable deposits
Current 232956 2,176927 2,409,883 232 956 254,124 487,080

The operating expenses directly attributable to the investment properties pertaining to depreciation
and amortization, rental, repairs and maintenance and real estate taxes amounted to P7.5 million in
2018 (2017 - P4.5 million and 2016 - P4.7 million).

Note 8 - Property and equipment, net

The details and movement of property and equipment as at and for the years ended December 31 are as
follows:

Office
machine,
Condominium furpfture and  Transportation
Note units fixtures equipment Total
2018
Cost
January 1 5,397,020 495,224 776,186 6,668,430
Additions - 44,357 - 44 357
Write-off - (82,866) - (82,866)
December 31 5,397,020 456,715 776,186 6,629,921
Accumulated depreciation
January 1 5,397,020 360,534 776,186 6,533,740
Depreciation 13 - 80,151 - 80,151
Write-off - (82,866) - (82,866)
December 31 5,397,020 357,81% 776,186 6,531,025
Net book values - 08,896 - 08,896
2017
Cost
January 1 5,387,020 368,455 776,186 6,541,661
Acquisition - 126,769 - 126,769
December 31 5,397,020 495 224 776,186 6,668,430
Accumulated depreciation
January 1 5,397,017 337,976 773,153 6,508,146
Depreciation 13 3 22,658 3,033 25,554
December 31 5,387,020 360,534 776,186 6,633,740
Net book values - 134,690 - 134,690

The assets written off in 2018 pertain to fully depreciated and obsolete office furniture and fixtures.
Fully depreciated assets amounting P6.5 million are still in use as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Based on the results of management assessment, the Company believes that there were no objective
evidence and indicators of impairment exist as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

&



Note 9 - Accounts pavable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current Habilities as at December 31 consist of:

Note 2018 2017

Accrued expenses 12,131,413 7,116,555
Unearned rent 613,581 -
Payabie to government agencies 515,843 422218
Advance rentals 232,956 232,956
Others 10 1,053,198 257,085
14,547,091 8,028,814

Accrued expenses pertain to accrued professional fees, audit fee, directors' fees, fringe and other

employee benefits. These are non-interest bearing and generally with 30 to 60-day terms.

Unearned rent pertains to rental income received in advance.

Payable to government agencies pertains to output VAT, and withholding taxes, which are normally

settled within one (1} month after the reporting period.

Advance rentals from related parties are apphied against the rent due at the end of the lease term.

Other accounts payable pertain to unclaimed monies or dividends by shareholders which are non-

interest bearing and due and demandable at balance sheet date (Note 10).

(9)
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For the three (3) years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Group has not made any
provision for doubtful accounts relating to amounts owed by related parties because of strong financial
condition of the concerned entities. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examination of the finaneial position of each related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

All of the related parties are entities under common control of the Parent Company, unless stated
otherwise.

Following are the Group's transactions with related parties:

(a)
®

(i)

(11)

Lease agreements
GMRI

GMRI has a non-cancellable lease agreement with KPMI for a parcel of land used as a shipyard
site in Barrio San Miguel, Bauan, Batangas. The agreement covering these properties is for a
period of 50 years beginning 1993. The annual rental on the leased property is P6.0 million
during the first five (5) years subject to 10% escalation after every five (5} vears. In May 2007, the
lease contract was amended revising the annual lease rate from P6.6 mitlion to P10.2 million
effective January 1, 2007, subject to 1.5% escalation after every five (5) years. As at January 1,
2017, the annual lease rate amounted to P10.5 million up to December 31, 2021, Rental income,
based on the straight-line methed, amounted to P9.6 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016. Total
outstanding balance of lease receivables presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position representing lease differential between contractual and straight line lease income
amounted to P3z2.0 million and P32.9 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The future aggregate minimum Jease receivables under these operating leases after Decernber 31
are as follows:

2018 2017
Within one (1) year 10,508,295 10,508,295
After one (1) year but not more than five (5) years 53,014,347 42,190,804
More than five (5) years 204,002,460 225,424,298

267,615,102 278,123,397

In 2015, the GMRI entered into a new lease agreement with KPMI for another parcel of land
covering a period of one (1) year commencing on January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015,
subject to yearly renewal. The lease agreement was renewed in 2018 and 2017. Rental income
earned from this agreement amounted to Po.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017, and 2016.

GRDC

GRDC leases its properties to KPMI, for a period of one (1) year commencing on January 1, 2015,
subject to yearly renewal under such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by
both parties. The lease contracts were last renewed on January 1, 2018, Rental income earned
from this agreement amounted to Po.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and
2016.



(ili} KPSI

KPSI leases certain properties to KPMI, KIVI, KECI, and Kepwealth Property for a period of one
(1} year, renewable annually. The lease contracts with Kepwealth Property was terminated on
October 31, 2017.

(iv) Parent Company

The Parent Company and KPMI has an existing land lease agreement on a piece of land which is
the subject of complaint against the Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC) (Note 20).

The monthly rent for the said piece of land is Po.2 million for a period of one (1) year, subject to
yearly renewal. The lease contract was last renewed in July 2018,

Total rental income earned from these agreements amounted to P13.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (2017 and 2016 - P13.7 million).

Advance rentals and refundable deposits are both equivalent to one (1) month rental of the
corresponding lease contract. Refundable deposits amounting to Po.2 million as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, is presented under accounts payable and other current liabilities account in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The refundable deposit is to be returned at the end of the lease term,
net of any expenses that will be incurred in the process of restoring the leased premises.

(b) Advances for various expenses and charges
Amounts due from KPMI, KSSI, KPPI, Kepwealth Property, and KECI pertain to reimbursement
of various expenses such as legal, communication and business development expenses paid for by

the Group.

(¢) Louan agreements with KPMI

(i) GMRI
CGutstanding Outstanding
balance as balance as at
Release Principal at Transactions December 31 Terms and
date ameunt December  Availment Payment 2018  Conditions
312017
Long- Sepiember Unsecured, 5-year, 4
term 2014 200,000,000 87,500,000 - (87,500,000} - eguai quarterly
instaliments, inferest
subject to repricing semi-
annual, oplicn for early
rapayment, interest rates;
2017 - 3.6% {0 4.6%;
2018 - 4.5% t0 5.4%
87,500,000 - (87,500,000} -
Shont- December - Unsecured, 88-90 days
term 2017 12,500,G0C $2,500,000 - {12,500,000) with renewal; interest
rates 2017 - 3% 10 4.3%
August 2018 15,000,000 - 15,006,000 {15,000,000) - BBdaysai4.3%
September 90 days ai 6.3%
2018 62,000,000 - 62,000,000 - 62,000,800
12,500,000 77,000,000 (27,500,000} 62,000,000
100,000,000 77,000,000 {115,000,000) 62,000,000
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Total outstanding loan of KPMI as at December 31, 2018 amounted to P62.0 million (2017 - P100.0
million). Interest income recognized from these loans amounted to P3.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (2017 - P8.6 million and 2016 - P7.2 million). Accrued interest receivable as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017 both amounted to Po.3 million.

{ii) KPSI

KPSI granted short-term loan to KPMI since February 2016. As at December 31, 2017, KPMI has
outstanding balance of P15.0 million with 9o days term and was renewed thereafter. Partial
payment of P5.0 million was made in December 2018. Remaining balance of P10.0 million was
renewed for 88 days term at 6.3%. Interest income recognized from the short-term loan amounted
to Po.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017 - Po.5 million and 2016 - Po.3 million).
Accrued interest receivable amounted to Po.os5 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - Po.1

million).
Outstanding Quistanding
balance as at balance as at
Principal December 31 Transactions December 31
Rei date amount 2017 Availment Payment 2018  Terms and Conditions
Octoher 17, 15,000,000 15,000,000 - (5,000,006} 10,000,000 Unsecured, 90 days with renewal,
2016 interest rates: 2017 - 3.0% -3.5%; 2018

«3.2% - 4.8%; Renewed in November
2018 for 88 days with B.3% interest

(iii) Parent Company

The Parent Company started to grant short-term loans to KPMI in June 2015 with loan balance of
P200.0 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P127.0 million).

As at December 31, 2018, KPMI has outstanding short-term loans as follows:

Qutstanding Qutstanding
balance as at balance as at
Principal December 31 Transactions December 31
Release date amouni 2017 Availment Payment 2018 Terms and Conditions
June 18, 20147 52,000,000 52,600,000 - - 52,000,000 Unsecured, 90 days with
November 27, 2017 50,000,000 50,000,000 - - 50,004,000 renewal, interest rates:
December 4, 2017 25,000,000 25,000,000 - - 26,000,000 2017 - 2.8% t0 3.5%; 2018
-3%-6.3%
127,000,000 - - 127,000,000
ivtarch 12, 2018 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 Unsetured, 20 days with
April 7, 2018 25,006,000 - 25,000,000 25,060,000 reriswal and interest of
3.0% to 6.3%
December 14, 2018 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 90 days with 5,9% interest
127,000,000 73,000,000 - 200,000,000 :

Interest income recognized from these loans by the Parent Company amounted to P6.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017 - P2.4 million and 2016 - P2.5 million). Accrued interest
receivable amounted to P1.2 million as at December 31, 2018 {2017 - Po.3 million).

Total interest income earned from these loan agreements amounted to P10.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (2017 - P11.5 million; 2016 - P10.0 million). Accrued interest receivable amounted
to P1.2 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - Po.7 million).
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(@)

(e}

Management fees

Since 2013, the Parent Company had management agreement with its related companies for a
monthly fee. The monthly management fee is subject to change depending upon the extent and
volume of services provided by the Parent Company. This covers regular consultancy, financial
reporting, personnel and administration services. The agreement is considered renewed every
year thereafter, unless one party gives the other a written notice of termination at least three (3)
months prior to the expiration date. In January 2018, the monthly management fee being
charged to Kepventure, Kepwealth, Inc. and KIVI is P5,000, P23,000 and P15,000, respectively,
(2017 - P2,500, P12,000 and P15,000; 2016 - P2,200, Pg,000, and P15,000, respectively). The
management agreement with Kepwealth Property was terminated last October 31, 2017 due to the
sale of Kepwealth Property to a third party.

The Parent Company also provides accounting services to KECI, an entity under common control,
for a monthly management fee of P20,000 in 2018 (2017 and 2016 - P25,000). The agreement is
considered renewed every vear thereafter, unless one party gives the other a writien notice of
termination at least three (3) months prior to the anniversary date.

Management fees earned amounted to Po.8 million in 2018 (2017 - P1.8 million; 2016 - P1.4
million). As at December 31, 2018, there was no intention from any of the parties lo terminate the
management services.

Other income

In 2014, the Parent Company entered in to a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with KPMI
to assist the latter in its bidding activities for projects for a 1% share in revenue. The Parent
Company received Po.4 million in December 2018 (2017 and 2016 - nil) and is recognized under
“other income” in the consolidated statement of income.

Key management personnel

Outstanding balance related to salaries and other employee benefits of key management personnel
amounting to P1o.o million as at December 31, 2018 is presented within accrued expenses under
accounts payable and other current liabilities account in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2017 - P5.4 million) (Note g).

There were no long-term benefits, including share-based payments, provided to key management
personnel in 2018, 2017, and 2016.

The following related party transactions and balances were eliminated for the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial staterments;

2018 2017 2016
As at December 31
investment in subsidiaries 110,165,069 110,165,069 110,165,069
Advances fo subsidiaries 765,000 1,128,722 3,826,722
For the years ended December 31
Dividend income 36,175,000 107,327,500 15,672 168
Management fees 780,000 800,600 360,000
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Note 11 - Share capital and share premium

The Class "A" and Class "B" shares of stock are identical in all respects and have P1 par value per share,
except that Class "A" shares are restricted to ownership of Philippine nationals. Class "B" shares are

18% and 82% owned by Philippine nationals and foreign nationals, respectively, as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017. Each share has a right to one (1) vote.

Details of share capital and share premium as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Authorized - P1 par value

Class A 90,000,000
Class B 200,060,000
200,000,000
Issued
Class A 39,840,970
Class B 33,332,630
Share capital 73,173,500
Share premium 73,203,734
Details of the Parent Company’s shares as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
Treasury shares
Class A 3,674,000
Class B 11,696,081
15,370,081
Weighted average number of shares
Class A 36,166,970
Class B 21,636,449
57,803,419

In accordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended (2011), Annex 68-D, below is a summary of the Parent
Company's track record of registration of securities as at December 31:

Nurmber of
Number of shares Issue/offer holders of
Commen shares registered price Date of approval securities
2018
Class "A" 36,166,970 1.00 June 30, 2000 380
Class "B" 21,636,449 1.00 June 30, 2000 55
57,803,419
207
Class "A" 36,168,970 1.00 June 30, 2000 382
Class "B" 21,636,448 1.00 June 30, 2000 56
57,803,419

There are 422 total shareholders per record holding both Class A and B shares as at December 31, 2018

(2017 - 424 total shareholders).
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Note 12 - Retained earnings; treasury shares

The portion of retained earnings, corresponding to the undistributed equity in net earnings of the
associates, is not available for distribution as dividends until declared by the associates.

Retained earnings are further restricted to the extent of treasury shares with the following details as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Shares Cost
Class “A” 3,674,000 13,408,963
Class “B” 11,696,081 9,214,013

15,370,081 22,622,976

The Parent Company’s BOD declared cash dividends of P0.10 per share or P5.8 million in 2018
and 2017 and P6.c million in 2016 as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Date of declaration and approval June 22 June 16 June 17
Date of shareholders’ record July 8 July 3 July 1
Date paid July 31 July 27 July 27

In 2018, 2017, and 2016, GMRI declared cash dividend amounting to P70.0 million, P131.0 million and
P20.0 million, respectively. Out of this amount, the Parent Company received P35.2 million, P65.8
million, and P10.0 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

In 2018, GRDC declared cash dividend amounting to P1.5 million (2017 and 2016 - nil). The Parent
Company received the amount of Po.8 million. Outstanding dividend due to shareholders as at
December 31, 2018 amounted Po.7 million (2017 - nil) as reported under current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividend declared and paid attributable to NCI amounted to P34.5 million, P63.2 million, and Po.7
million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

Total cash dividend paid by the Group amounted to P40,3 million, P69.0 millior and P15.7 million in
2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

As at December 31, 2018, total unrestricted retained earnings of the Parent Company amounted to
P184.2 million (2017 - P157.6 million). The amount of unrestricted retained earnings is in excess of
100% of its paid-up capital as at December 31, 2018 and 2017. The Parent Company declared and paid
cash dividends on a regular basis to comply with Section 43, Power to Declare Dividends, of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines. The Parent Company declares dividend based upon the favorable
result of operations and the availability of unappropriated retained earnings.
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Notie 13 - Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the years ended December 31 consist of:

Notes 2018 2017 2018

Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 10 14,563,534 11,128,786 7,469,971
Taxes and licenses 5,011,407 5,905,403 5,941,319
Professional fees 3,837,820 2,231,907 342,891
Repairs and maintenance 2,525,584 39,783 44,201
Rental expense 1,209,949 - -
Transportation and travel 830,059 572,448 607,792
Utilities 641,847 574,654 545,499
Membership dues 515,217 456,000 410,184
Provision for impairment losses 3.4 497 115 660,748 135,663
Depreciation and amortization 7.8 315,652 310,552 412,651
Office supplies 173,955 126,184 153,746
Commission - 409,846 -
Others 1,277,240 1,161,315 662,673
31,398,379 23,577,624 16,726,590

Other expenses consist of bank charges, business development expenses, and various items that are

individually immaterial.

Note 14 - Income taxes

The components of the income tax expense for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018
Current 2,472,117 12,839,088 4,059,757
Final tax on interest income 440,619 184,703 117,274
Deferred {36,837) (243,474) 5,348
2,875,899 12,781,217 4,182 377
The Group’s deferred income tax liability, net as at December 31 consists of the following:
2018 2017
Tax base Tax effect Tax base Tax effect
Deferred income fax assets {o be
recovered within 12 months
Accrued expenses - - 453,367 436,010
Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 53,860 16,158
- ~ 507,227 152 168
Deferred income tax liability to be
settled after more than 12 months
impact of lease straight-lining (5,334,576) (1,600,372) (5,488,620) {1,846,586)
Deferred income fax liability, net (6,334,578 (1,600,372) {4,981,393) {1,494,418)
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Certain deferred income tax assets were not recognized because management believes that future
taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible temporary difference and carry-forward
benefits of net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) and excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
can be applied. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets and MCIT as at December 31 are follows:

2018 2017
Tax base Tax effect Tax base Tax effect
Accrued expenses 10,811,682 3,243,505 7.514,107 2,254,232
NOLCO 6,153,310 1,845,903 11,196,327 3,358,898
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,767,687 530,300 1,807,940 542 382
Unearned rentals 613,581 184,074 262,560 78,768
Advance rentals 232,956 69,887 4,412,363 1,323,709
19,579,196 5,873,759 25,193,297 7,557,989
MCIT 609,704 609,704 372,199 372,199
6,483,463 7,830,188

Details of NOLCO and MCIT as at December 31, which can be applied as deduction from taxable
income over the next three (3) years immediately following the year of such loss, are as follows:

2018 2017

Year incurred Expiry year NOLCO MCIT NOLCO MCIT
2018 2021 - 330,448 - -
2017 2020 3,797,876 147,536 3,797,878 147,536
2016 2019 2,355,434 131,722 2,355,434 131,722

2015 2018 - - 5,043,017 92,941
6,153,310 609,704 11,196,327 372,199

The movements in NOLCO as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017

January 1 11,196,327 11,820,320
Expired (4,104,134) (4,263,748)
Applied (938,883) {158,121)
Addition - 3,797,876
December 31 6,153,310 11,196,327

The movements in MCIT as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017

January 1 372,198 322,307
Addition 330,446 147,536
Expired {92,941} (90,475)
Application - (7,169)
December 31 609,704 372,199
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In August 2007, GMRI was registered as a developer/operator of Keppel Philippines Marine Special
Economic Zone with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) pursuant to Presidential
Proclamation No. 1329 dated July 16, 2007 and the provisions of Republic Act No. 7916, otherwise
known as the amended "Special Economic Zone Act of 1995". With this registration, GMRI is entitled to
the special tax rate of 5% on gross income, in lieu of all national and local taxes, except real property
taxes on land owned by GMRL

A reconciliation of the income tax at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense as shown in the
consolidated statement of income is as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Income tax computed at statutory income tax
rate of 30% 5,119,460 20,286,170 8,382,583
Additions (reductions) to income taxes resulting from:
Non-deductibie expense 482 467 125,708 104,173
Change in unrecognized deferred income tax
assetls 1,485,309 1,813,937 1,164,198
Interest income subjected to final tax 21,246 (34,774) (26,880}
Non-taxable income (513,455) (1,749,375) (5.345,606)
Income subiect to 5% on gross income (3,719,128) (2,235,173) 372,289
Difference between OSD and itemized deductions - (5,535,277} (468,390}
Income tax expense 2,875,899 12,781,217 4,182,377

Income tax pavable as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to Po.7 million and P1.1 million,
respectively.

Note 15 - Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net income aftributable to shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period, excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares, if any.

Earnings per share for the years ended December 31 is calculated as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Net income attributable to equity holders
of the parent (a) 5,247,186 44,796,093 13,568,566
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding (k) 11 57,803,419 57,803,419 57.803,419
Basic earnings per share (a, b) 0.091 0.775 0.235

The Group has no potential shares that will have a dilutive effect on earnings per share.
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Note 16 - Qperating segments

For management reporting purposes, the Group's businesses are classified into the following business
segments: (1) investment holding, and (2) real estate, with KPM], a related party, and a third party, as
key lessees. The Group’s BOD reviews the performance of these reportable segments. Details of the

Group's business segments are as follows:

Investment
halding Real esiate Combined Eliminations Cansolidated
2018
Revenue
KPMI and a third party 18,516,577 18,910,268 38,426 845 - 38,426,845
Inter-segment, including
interest income 37,720,000 - 37,720,000 (37,720,000 -
Equity in net earnings of
an associate - 10,037,39¢ 10,037,399 - 10,037,399
Total revenue 57,236,577 28,847 667 86,184,244 (37,720,000) 48,484,244
Income before income tax 32,817,810 21,188,955 54,004,885 (36,940,000) 17,064,865
Incorne tax expense (482,603) (2,393,298) (2,875,899) - (2,875,898)
Net income 32,335,307 18,793,659 51,128,966 (36,940,000} 14,188,966
Other Information
Segment assets 373,636,030 749,624,030 1,123,260,080 {110,930,068) 1,012,328,992
Segment liabilities 16,042,453 4,853,849 20,896,402 (1,661,342) 19,235,080
Depreciation and
amortization 76,455 239,187 315,652 - 315,652
2017
Revenue
KPMI 2nd a third party 7,322,819 75,166,326 82,489,245 - 82,489,245
Inter-segment, including
interest income 107,927 500 - 107,927,500 (107,927,500} -
Equity in net earnings of
an associate - 8,742,280 8,742 280 - 8,742,280
Total revenue 115,250,419 83,908,606 199,158,025 {107,927 5Q0) 91,231,525
Income before income tax 99,812,156 75,169,245 174,981,401 (107,327,500) 67,653,801
Incorne tax expense (256,756) {12,524 461) (12,781,217 - {12,781,217)
Net income 99,555,400 62,644,784 162,200,184 (107,327,500) 54,872,684
Other Information
Sagment assets 324,677,988 802,079,901 1,126,757,889 (111,443,859) 1,015,313,930
Segment liabilities 8,639,374 4,638,478 13,278,852 (2,175,230) 11,103,622
Depreciation and
amortization 22 550 288,002 310,552 - 310,552
2016
Revenue
KPM and a third party §,460,883 26,270,740 32,731,823 - 32,731,623
inter-segment, including
interest income 16,032,168 - 16,032,168 {14,410,000) 1,622,168
Equity in net earnings of
an associate - 10,314,776 10,314,776 - 10,314,776
Total revenue 22,493,051 36,585,516 59,078,567 (14,41G,000) 44 668,567
Income before income tax 12,483,714 29,508,263 41,991,977 (14,050,000} 27,941 977
Income tax expense (168,471} (4,013,906) (4,182,377) - (4,182,377}
Net income 12,315,243 25,494 357 37,809,600 (14,050,900) 23,759,600
Other Information
Segment assets 225,257 892 15,305,757 1,140,563 649 (114,019,792) 1,026,471,857
Segment liabilities 3,494,337 9,948,917 13,443,254 (4,823,062} 8,620,191
Depreciation and
amortization 4,350 408,301 412 651 - 412,651

Segment assets and segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the consolidated financial

statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of each segment.
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Segment revenue, segment expenses, and segment results include transfers between business
segments. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

All of the Group's revenues are derived mainly from operations within Luzon, an island of the
Philippines, hence, the Group did not present geographical information required by PFRS 8, Operating
Segments.

Rental income from KPMI amounting to P12.8 million in 2018 comprise 26.6% of the Group's revenue
(2017 - P12.8 million and 14.1%; 2016 - P12.8 million and 28.9%).

Note 17 - Other matters

In September 2003, the Parent Company filed a complaint against PNOC for specific performance with
the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Batangas City for the enforcement of the contract relating to the
option to purchase a piece of land in Batangas. A judgment was rendered in J anuary 2006 in favor of
the Parent Company ordering PNOC to accept the payment of P4.1 million as full and complete
payment of the purchase price, and to execute a Deed of Absolute Sale in favor of the Parent Company.
PNOC, however, filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA) in the same year which the CA
dismissed on December 19, 2011.

On July 25, 2016, the Supreme Court (SC) affirmed the decision of the CA in December 2011 in the
resolution dated May 14, 2012 and upheld the Parent Company’s option to buy the land and remanded
the case to the RTC of Batangas City to update the Parent Company’s Filipino equity ownership. On
December 14, 2016, SC’s decision became final and executory and was recorded in the Books of Entries
of Judgments. On September 14, 2018, the RTC issued resolution against the Parent Company. The
Parent Company filed a motion for reconsideration on October 12, 2018, with the RTC to argue the
merits. As at January 24, 2019, the Parent Company is still awaiting on the final resolution of the RTC.

The Parent Company's cash deposit of P4.1 million with the Court is presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position under other non-current assets. The said piece of land is the subject of 2
lease agreement between the Parent Company and a third party and KPMI (Note 10).

Note 18 - Financial risk management and capital management

18.1  Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, interest rate risk, equity price
risk, and liquidity risk that could affect its financial positicn and results of operations. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized
below:

(a} Credit risk

The Group has adopted stringent procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring
its credit risk. Majority of its lease transactions are with related parties with reliable credit history.

The loss allowance for other financial assets at amortized cost as at December 31, 2017 reconciles to the

opening loss allowance on January 1, 2018 and to the closing loss allowance as at December 31, 2018
{Note 3).
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There was no transition adjustment upon adoption of PFRS 9. See Note 20.5 for the previous
accounting policy on impairment of other financial assets, including available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group transacts mostly with related parties with strong financial condition, thus, there is no

requirement for eollateral.

Receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant. Significant concentration of eredit risk in 2018 and 2017 pertains to the loan
receivables from a related party amounting to P272.0 million and P242.0 million, respectively, which

comprise 88% and 87% of the Group's loans and receivables in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Group:

2018 2017
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents* 39,477,151 87,838,929

Receivables
Loans receivable from a related party 272,000,000 242 000,000
Current portion of lease receivables* 3,697,045 4,404 538
Interest receivable 1,558,175 828,454
316,732,371 335,171,921

*Excluding cash on hand

*"Non-current portion of lease receivables arises from the straight-line recognition of rental income, hence, excluded

The table below shows the financial effect of collateral or credit enhancement to the Group’s financial

assets as at December 31:

Gross
maximum
exposure Net exposure
2018
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents* 38,477,151 39,477,151
Receivables:
Loans receivabie from a related party 272,000,000 272,000,000
Current portion of lease receivables™ 3,697,045 3,897,045
interest receivable 1,558,175 1,558,175
316,732,371 316,732,371
2017
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents® 87,938,929 87,938,929
Receivables:
Loans receivable from a related party 242 000,000 242,000,000
Current portion of lease receivables* 4,404 538 4,404 538
Interest receivable 828,454 828,454
335,171,021 335,171,821

*Exeluding cash on hand

**Non-current portion of lease recefvables arises from the straight-line recognition of rental income, hence, excluded
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(i) Credit quality

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets as at Deceraber 31

Stage 1 - Stage 2 - Stage 3 - Nonp-
Performing __Underperferming petforming Total
2018
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 39,477,151 - - 349,477,151
Receivables
Loans receivable from a related party 272,090,000 - - 272,000,000
Current portion of lease recaivables 3,607,045 - - 3,697,045
Non-trade - - 2,152,580 2,152,580
Interest receivable 1,658,175 - - 1,558,175
316,732,371 - 2,152,580 318,884,951
Neither past
due nor
impaired Past due but
{High grade) not impaired tmpaired Total
2017
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 87,938,920 - - 87,938,929
Receivables
Loans receivable from a related party 242,000,000 - - 242,000,000
Current portion of lease receivables 3,697,045 254,125 453,368 4,404,538
Non-trade - - 2,152,580 2,152,580
Interest receivable 828,454 - - 828,454
334,464,428 254,125 2,605,948 337,324,501

The Group expects the current porticn of the lease receivables to be realized within three (3) months
from the end of the reporting period. The amounts due from related parties are all collectible and of
good credit quality.

High grade assets are considered as having very low risk and can easily be converted to cash.
These assets are considered for counterparties that possess strong to very strong capacity to meet their
obligations,

In 2018 and 2017, past due but not impaired receivables are aged 90 to 120 days while impaired
receivables are aged over 120 days.

(i) Cash in bank

The Group has maintained business relationships with an aceredited universal bank that has high
credit standing in the financial services industry.

The remaining cash in the consolidated statement of financial position pertains o cash on hand which
is not subject to credit risk.

(iii) Receivables

Loan, interest. lease, and other receivables from related parties

Credit exposure of the Group on loan and other receivables from related parties is considered to be low
as there is no history of default and have strong credit standing of concerned related parties. Credit
risk is negligible since the related parties are faithfully paying on normal credit terms based on
contracts.
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The maximum credit risk exposure is equal to the carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Note 3).

Receivables from third parties

The credit quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates.

The Group does not hold any collateral in relation to these receivables.
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year.
(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long-term loan receivable with interest rate being repriced on a periodic basis. Since the Group's long-
term loan was granted to a related party, there is no requirement for coliateral or guaranty (Note 10).
The Group has no long-term loan receivable in 2018 (2017 - P37.5 million} (Note 3).

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates for the
next financial year, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's income before tax (through the
impact on floating rate receivables):

Change in Increase (decrease) on
interest rates income before income tax
Loan receivables
2018 +100 basis points 122,082
-100 basis points (122,092)
2017 +50 basis points 62,331
-50 basis points (62,331)

The Group determined the reasonably possible change in interest rate using the percentage changes in
floating rates for the past three (3) quarters for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(¢} Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities will decrease resulting from changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks.

The Group's price risk exposure relates to its quoted equity investments where values will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices.

Such quoted equity investments are subject to price risk due to changes in market values arising from
factors specific to the instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all instroments traded in the market.
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The effect on other comprehensive income (as a result of a change in fair value of instruments held as
financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial asset) due to a reasonably possible change in
indices, with all other variables held constant, is as follows:

Increase (decrease) on

Change in other comprehensive
equity price income
Quoted club share
2018 : +10 2,000,000
-10 (2,000,000)
2017 +3 512,821
-3 {512,821)

The Group determined the reasonably possible change in equity pricing percentage changes in the fair
value for the past three (3) years.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of cash and cash equivalents and loans. The Group also monitors its risk to shortage of funds
through monthly evaluation of the projected and actual cash flow information. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s other financial liabilities (undiscounted amounts of
principal and related interest) as at December 31.

On Less than 3to 12 More than
demand 3 monthsg months one year Tetal
2018
Financial liabilifies :
Accounts payable and other current liabilities™ 318,198 12,131,413 - - 12,449611
Refundable deposits - - 2,409,883 - 2,409,883
318,198 12,131,413 2,409,883 - 14,859,484
2017
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities* 257,086 7.116,554 - - 7,373,640
Refundable deposits - - 487,080 - 487,080
257,086 7,116,554 487,080 - 7,860,720

*Excluding output VAT, advance rentals, provisions, other taxes, and payables

There is no material liquidity risks given minimal liabilities relative to available liquid assets.

18.2  Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The

Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions.
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The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total equity.
Total liabilities include current and noncurrent labilities. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The Group's objective is to ensure that there are no known events that may trigger direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Group, including default or acceleration of an obligation that
will require increased capitalization.

The debt to equity ratios as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Total liabilities 10,235,060 11,103,622
Total equity 993,084,932 1,004,210,308
Debt to equity ratio 0.019:1 0.011:1

The Group is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement and there were no changes in the
Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

18,3  Fair value estimation of financial assets and Habilities
(a} Receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the Group's financial instruments, the carrying amounts approximate
their fair values as at December 31, 2018 and 2017. The carrying amounts of interest-bearing long-
term. loan receivables approximate their fair values due to periodic repricing based on market interest
rates.

(h) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income/Available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of quoted equity instruments is determined by reference to quoted market bid price at
the close of business at the end of the reporting dates since this is actively traded in organized financial
markets. Unquoted financial asset is valued using Level 3 inputs, less any allowance for impairment
1oss.

(c¢) Fair value hierarchy

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group classifies its quoted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income/available-for-sale financial asset amounting to P35.0 million and P20.0
million, respectively, under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. During the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

Note 19 - Critical accounting estimates, assumptions, and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and the related notes. The estimates, assumptions, and judgments
used are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of
the consolidated financial statements. These are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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The estimates, assumptions, and judgments that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

19.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(a)} Estimated useful lives of condominium units

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related deépreciation and
amortization charges for its condominium units. This estimate is based on the expected future economic
benefit to the Group. Management will increase the depreciation and amortization charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Management believes that the current estimated useful lives of
condominium units (Note 20.7) approximate the actual economic benefits of these assets to the Group.
Further, management does not foresee any changes in terms of business operations that would warrant
reassessment of estimated useful lives. The carrying values of the investment properties are disclosed in
Note 7. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the condominium units were already fully depreciated.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
nputs used are discussed in Note 18.1(a).

19.2  Critical accounting judgments

(a) Operating lease - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into various commercial property leases on its investment properties.

The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties as the Group considered, among others, the length of the lease term as compared with the
estimated life of the assets, the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease
does not substantially cover the fair value of the leased asset, absence of: i} ownership transfer at the
end of the lease term; and ii) option to purchase the asset at a sufficiently lower amount than fair value.
The leased assets are also not of a specialized nature. The Group's operating lease contracts are
accounted for as non-cancellable operating leases. In determining whether a lease contract is
cancellable or not, the Group considers, among others, the significance of the penalty, including
economic consequence to the lessee. Total rent income arising from operating leases amounted to
Pa2.7 million for the vear ended December 31, 2018 (2017 - P18.0 million and 2016 - P20.5 million).
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(b) Contingencies

The Group is currently involved in a legal proceeding and claims by third parties. The estimate of the
probable cost for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsel
handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The Group
currently does not believe that these proceedings and claims by third parties will have a material effect
on the Group's consolidated financial statements (Note 17).

(¢} Impairment of investment properties

The Group assesses impairment on investment properties whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. This includes
considering certain indications of impairment such as significant changes in asset usage, significant
decline in assets' market value, or physical damage of an asset, significant underperformance relative to
expected historical or projected future operating results and significant negative industry or economic
trends. The Group recognizes an impairment loss if such indications are present and whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. This requires the Group to make
estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial statements. Future
events could cause the Group to conclude that these assets are impaired. Any resulting additional
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Group's financial condition and results of
operations.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are no noted indicators of impairment on the Group's
investment properties. The carrying values of investment properties amounted to P205.3 million and
P205.9 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

(d) Determining impairment of other current assets

Management believes that the Group's input VAT and CWT may not be recoverable because of the
expected future minimal transactions where the Group's input VAT and CWT will be utilized. Provision
for impairment loss amounted to P4.4 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P3.5 million) (Note 4).

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would therefore differ based on the
judgment or estimates made, If assessment of recoverability of input VAT and CWT was favorable, the
Group’s recorded expense would decrease by P1.6 million in 2018 (2017 - P1.4 million).

(e} Impairment of financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial assets

The Group recognizes impairment losses on financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial assets
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of such investments below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is "significant”
or "pralonged” requires judgment. In determining whether the decline in value is significant, the
Group considers historical volatility of market price (i.e., the higher the historical volatility, the greater
the decline in fair value before it is likely to be regarded as significant) and the period of time over
which the market price has been depressed (i.e., a sudden decline is less significant than a sustained fall
of the same magnitude over a longer period). Future events could cause the Group to conclude that
these assets are impaired. Any resulting additional impairment loss could have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements. Allowance for impairment amounted to Po.9 million as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017. Details of the equity investments are shown in Note 5. Details of the
sensitivity analysis performed on change in market price are shown in Note 18.1 (c).
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(f) Impairment of investments in associates

Investments in associates carried at equity method are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

To determine if its investment in CLI is impaired, the Group evaluates whether its ownership interest
in the net assets of its associate after fair value adjustments on non-depreciable non-current assets of
CLI amounting to P2.3 billion in 2017 (2018 - nil) is less than its cost. Other factors considered are
financial health, and short and long-term business outlook, including operational and financing cash
flows. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, CLT's net assets after fair value adjustments amounted to
P2.4 billion, hence, the asset is deemed not impaired. The carrying value of investment in CLI
amounted to P337.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 (Note 6),

(g} Recognition of deferred income tax assets

The Group's assessment on the recognition of certain deferred income tax assets on non-deductible
temporary differences, and carryforward benefit of NOLCO and MCIT, is based on the forecasted
taxable income of the following subsequent periods. This forecast is based on the Group's past results
and future expectations on revenues and expenses. Management believes that future taxable profit
may not be available against which these temporary differences and carryforward benefit of NOLCO
and excess MCIT can be applied, thus, no deferred income tax assets and MCIT were recognized as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 (Note 14).

Note 20 - Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

20.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Finaneial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
meodified by the revaluation of financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 19.
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New interpretation and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual
reporting period commencing January 1, 2018:

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments’ (effective January 1, 2018), deals with the classification,
measurement, and impairment of financial instruments, as well as hedge accounting. PFRS 9
replaces the multiple classification and measurement models for financial assets in PAS 3gwith a
single model that has three (3) classification categories: amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss, Classification under PFRS 9 is driven
by the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and whether the contractual
characteristics of the financial assets represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss
with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income. The classification and measurement of financial liabilities under PFRS g remains the same
as in PAS 39 except where an entity has chosen to measure a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss. For such liabilities, changes in fair value related to changes in own credit risk are
presented separately in other comprehensive income. Upon adoption of PFRS g, the Group
retained its recognition policy for change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset in other
comprehensive income. In addition, the adoption did not impact the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liahilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.

The impairment rules of PFRS g introduce an expected credit losses model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in PAS 39. Such new impairment model will generally result
in earlier recognition of Josses compared to PAS 39. Given the nature of the Group’s receivables
and historical collection rate, the Group did not recognize additional provision for impairment
losses. ‘

The hedging rules of PFRS 9 better align hedge accounting with an entity's risk management
strategies. Also, some of the prohibitions and rules in PAS 39 are removed or changed, making
hedge accounting easier or less costly to achieve for many hedges. The Group has no hedging
activities as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

PFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective January 1, 2018), deals with revenue
recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control
of a good or service and, thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good
or service. Under the new standard, the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and
rewards. The standard replaced PAS 18, Revenue, and PAS 11, Construction contracts, and related
interpretations. A five-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognized which
include: (i} identification of contracts with customers; (ii) identification of the separate
performance obligation; (jif) determination of the transaction price of the contract; {iv) allocation
of the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations; and (v) recognition of
revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied. Revenue may also be recognized earlier than
under current standards if the consideration varies for any reasons (such as for incentives, rebates,
performance fees, royalties, success of an outcome, etc.) - minimum amounts must be recognized if
these are not at significant risk of reversal. Further, the point at which revenue is able to be
recognized may shift: some revenue which is currently recognized at a point in time at the end of a
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contract may have to be recognized over the contract term and vice versa. The Group adopted the
standard on January 1, 2018 but did not impact its consolidated financial statements as its
revenues are mainly derived from management and director’s fees, dividends, interest, and rental
income, which are all fixed in amount and the period covered is defined. Additionally, leases are
outside the scope of PFRS 15, and therefore, there will be no significant impact on the Group's
financial statements upon adoption on January 1, 2018.

(b) New standards, amendments, and interpretations to existing standards not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments, and interpretations to existing standards are effective for
annual periods after January 1, 2018, and have not been early adopted nor applied by the Group in
preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these standards are expected to have
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, while the most relevant one is set
out below:

s PIRS 16, ‘Leases’(effective January 1, 2019). The standard now requires lessees to recognize a
lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease
contracts. The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has included an optional
exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption
can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the
TASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the
combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. Atthe
very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors
and lessees. Under PFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Earlier
application is permitted, but only in conjunction with PFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers. In order to facilitate transition, entities can choose a ‘simplified approach’ that includes
certain reliefs related to the measurement of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability, rather
than full retrospective application; furthermore, the ‘simplified approach’ does not require a
restatement of comparatives. In addition, as practical expedient entities are not required to
reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application (that is, such
contracts are “grandfathered”). The Group will continue to assess the impact of PFRS 16 closer to
the date of mandatory adoption (Group as lessor) but has initially assessed it to not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements since lease term is only for 12 months with annual
renewal.

20.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018. The Group uses uniform accounting policies; any difference between the
subsidiaries and Parent Company are adjusted properly.

All intra-group balances, transactions, and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.
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Assessment of control
The Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

¢ Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

¢  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

* The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
* The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Non-controiling
interests (NCI) pertain to the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly, or indirectly to the Parent
Company. NCI represent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Group and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and consolidated statement of total
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the Parent Company and to the NCI, even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance.
Acquisitions of NCI are accounted for using the acquisition method, whereby the Group considers the
acquisition of NCI as an equity transaction. Any premium or discount on subsequent purchases from
NCI shareholders is recognized directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

* 2 & o & e 9

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, NCI pertains to 44% and 5% ownership of KPMI Retirement Plan
and KPM]I, respectively in GRDC.
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The financial information of GRDC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, GMRI, is provided below.

This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

2018 2017
GRDC GMRI Totat GRDC GMRI Total
Cutrent assets 2,865,879 70,606,483 73,272,362 424 915 89,728,757 90,153,672
Noncurrent assets 3,229,782 571,812,912 575,142 6894 3,843,282 606,640,134 610,483,416
Total assets 5,855 661 642 519,395 648,415,056 4,268,197 696,368,891 700,837,088
Current liabifiies 2,316,473 646,939 2,863,412 1,252,388 367,072 1,618,461
Noncurrent liabilities - 1,600,373 1,600,373 - 1,646,586 1,646,586
Total liabilities 2,316,473 2,247 312 4,563,785 1,252,389 2,013,658 3,266,047
Revenue 3,209,373 10,024,592 13,233,965 2,915 445 10,144,492 13,080,937
Other income - 13,208,327 13,206,327 - 12,396,585 12,396,585
Net income 2,083,552 16,916,850 17,980,402 2,528,221 14,726,009 17,254,230
Total comprehensive income 2,063,552 15,916,850 17,880,402 2,628,221 14,726,009 17,254,230
Cash flows from:
Operating activities (1,095,036) 4,479,768 3,384,732 (2,6824,159) 4,239,085 1,414,936
Investing activities 3,336,000 50,547,602 53,883,602 3,088,800 137,515,918 140,604,718
Financing activities - (70,000,000) (70,000,000} - (131.000,000) (131,000,000)
Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents 2,240,864 (14,872,630}  (12,731,668) 264,841 10,755,013 11,019,654
Accumulated balance of
material NCI - - 358,232,249 - - 383,814,469
Net income attributabie to
material NCI - - 8,841,780 - - 10,076,591

There are no significant restrictions on the Group’s ability to use the assets or settle liabilities within

the Group. There is no difference on the votin

majority shareholders.

20.3 Cash and cash equivalents

g rights on non-controlling interests compared to

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three (3) months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risks of changes in
value, These are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at face amount or at

nominal amount,

20.74 Receivables

Receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business.
These are generally due for settlement within the credit term of 30 to 60 days and, therefore, are all

classified as current. Receivables are recognized injtially at the amount of consideration that is

unconditional unless these contain significant financing components, when these are recognized at fair
value. The Group holds the receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and,
therefore, measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Receivables arising from regular sale of services with average credit term of 30 to 60 days are measured
at the original invoice amount which approximates fair value (as the effect of discounting is
immaterial), less any provision for impairment. Other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment.

Receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting date.
Otherwise, these are classified as non-current assets.

‘The Group applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized within
operating expenses in the consolidated statement of income. When a receivable remains uncollectible
after the Group has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recovertes of amounts previously written-off are credited against operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of income,

The expected loss rates are based on the collection profiles over a period of 60 months before January
1, 2018 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the bank
interest rates to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in this factor.

Prior to the adoption of PFRS 9, a provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate.

Refer to Note 20.5 for other relevant accounting policies on receivables.

20.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
lability or equity of another entity. The Group recognizes a financial instrument in the consolidated
statement of financial position, when and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

20.5.1 Financial assets

{a) Classification

From January 1, 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or

through profit or loss), and
¢ those to be measured at amortized cost.

(34)



The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investiment at FVOCI. The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. As at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group holds financial assets at FVOCI and at amortized cost.

{b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have bheen transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

On the disposal of equity instruments classified as FVOCI, any related balance within the FVOCI
reserve is reclassified to retained earnings.

(c) Measurement

At injtial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three (3) measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of income.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of eontractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in cther comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of income.
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o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized in profit or
loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the peried in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated statement of total comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

(d) Impairment

From January 1, 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected eredit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCIL. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance. The relevant policy on impairment of receivables is disclosed in Note 20.4.

Until December 31, 2017, for equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed
from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss on equity
instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.

(e) Accounting policies applied until December 31, 2017

The Group has applied PFRS o retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative information
due to materiality. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in
accordance with the Group's previous accounting policy. Impairment is driven by incurred losses.

Until December 31, 2017, the Group classified its finaneial assets in the following categories: financial
assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available for sale financial
assets. As at December 31, 2017, the Group only has loans and receivables and available for sale
financial assets with changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income.
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20.5.2 Financial liabilities

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition in the following categories: at FVPL
(including financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at fair value) and financial
liabilities at amortized cost. The Group only has financial liabilities at amortized cost as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the
Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder.

(b) Initial recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received plus directly
attributable transaction costs. A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

(¢) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

20.5.2 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an-
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Group or the counter
party. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are no financial assets and financial liabilities that
were offset.

20.6 Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements from the date on which it becomes an associate. Cumulative adjustments for
periods prior to this event are not recognized.
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Under the equity method, the investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associates, less any dividends declared and impairment in value. If an investor's share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the investor discontinues recognizing its share
of further losses. The interest in an associate is the carrying amount of the investment in the associate
under the equity method together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
investor's net investment in the associate. After application of the equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Group's net investment in the associate. The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group's
share in the results of operations of the associates. This is included in the "Equity in net earnings of
associates” account in the consolidated staternent of income. After the Group's interest is reduced to
zero, additional losses are provided to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate, When there has been a change recognized
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any change and discloses this,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When an associate makes dividend distributions to the Group in excess of the carrying amount, a
liability should only be recognized if the Group is obliged to refund the dividend, has incurred a legal or
constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate. In the absence of such
obligations, the Group recognizes the excess in net profit for the period. When the associate
subsequently makes profits, the Group will start recognizing profits when they exceed the excess cash
distributions recognized in net profit plus any previously unrecognized losses.

The reporting dates of the associates and the Group are identical and the associates’ accounting policies
conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Unrealized gains arising from intercompany transactions with its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the associate, against the investment in the associate. Unrealized
losses are eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred.

Investment in associate is derecognized upon disposal or loss of significant influence over an associate,
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

20.7 Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property held by the owner or by the Jessee under a finance lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the common course of business.

The Group’s investment property, principally comprising of land, building, and condominium units, are
held for capital appreciation and is not occupied by the Group. The Group has adopted the cost model
for its investment properties (Note 7).

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers are
made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale.
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For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the deemed cost of
the property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If the property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation and amortization of other investment properties are computed
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives in years:

Building and improvements 7t025
Condominium units 25

The fair value of the investment properties is categorized as Level 3, which used adjusted inputs for
valuation that are unobservable as at the date of valuation. The inputs used were asking prices of
similar listings and offerings. Significant increases or decreases in asking price would result in higher
or lower fair value of the asset.

Investment properties are derecognized when either these have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment properties are
recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

20.8 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment when that cost is incurred i the recognition criteria are
met. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in
the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives in years:

Condominium units 16 to 25
Office machine, furniture and fixtures 1f0 5
Transportation eguipment 5

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
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20.¢9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, including land held for development, investment property
(carried at fair value), and investment in subsidiaries, are not subject to depreciation and amortization
and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that have definite useful life are subject to depreciation and amortization and are reviewed for
irpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that
are impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is inereased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount
should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately in profit or loss.

20.10 Fair value measurement

Fajr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a non-financial asset is measured based on its highest and best use. The asset’s
current use is presumed to be its highest and best use.

The fair value of financial and non-financial liabilities takes into account non-performance risk, which
is the risk that the entity will not fulfill an obligation.

The Group classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

+ quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

s inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); and

» inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The appropriate level is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

(a) Financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instraments are included in Level 1. The quoted financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial
assets of the Group are classified under Level 1 category.
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the asset
or liability is included in Level 2. There are no financial instruments that fall under the Level 2
category.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrament is
included in Level 3. The unquoted financial asset at FVOCI/available-for-sale financial assets of the
Group fall under the Level 3 category. There were no transfers from one category to another in 2018
and 2017.

(b) Non-financial assets or liabilities

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and applies the
technique consistently. Commonly used valuation techniques are as follows:

s Market approach - A valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable (i.e., similar) assets, liabilities or a group
of assets and liabilities, such as a business.

 Income approach - Valuation techniques that convert future amounts (e.g., cash flows ¢r income
and expenses) to a single current (i.e., discounted) amount. The fair value measurement is
determined on the basis of the value indicated by current market expectations about those future
amounts. :

« Cost approach - A valuation technique that reflects the amount that would be required currently to
replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as current replacement cost).

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

¢ Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

» The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at
the reporting date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

e  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are nsed to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The investment properties of the Group are classified under Level 3 category.

20.11 Equity

(a) Share capital and share premium

Share capital is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the Group issues shares in excess of

par, the excess is recognized as share premium. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the
issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from share premium.
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(b) Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recorded at cost and presented as a deduction from equity. When the shares are
retired, the share capital account is reduced by the par value and the exeess of cost over par value upon
retirement is debited to share premium to the extent of the specific or average share premium when the
shares were issued and to retained earnings for the remaining balance.

(¢) Retained earnings

Retained earnings include current and prior year’s results of operations, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.

Cash dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s
BOD.

20.12 Revenue, income, and expense recognition

Adoption of PFRS 15, Revenue from customer contracts, did not have material impact in the Group’s
revenue and income accounting policy other than from the shift in the revenue recognition model from
risks and rewards to control model.

(a) Revenue and income

The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue or income is recognized:

(i) Management fees

Management fees are recognized over time as the services are rendered based on the fixed terms and
fixed price of the management contract.

(i) Directors' fees

Directors' fees are recognized over time as the services are rendered based on the fixed terms and fixed
price of the contract.

Other income not covered by PFRS 15, Revenue from customer contracts.

(i} Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(ii} Interestincome

Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.
(iii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at point in time when the shareholders' right to receive the payment is
established.
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(b) Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those relating
to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the period these are
incurred.

20.13 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include items such as salaries and wages, social security contributions
and non-monetary benefits, if expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees rendered the related services. Short-term employee benefits
are recognized as expense as incurred. When an employee has rendered service to the Group during
the reporting period, the Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term emplayee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
amount already paid. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value, if material.

The related liability on employee benefits is derecognized when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled.

20.14 Leases - Group as lessor

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date, whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific assel or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
after the inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in the contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal and extension
was initially inchuded in the lease term;

(c) thereis a change in the determination of whether the fulfiliment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

{d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date of the change
in circumstances that gave rise to the reassessment for seenarios {a), (¢), and (d) above and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are

classified as operating leases. Lease income from these operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits are measured initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the using effective interest method. Refundable deposits are measured at the original
amount (as the effect of discounting is immaterial). These are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one (1) year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
these are presented as non-current Habilities. These are derecognized once refunded to customers.

Advance rentals

Advance rentals represent rentals paid in advance by the tenants that are to be applied in subsequent
month’s rental. These are classified as current Habilities if payment is due within one (1) year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, these are presented as non-current
liabilities. These are derecognized once applied against rent due.

20.15 Income taxes

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
Habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates based on existing laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax losses (NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess MCIT) to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The Group reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize a previously unrecognized deferred
income tax asset.
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Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that the deferred income tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are derecognized when related bases are realized/settled or
when it is no longer realizable/due,

20.16 Other assets
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of value added tax except:

s where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the acquisition cost of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

Input VAT is carried at face amount or at nominal amount less allowance for impairment loss.
The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax anthority is included as part of other
current assets or liabilities in the consclidated statement of financial position.

CWT is recognized as assets in the period such excess income tax payments become available as tax
credits to the Group and carried over to the extent that it is probable that the benefit will flow to the
Group. These are derecognized when there is a legally enforceable right, as prescribed by the
applicable laws, to apply the recognized amounts against the related income tax due.

20.17 Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are recognized in the period in which the related money,
goods or services are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Group is established.
These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective
interest method. Accounts payable and other current liabilities are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within 12 months or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer).

If not, these are presented as non-current labilities.

Accounts payables and other current liabilities are measured at the original invoice amount (as the
effect of discounting is immaterial). The relevant policies on classification, recognition, measurement
and derecognition are described in Note 20.5. Payables to government agencies and advance rentals
are not considered financial liabilities but are derecognized similarly.
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20.18 Earnings per share
(a) Basie

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, excluding
common shares purchased by and held as treasury shares.

(b} Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common shares. As at report date, the
Parent Company has no dilutive potential common shares.

20.19 Operating segments

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business segments is
presented in Note 16.

20.20 Provisions

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

20.21 Contingencies

Contingent labilities are not recognized in the consoclidated financial statements but are disclosed in
the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes when inflows of economic benefits are probable. Ifit becomes virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

20.22 Events after the financial reporting date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end

events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material,
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Effective as at December 31, 2018

The following table summarizes the effective standards and interpretations as at December 31, 2018:

Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicabie
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics v
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
{Revised} Standards v
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27 Cost of an
investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlied Entity or
Associate v
Amendments to PFRS 1. Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters v
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters v
Amendments to PFRS 1. Severe Hyperinfiation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters v
Amendmenis to PFRS 1. Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Measurement of Cash-settied
Share-based Payment Transactions*® v
PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised) Amendments to PFRS 3: Definition of a business v
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts v
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Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicable

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financial v
Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued .
Cperations v
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financiat Assets and Financial Liabilities v
Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, and PAS 39 Hedge v
Accounting
Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7: Mandatory
Effective Date and Transition Disclosures v
PFRS 8 Operating Segments v
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments v
Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, and PAS 39: Hedge
Accounting v

Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7: Mandatory
Effective Date and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation* v
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements v
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Application of the Consolidation Exception for
Investment Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture® v
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements v
Amendments to PFRS 11: Acquisition of an interest in a
Joint Operation v
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Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Amendments o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Application of the Consclidation Exceptfion for
Investment Entities v
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts v
PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers v
Amendment to PFRS 15: Clarification to PFRS 15 v
PFRS 16 Leases® Not early adopted.
PFRS 17 Insurance contracts* v
Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements v
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1. Capital Disclosures v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1. Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation v
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income v
Amendments {o PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative v
Amendments fo PAS 1 and PAS 8: Definition of
material* v
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors v
Amendmenis to PAS 1 and PAS 8: Befinition of
rmaterial* v
PAS10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 12 income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 16 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets v
Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealized Losses v
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Acceptable
v

Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

(3




Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 19: Coniributions from Empioyees
or Third Parties v
Amendment to PAS 19: Plan Setflement, Curtailment or
Settlement® v
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance v
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment to PAS 21: Net investment in a Foreign
Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
{Revised)
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirernent Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 27: Use of Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Revised)  Famendments of PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28.
Application of the Consolidation Exception for
Investment Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contributions of Assets between an investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture v
Amendment to PAS 28: Measuring an Associate or Joint
Venture at Fair Value v
Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures*® v
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation v
Amendment fo PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v

(4)




Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicable

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities v
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v

Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount

Disclosures v
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation and Amortization v
PAS 40 Investment Property v

Amendment to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment

Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture v

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants \
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

Similar Liabilities v
IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar

Instruments v
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a

Lease v
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,

Restoration and Environmentai Rehabilitation Funds v
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market

- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment v
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
IFRIC 10 interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction v

Amendments to IFRIC 14: Prepayments of & Minimum

Funding Requirement v
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v

(5)




Not Not
Adopted | Adopted | Applicabie

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments v
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

Mine v
IFRIC 21 Levies v
FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration v
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments® v
sic-7 introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to

Operating Activities v
SIC15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity

or its Shareholders v
sic-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions involving the

Legal Form of a Lease v
Sic.29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

The standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards marked with an asterisk (*) have been
issued but are not yet effective for December 31, 2018 financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
standards, amendments and interpretations have not been early adopted.

The standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are labeled as “Not Applicable”
are already effective as at December 31, 2018 but are currently not relevant to the Group because it has
currently no related transactions.
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, based on audited
financial statements, beginning

Less: Cumulative fair value adjustment

180,223,056

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, adjusted
Add:  Netincome actually earned/realized during the period 32,335,305
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (except those atiributable to
cash and cash equivalents)

Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustment

Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS

180,223,056

Sub-total 32,335,305

212,558,361

Add: Non actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation in revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax)

Net income actually earned during the period

212,558,361

Add (Less):
Dividend declarations during the year (5,780,342)
Appropriations of retained earnings during the year
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares {22,622 976)
Accumulated share in income of an associate

(28,403,318)

184,155,043




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Map of the Group of Companies within which the Reporting Entity Belongs

As at December 31, 2018

KEPWEALTH, INC. KEPPEL CORPORATION LIMITED PUBLIC
52.8% 29.2% 18%
> KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. N
100% 51%
¥
GOODWEALTH
KPSI PROPERTY, INC. ALY 8
DEVELOPMENT. INC.

100%

GOODSOIL MARINE
REALTY, INC.

l25%

CONSORT LAND, INC.




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Key Financial Ratios
As at December 31, 2018 and 2017
{With comparative figures as at December 31, 2016)

2018 2017 2018
. Current and Liquidity Ratios
1. Current ratio _
(Current assets/Current liabilities) 18.02 31.01 52.22
2. Acid test ratio or Quick ratio
(Monetary current assets/Current liabilities) 17.96 30.93 52.20
. Solvency ratic
{Net income + depreciation}/Total liabilities 0.74 4.97 2.80
. Debt to equity ratio
(Total liabilities/Shareholders’ equity) 0.02 0.01 0.01
. Asset to equity ratio 1.02 1.01 1.01
. Debt ratio
(Totat iabilities/Total assets) 0.02 0.01 0.01
Interest coverage ratio
(EBIT/Interest expense) - - -
. Profitability ratios
1.Return on asseis (%) 1.40 540 2.31
{Net income/Tolal assets)
2.Return on equity (%) 1.43 5.46 2.33
(Net income/Shareholders’ equity)
. Earnings per share atributable to equity holders of parent (P) 0.09 0.078 0.24

Book value per share attributable to equity holders of parent (P) 10.98 10.73 10.05




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule A - Financial Assets
As at December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Number of Amount
shares or shown in the Valug based
principat Consolidated on market
amount of Statement of quotations at Incorme
Name of issuing entity and description of bonds and Financial statement received and
each issue notes Position date accrued
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income* )
Wack-Wack Golf and Country Club, Inc. 1 35,000,000 35,000,000
Universal Rightfield Property Holdings, nc. 4,400,000 1 1
35,000,001 35,000,001
Cash and cash equivalents™ 39,842,151 39,842,151 1,489,137
Recgivables™* 277,255,220 277,255,220 10,720,062
352,087,372 352,087,372 12,209,199

* See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
** See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
#** See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule D - Intangible Assets - Other Assets
December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Other
Chargedic Chargedte  changes
Beginning  Additions cost and other  additions Ending
Description balance atcost  expenses accounts (deductions) balance

Not applicable




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule E - Long-Term Debt
As at December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount shown

under caption Amount shown

“Current portion of under caption

long-term debt” in  “Long-term debt” in

Amount authorized related balance related balance

Title of issue and type of obligation by indenture sheet sheet”

Not applicable




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule F - Indebtedness to Related Parties
As at December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Name of affiliate Beginning balance Ending balance
Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (advance rental) 232,956 232 956
Keppe! Philippines Marine, Inc. (security deposit) 232,956 232,956

465,912 465,912

See Notes 9 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule G - Guarantees of Securities of Other [ssuers
As at Decemiber 31, 2018
(Al amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount owned

Title of issue of by the company
Name of issuing entity of securities each class of Total amount for which
guaranteed by the company for which securities  guaranteed and statement Nature of
statement is filed guaranieed cutstanding is filed gusraniee

Not applicable




Schedule H - Share Capital
As at December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Number of Number of shares held by
shares
reserved for
opfions,
Number of warrants,
Number of shares | conversions, Directors,
shares issued and and other officers, and
Title of issue authorized cutstanding rights Affiliates employees Others
Issued shares:
Common class "A” 90,000,000 39,840,970 - - - -
Common class “B” 200,000,000 33,332,530 - - - -
Totat 280,000,000 73,173,500 - - - -
Less treasury shares:
Common ciass "A” - 3,674,000 - - - -
Common class "B" - 11,696,081 - - - -
Total - 15,370,081 - - - -
Outstanding shares:
Common class “A” - 36,166,970 - 28,817,182 41 7,349,747
Common class “B” - 21,636,449 - 18,809,835 3 3,026,611
Total - 57,803,419 - 47427017 44 10,376,358

See Notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 & DECEMBER 31, 2018

(IN PHILIPPINE PESOS)
Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 19) P42 697,577 £39.482,151
Receivables — net (Notes 7, 14 and 19) 279,726,726 277,255,220
Other current assets - net (Note 8) 4,374,730 1,014,501
Total Current Assets 326,799,033 317,751,872
Nencurrent Assets
Finaneial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net 35,000,001 35,000,001
Investment in associates (Note 10} 423,746,854 421,739,664
Lease receivables — net of current portion (Notes 7 and 14) 28,079,344 28,310,410
Investment properties — net (Note 11) 205,288,439 205,288,439
Property and equipment - net (Note 12) 86,301 98,896
Other noncurrent assets (Note 21) 4,140,710 4,140,710
Total Noncurrent Assets 096,341,649 694,578,120
TOTAL ASSETS £1.,023,140,682 £1,012,329,992
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 13) £17,013,398 214,547,091
Refundable deposits 2,398,844 2,409,883
Income tax payable 881,646 677,714
Total Current Liabilities 20,293,888 17,634,688
Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax liability 1,588,819 1,600,372
1,588,819 1,600,372
Total Liabilities 21,882,707 19,235,060

(Forward)



Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Capital stock (Note 15) 73,173,500 73,173,500
Additional paid-in capital 73,203,734 73,203,734
Retained earnings (Note 16) 482,890,589 476,686,367
Investment revaluation reserve (Note 9) 34,422,058 134,422,058
Treasury shares (Nofe 16) (22,622,976) (22,622,976)
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 041,066,905 634,862,683
Noncontrolling Interests 360,191,070 358,232,249
Total Equity 1,001,257,975 993,094,932
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY £1,023,140,082 £1,012,329,992

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018
(IN PHILIPPINE PESOS)

(UNAUDITED)

March 31 March 31
2019 2018
REVENUES
Rental income (Notes 11 and 14) 29,632,973 D 3,556,233
Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 10) 2,007,190 2,800,918
Interest income (Notes & and 7) 4,644,525 2,594,009
Management fees (Note 14) 189,000 189,000
Total Revenues 16,473,688 0,140,160
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 17) (7,628,365) (4,930,508)
OTHER INCOME
Director’s fee 20,000 30,000
Others 16,353 9,000
Total Other Income 36,353 39,000
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,881,676 4,248,652
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX {718,633) (562,916)
NET INCOME 28,163,043 £3,685,736
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent £4,204,222 £1,318,263
Noncontrolling interests 1,958,821 2,367,473
P38.163,043 23,685,736
FARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT £0.107 £0.023

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

(IN PHILIPPINE PESOS)
(UNAUDITED)
March 31 March 31
2019 2018
NET INCOME £8,163,043 23,685,736
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss
Unrealized fair value gain on available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) - 5,000,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £8,163,043 28,685,736
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent 26,204,222 26,318,263
Noncontrolling interest 1,958,821 2,367,473
£8,163,043 28,685,736

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

(IN PHILIPPINE PESOS)
(UNAUDITED)

Mareh 31 March 31
2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax 8,881,676 24 248,652
Adjustments for:
Provision for impairment losses — net (Note 8) 829,550 96,632
Depreciation (Notes 11, 12, and 17) 18,844 78,939
Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 10) (2,007,196) (2,800,918)
Interest income (Notes 6, 7 and 14) (4,644,525) (2,594,009
Operating income (loss) before working capital changes 3,078,355 (970,704)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (Notes 7, 14, and 19) (2,175,331) (1,032,006)
Other assets (Note §) (4,189,779) (3,976,502)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 2,466,307 (176,860)
Refundable deposits (11,039) 9,043
Net cash generated from operations (831,487) (6,147,029)
Income tax paid (526,254) . (364,450)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,357,741) (6,511,479)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 4,579,416 2,530,208
Collection of loan receivable from related party - 12,500,000
Loans granted to a related party - (18,000,000)
Acquisition of property and equipment (6,249 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,573,167 (2,969,792)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid to noncontrolling interest (Notel6) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities - -
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,215,426 (9,481,271)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 39,482,151 87,943,929
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD (Note 6) P42.697,577 278,462,658

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in Philippine Pesos)

1. Corporate Information

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries, KPSI Property, Inc. (KPSI)
and Goodwealth Realty Development Corporation (GRDC), including GRDC’s subsidiary, Geodsoil Marine Realty,
Inc. (GMRI) (collectively referred to as “the Group™), are incorporated in the Philippines. The Parent Company was
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 24, 1975 with registered office
address is Unit 3-B Country Space 1 Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village, Barangay Bel-Afr,
Makati City. The Parent Company is involved in investment holding while the subsidiaries are in the real estate
industry.

In 1987, the Parent Company became a publicly listed entity through initial public offering (IPO) of its shares.
There was no follow on offering after the JPO,

KPII’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), As of March 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018, the top three (3) shareholders are the following:

Percentage of Ownership

Kepwealth Inc. 52.8%
Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL) 29.2%
Public 18.0%

The following are the Parent Company’s subsidiaries which all belong to the real estate industry:

Percentage of Ownership

KPSI o 100%
GRDC 1%
GMRI 51%

GRDC is 44% owned by Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Retirement Plan (KPMIRP) and 5% by Keppel Philippines
Marine, Inc. (KPMI). GRDC owns 93.7% of GMRI, thus, KPHI has 51% effective ownership on GMRYI, including
its 3.2% separate interest in GMRI.

GMRI has 25% shareholdings with Consort Land, Inc. (CLI), providing KPHI a 13% indirect ownership in CLI

The Parent Company and all its associates were incorporated in the Philippines.

The Parent Company has 5 regular employees as at March 31, 2019 (2018 — 7 employees). The administrative
functions of the subsidiaries are handled by the Parent Company’s management.

2. Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretation of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) which
have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

‘The unandited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of financial asset at FYOCL/available-for-sale financial assets. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Philippine Peso (®B), which is the Group’s functional currency. Amounts are rounded off to the
nearest Philippine Peso except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the unandited consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, :
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Bagis of Consolidation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
company, using consistent accounting policies. The Group uses uniform accounting policies; any difference
between subsidiaries and Parent Company are adjusted properly.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.

Assessment of Control
The Group controls an investee if and only if' the Group has:
e Power over the investes (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee) '
o  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
s  The ability to se its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances In assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

s  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights assessing from other contractual arrangements

» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Non-controlling interests (NCI) pertain to the equity in

a subsidiary not aitributable, directly or indirectly to the Parent Company. NCI represent the portion of profit or loss

and the net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of income and

consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
_ position and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are aftributed to the equity holders of the
Parent Company and to the NCI, even if it results in the NCI having a deficit balance. Acquisitions of NCI are
accounted for using the acquisition method, whereby the Group considers the acquisition of NCI as an equity
transaction. Any premium or discount on subsequent purchases from NCI shareholders is recognized directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the parent. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an acquisition, If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in prefit and loss

o Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit of loss or retained

earnings, an appropriate as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets and
liabilities

As of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, NCI pertains to 44% and 5% ownership of KPMIRFP and KPM]I,

respectively in GRDC.

The financial information of GRDC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, GMRI is provided below. This information is
based on amounts before inter-company elimination.

March 31, 2019 (Unaudited) December 31, 2018 {Audited)

GRDC GMRI Total GRDC GMRI Total
Current assets 01,089,690 B72,972,598 274,062,288 2,665,879 £70,606,483 273,272,362
Nomncurrent assets 3,229.783 571,681,845 574,911,628 3,229,782 571,912,912 575,142,694
Total assets 4319473 644,654,443 648,973,916 3,895,661 642,519,395 648,415,056
Current liabilities 722,529 820,894 1,543,423 2,316,473 646,939 2,963,412
Noncurrent liabilities - 1,588,819 1,588,819 - 1,600,373 1,600,373
Total liabilities 722,529 2,409,713 3,132,242 2,316,473 2,247,312 4,563,785
Revenue 63,514 3,548,251 3,611,765 2,173,373 10,024,592 12,197,965
Qther income - 9,000 9.000 1,036,000 13,206,327 14,242 327
Net income (loss) 17,754 1,972,649 1,990,403 2,063,381 15,916,830 17,980,231
Total comprehensive income (loss) 17,754 1,972,649 1,990,403 2,063,381 15,916,850 17,980,231
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Cash flows from:

Operating activities (1,647,353) (3.441,779) (5,089,132) (1,095,036) 4,479,768 3,384,732
Investing activities - 974,950 974,950 3,336,000 50,547,602 53,883,602
Financing activities - - - - (70,000,000) (70,000,000}
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents {1,647,353)  (2,466,829) (4,114,182) 2,240,964 (14,972,630} (12,731,666)
Accumulated balance of material NCI - - 360,191,070 - - 358,232,249
Net income attributable to material NCI - - 1,958,821 - - 8,941,780

There are no significant restrictions on the Group’s ability to use assets or settle liabilities within the Group. There
is no difference on the voting rights of non-controlling interests as compared to majority stockholders.

3. Summary of Changes in Significant Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(@) New interpreiations and amended stondards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting period

commencing January 1, 2018:

e PFRS 9, Financial instruments (effective January 1, 2018). Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Group retained
its recognition policy for change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset in other comprehensive
income. In addition, the adoption did not impact the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.

The impairment rules of PFRS 9 introduce an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss
impairment model used in PAS 39. Such new impairment model will generally result in earlier recognition
of losses compared to PAS 39. Given the nature of the Group’s receivables and historical collection rate,
the Group did not recognize additional provision for impairment for losses.

The hedging rules of PFRS 9 better align hedge accounting with an entity’s risk management strategies.
Also, some of the prohibitions and rules in PAS 39 are removed and changed, making hedge accounting
easier and less costly to achieve for many hedges. The Group has no hedging activities as at March 31,
2019 and December 31, 2018.

o PFRS 13, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective January 1, 2018), The Group adopted the
standard on January 1, 2018 but did not impact its consolidated financial statements as its revenues are
mainly derived from management and director’s fees, dividends, interests, and rental income, which are all
fixed in amount and the period covered is defined. Additionally, the leases are outside the scope of PFRS
15 and therefore, there will be no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements upon January 1,
2018.

(b) New standards, amendments fo existing standards and interpretations not yet adopted,

A number of new standards, and amendmenis and interpretations to existing, standards are effective for annual

periods after January I, 2019 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

None of these are expected to have an effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements, except as set out

below: :

s PFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (effective January 1, 2019). The Group will continue to assess the impact of PFRS 16
closer to the date of mandatory adoption (Group as lessor) but has initially assessed it to not have
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements since lease term is only for 12 months
agreements. However, it will continue its assessment and finalize the same upon effective date with annual
renewal.

4, Significant Accounting Policies
The Group’s disclosures on significant accounting principles and policies and practices are substantially the same
with the disclosures made in December 31, 2018 audited financial statements and for the period ended March 31,
2019, Any additional disclosures on the significant changes of accounts and subsequent events are disclosed in the
succeeding notes and presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

5. Significant Accounting Judgment, Estimates and Assumptions

The Group’s unaudited consolidated financial statements prepared under PFRS require management to make
judgments and estimates that affects amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes.
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Future events may occur which will cause the judgment and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.
The effects of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the conselidated financial statements as they
become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

As of March 31, 2019, there were no judgment, seasonal or cyclical aspects that materially affect the operation of the
Group, no substantial nature and amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior iterim perieds of the
current financial year or changes in the estimates of amounts reported in December 31, 2018 andited financial
statements, and no unusual items that materially affect the Group’s assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash
flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of;

Unaudited Audited

March 31 December 31

2019 2018

Cash equivalents £36,704,507 P28,396,321
Cash in banks 5,988,070 11,080,830
Cash on hand 5,000 5,000
B42,697,577 B39,482,151

Cash equivalents are short-term investments which are placed in financial institutions for varying periods of up to
three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earned interest at annual interest
that ranged from 5.0% to 5.25% during the first quarter of 2019 and 2.0% to 5.0% in 2018. Cash in banks eamn
interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents amounted to 0.4 million both for the periods ended March 31, 2019
and 2018, Accrued interest receivable from cash and cash equivalents amounted to 20.08 million in March 31, 2019
and 20.1 million in December 31, 2018.

Receivables
This account consists of:
Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Loan receivable from a related party (Note 14) £272,000,000 B272,000,000
Lease receivables:
Related parties 34,060,463 32,007,455
306,066,463 304,007,455
Nontrade 2,152,580 2,152,580
Interest receivable (Note 14) 1,623,284 1,558,175
Due from related parties (Note 14) 116,322 -
309,958,649 307,718,210
Less noncurrent portion:
I ease receivables (Note 14) 28,079,343 28,310,410
28,079,343 28,310,410
281,879,306 279,407,800
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 2,152,580 2,152,580
P279,726,726 P277,255,220

The loan receivables from a related party pertains to unsecured, short-term and long-term interest-bearing loans
obtained by KPMI, an entity under common control, from the Parent Company, GMRI and KPSI. (see Note 14)

Current portion of lease receivables and due from related parties are non-interest bearing and are generally 30 to 60-
day terms. The noncurrent portion of lease receivables pertains to the difference between siraight line method and
contractual annual rents, These amounts are expected to reverse more than one (1) year from financial reporting
date.

Non-trade receivable represents the Group’s claim against a seller of a parcel of land, the title of which has not been
transferred to the Group. The nontrade receivable has been outstanding for more than two (2) years and has been
fully provided for.
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Interest receivable represents the Group’s accrued interest on cash and cash equivalents and loan receivables.

Due from related parties representing receivables relating to reimbursement of expenses, is non-interest bearing and

is due and demandable.

Other Current Assets - net

This account consists of:

Unauadited Andited

March 31 December 31

2019 2018

Creditable withholding taxes (CWT) £5,416,050 B4,562,235

Prepaid expenses 3,297,241 5,929

Advances to employees 564,548 395,135

Input VAT 232,200 344,334

Deposits 61,645 55,645

Others 36,373 55,000

9,608,057 5,418,278

Less allowance for impairment loss 5,233,327 4,403,777

P4,374,730 B1,014,501

Movements in the provision for impairment related to Input VAT and CWT as follows:
Unaudited March 31, 2019 Input VAT CWT Total

Balance at the beginning of the period - P4,403,777 P4,403,777

Provision for the period - 829,550 829,550

Recovery of provision - - -

Net provision (recovery) - 829,550 829,550

Balance at the end of the period - P5,233,327 P5,233,327

Audited December 31, 2018 Input VAT CWT Total
Balance at the beginning of the period P642,987 £2,810,307 B3,453,294
Provision for the year - 1,636,660 1,636,660
Recovery of provision (642,987) (43,190) (636,177)
Net provision {recovery) (642,987) 1,593,470 950,483
Write-off - - -
Balance at the end of the period - £4,403,777 £4,403,777

In December 31, 2018, the Group recovered input VAT and CWT amounting to 0.6 million and £0.04 million,
respectively, and such were applied against output VAT and income tax due, respectively. There is no recovery of

provision as of March 31, 2019,

Financial assets through other comprehensive income

This account consists of investments in golf club shares:

Unaudited Audited

March 31 December 31

2019 2018

Quoted share—at fair value {cost R577,943) B35,000,001 P35,000,001
Ungquoted share - at cost 880,000 880,000
35,880,001 35,880,001

Less allowance for impairment 880,000 880,000
235,000,001 £35,000,001

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), net as at December 31, 2018 were
previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets, net.

The above investments represent proprietary club shares that provide the Group with opportunities for return through

dividend income and trading gains. These do not have fixed maturity or coupon rate and the movement is based on
closing market prices obtained in an active market.
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The movement in the equity investments is as follows:

Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the period ¥35,000,001 $£20,000,001
Fair value gain - 15,000,000
Balance at the end of the period B35,000,001 £35,000,001
The movement of investment revaluation reserve for the peried is as follows:

Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the period P34,422,058 19,422,058
Fair value gain : - 15,000,000
Balance at the end of the period ) P34,422,058 £34,422,058

10. Investment in Associates — at equity

This account congists of:

Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Investment in associate - CLI P337,5%96,800 £337,596,800

Accumulated share in net income:
Balance at beginning of the period 84,142,864 82,838,564
Equity in net earnings of associate 2,007,190 10,037,399
Cash dividend received - (8,733,099
Balance at end of the period 86,150,054 84,142,864
P423,746,854 P421,739.664

CLI

GMRI owns 25% investment or 17,466,196 shares out of 70,000,000 shares in CLI, a company incorporated in the
Philippines, as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. CLI is involved in property leasing and power
distribution with the same principal place of business as KPHI.

KPMI has a Share Purchase Agreement with GMRI for the transfer of 2,950,000 shares dated September 6, 2012. As
at this period, the agreement is still awaiting the issuance of tax clearance before the actual transfer of shares.
However, GMRI is already exercising 25% beneficial ownership to CLL

CLI's financial information for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 follows:

Unaudited Audited

March 31 December 31

2019 2018

Current assets P94,176,311 - P80,008,907
Noncurrent assets 254,190,425 254,610,779
Total assets 348,366,736 334,619,686
Current liabilities 27,483,753 21,765,461
Total Habilities 27,483,753 21,765,461
Net assets 320,882,983 312,854,225
Revenue 36,494,139 164,591,451
Income before income tax 8,916,014 43,247 488
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 8,028,758 40,149,597

The Group has 13% effective ownership in net assets of CLI or 241.7 million share in net asset (stated at cost) as at
March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 — 2 40.7 million). The non-current assets of CLI represent prime lots held for
appreciation, which are carried at cost. The fair value of the property is 2.3 billion as at December 31, 2018 based
on the latest valuation report of an independent appraiser.
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For the quarters ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s equity in net earnings of CLI amounted fo £2.0
million and 82,8 million, respectively. No dividend declared and paid by CLI both for the periods ended March 31,
2019 and 2018. '

The difference between the share in net asset and carrying amount of the investment amounting to 2423.7 million as
of March 31, 2019 pertains to fair value adjustments on prime land holdings of CLI (December 31, 2018 - 24217
million).

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends or to repay any loans and advances made by the Group. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s investment in associate.

11. Investment Properties - net
This accoumnt consists off
Unaudited March 31, 2019
Condominium

Land Building Units Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning and end
of the period P205,288,439 B- £3,689,178 P208,977,617
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning - - 3,689,178 3,689,178
Depreciation — - - -
Balance at end of the period — - 3,689,178 3,689,178
Net book value P205,288,439 B- - 205,288,439

Audited December 31, 2018

Condominium

Land Building Units Total
Cost:
January 1 P205,666,439 PB54,751 P3,689,178 £210,210,368
Disposal (378,000) (854,751) - (1,232,751)
December 31 205,288,439 - 3,689,178 208,977,617
Accumulated depreciation:
January 1 - 619,250 3,689,178 4,308,428
Depreciation - 235,501 - 235,501
Disposal — (854,751) - {854,751
December 31 — - 3,689,178 3,689,178
Net book value £205,288.439 - - F205,288,439

In 2018, the Group sold a certain land, building and improvements with carrying value of P0.4 million, for a total
consideration of P2.3 million resulting in a gain on sale amounting to P1.9 million.

Land, land improvement and building in Batangas are leased to related parties (Note 14) while condominjum units
are leased to related and third parties.

The investment properties have an aggregate fair value of £1,022.0 million based on an appraisal by an independent
appraiser in December 2018. The fair value of the investment properties was determined using inputs such as
discount rates, terminal yields, expected vacancy rates as estimated by the independent appraiser or management
based on comparable transactions and industry data.

Rental income atiributable to the investment properties for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 consists of
the following:

Unandited Unaudited

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Third parties £6,323,928 £238,188
Related parties 3,309,045 3,318,043
P9,632,973 £3,556,233
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‘Details of the advance rentals and refundable deposits received from third party and related customers as at March
31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Unaudited March 31, 2019 Audited December 31, 2018

Third parties  Related Total  Third parties Related Total
Advance rentals - Current £2,070,000 P232956 $2,302,956 B B232,956 B232,956
Refundable deposits - Current 2,165,888 '232956 2,398,844 2,176,927 232,956 2,409,883
12. Property and Equipment
This account consists of:
Unaudited March 31, 2019
Office machine,
Commercial furniture Transportation
Building and fixtures Equipment Total
Cost:
Janoary 1 $5,397,020 P4560,715 £776,186 £6,029,921
Additions - 6,249 - 6,249
March 31 5,397,020 462,964 - 776,186 6,636,170
Accumulated depreciation:
January 1 5,397,020 357,819 776,186 6,531,025
Depreciation - 18,844 - 18,844
March 31 5,397,020 376,663 776,186 6,549,869
Net Book Value - £86,301 - 286,301
Audited December 31, 2018
Office machine,
Commercial furniture ~ Transportation
Building and fixtures Equipment Total
Cost; '
January 1 P5,397,020 P495224 B776,186 668,430
Additions - 44,357 - 44,357
Write-off - {82,866) - (82,866)
December 31 P5,397,020 - B456,715 P776,186 6,629,921
Accumulated depreciation:
Janmary 1 5,397,020 360,334 776,186 6,533,740
Depreciation - - 80,151 - 80,151
Write-off - {82,866) - (82,866)
December 31 5,397,020 357,819 776,186 6,531,025
Net Book Value - P08,896 - P9R.896
The assets written off in 2018 pertain to fully depreciated and obsolete office furniture and fixtures.
Fully depreciated assets amounting to 6.5 million are still in use as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
13. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
This account consists off
Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Accrued expenses P13,331,173 P12,131,413
Unearned rent 613,581 613,581
Payable to government agencies 436,646 515,943
Advance rentals 232,956 232,956
Others 2,399,042 1,053,198
B17,013,398 214,547,091

Accrued expenses pertain to accrued professional fees, andit fee, directors’ fees, fringe and other employee benefits.
These are noninterest-bearing and generally have terms of 30-60 days.
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Unearned rent pertains to rental income received in advance.

Payable to government agencies pertains to output VAT and withholding taxes, which are normally settled within
one (1) month after the reporting period.

Advance rentals from related parties and third-party customers are applied against rent due at the end of the lease

term.

Other accounts payable pertains to unclaimed monies or dividends by stockholders which are noninterest-bearing
and due and demandable at balance sheet date.

14. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with companies which are considered related parties.
Significant related transactions and balances as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 follow:

As of March 31, 2019 Ay of December 31, 2018
Outsianding OCutstanding
Transactions receivable Transactions receivable
Related Party Notes (1% quarter) (payable) (annual) (payable) Terms and conditions
Entities under commaon control
Rental Income (a)
KPMI B3,204,045 B34,066.463 R12,825,179 R32,007,455 The outstanding balance is
Keppel IVI Investments, [nc. (KIVT) 75,000 - 300,000 - collectibie in cash, with term of
Keppel Energy and Consultancy Inc. 30t 60 days_fg.m’? date of each
(KECT) 30,000 ) 120,000 . fransaction. This fs non-
interest bearing and unsecured.
7 3,309,045 34,066,463 13,245,179 32,007,455
Advance rental and deposit — KPMI (a)
Advance rentals 13 - (232,956} - (232,956) The outstanding halance is
Refundable deposits - (232,956} - (232,956) Eﬂse_c‘le and non-interest
earing.
Various expenses and charges (b)
KPMI 116,322 116,322 1,332,982 - The outstanding balence is
Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. 1,434 - 18,621 - umsectred, non-interest
KECT 6.461 - _ . bearing, and payable in cash on
demand.
7 124,217 116,322 1,351,603 -
Loans — KPMI {c) 7 - 272,000,000 150,000,000 272,000,000 These are interest bearing and
Collection of loan receivables - - 120,000,000 - unsecured.
Interest income - KPMI 4,241,891 1,541,327 10,720,062 1,479,386
Management fees (d)
Kepwealth, Inc. 69,000 - 276,000 -
KECI 60,000 - 240,000 -
KIVI 45,000 - 180,000 -
Kepventure, Inc. 15,000 - 60,000 -
189,000 - 756,000 -
Other Income (e) '
Commission — KPMI - 412,611 -
Director’s Fees
KPMI 20,000 60,000
KPPI - - 270,000 -
20,000 - 742,611 -
Associates
Cash dividend received 10 - - 8,733,099 -
Shar'eholders — Unclaimed dividends or The outstanding belence s
monies unsecured, non-interest
KPHI 13 - (318,198) 5,780,432 (318,198) bearing, and payable in cash on
KPMI Retirement Plan i3 - - 660,000 (660,000)  or before the due date as
KPMI i3 - - 75,000 (75,000)  agreed by the BOL),
- (318,198) 6,515,432 (1,053,198)
Key management personnel (f)
Salaries and other employee benefits 13,17 3,040,734 (10,350,790) 14,791,536 (9,852,839) The outstanding payable is

unsecured, non-interest
bearing, payable every
designated period on employee
contracts.
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Outstanding balances of transactions with related parties are unsecured and settlsments are made in cash. As ofthis
period, the Group has not made any provision for doubtful accounts relating to amounts owed by related parties.
This assessment is undertaken each financial period through examining the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates.

The following are the Group’s significant transactions with related parties:
a. Lease agreemenis

(i) GMRI has lease agreement with KPMLI, an affiliate, covering the properties in the site of KPMI’s shipyard for a
period of 50 years beginning 1993. Rent income based on straight-line method amounted to $2.4 million as of
March 31, 2019 and 2018, Total cutstanding lease receivables representing lease differential in the computation
of rent income using straight line method amounted to #33.5 million and B32.0 million as of March 31, 2019
and December 31, 2018, respectively.

In 2015, GMRI entered into a new lease agreement with KPMI for another parcel of land covering a period of
one (1) year commencing on January 1, 2015, subject to yearly renewal. Rental income derived from these
transactions amounted to B0.1 million as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. Advance rentals and deposits of KPMI
amounted to 0.1 million as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 which will be applied against the rent
due at the end of the contract. Ouistanding receivable as of March 31, 2019 amounted to £0.07 million
{December 31, 2018 — nil).

(ii) GRDC leases its properiies to KPMI, for a period of one (1) year commencing on January 1, 2015, subject to
yearly renewal under such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by both parties. Rental
income amounted to B0.06 million as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. Outstanding receivable as of March 31,
2019 amounted to £0.04 million (December 31, 2018 — nil).

(iii) KPSI leases certain properties to KPMI, KIVI, and KECI for a period of one (1} year, renewable annually.
Rental income amounted to B0.2 million both for the periods as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, Ouistanding
receivable as of March 31, 2019 amounted to 80,07 million (December 31, 2018 —nil}).

(iv) Parent Company and KPMI have an existing land lease agreement on a piece of land which is the subject of
complaint against Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC). The monthly rent for the said piece of land is
$0.2 million for a psriod of one (1) year, subject to yearly renewal. Rental income amounted to £0.5 million
both for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018. Outstanding receivable as of March 31, 2019 amounted
to £0.4 million (December 31, 2018 — nil).

Total rental income derived from these agresments amounted to 23,3 million as of March 31, 2019 and 2018,

Advance rentals and refundable deposits are both equivalent to one (1) month rental of the comresponding lease
contract. Refundable deposits amounting to 0.2 million as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is presented
under accounts payable and other current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
refundable deposit is to be returned at the end of the lease term, net of any expenses that will be incurred in the
process of restoring the leased premises.

(b) Advances for various expenses and charges

Amounts due from KPMI, KSSI, and KECI pertain to reimbursement of various expenses such as legal,
communication and business development expenses paid for by the Group.

{¢j Loan ggreemenis
(i) GMRI

GMRI granted unsecured short-term and long-term loan to KPMI. As of December 31, 2018, KPMI’s total
outstanding short-term loan amounted to £62.0 million with 90 days term and 6.3% interest per annum, This
was renewed upon its maturity in March 2019 with 90 days term and 6.5% interest. Interest income recognized
as of March 31, 2019 amounted to P1.0 million as against same period last year of P1.1 million with #82.5
million loan balance and interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.4%. Accrued interest receivable as of March 31,
2019 and December 31, 2018 both amounted to £0.3 million.

(i) KPSI
KPSI granted short-term loan to KPMI since February 2016. Total outstanding loan of KPMI as at December
31, 2018 amounted to 210.0 million with 88 days term and 6.3% interest per anmun. This was renewed upon
its maturity in March 2019 with 90 days term and 6.5% interest. Interest income recognized as of March 31,
2019 amounted to 20.2 million as against same period last year of 0.1 million with £15.0 million loan balance
and interest rate of 3.15%. Accrued interest receivable as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 both
amounted to 20,05 million.
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(iii) Parent Company

The Parent Company granted unsecured short-term loans to KPMI in 2015 with loan balance of 200.0 million
as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, with option for renewal upon maturity.

As at March 31, 2019, KPMI outstanding short-term loans as follows:

Transactions as of

Principal Balance as of Mar 31 2019 Balance as of  Terms and
Release Date Amount Dec 31 2018 Availment Payment Mar 31 2019 Conditions
June 16, 2017 £52,000,000 £52,000,000 2- B- 252,000,000  Unsecured, 83-90
- Nov 27,2017 50,000,000 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000  days with renewal,
Dec 4, 2017 25,000,000 23,000,060 - - 25,000,000  interest rates —
Mar 12, 2018 18,000,000 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000  March 2018 - 3.0%
Apr 7, 2018 25,000,000 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000  to 3.13%; Mar 2019
Dec 14, 2018 30,000,000 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000  -5.9%t0 6.5%
: B200,000,000  £200,000,000 B- - P200,000,000

Interest income recognized from these loans by the Parent Company amounted to £3,1 million and 1.0 million
as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Accrued interest receivable amounted to £1.2 million both for the
periods ending March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Total interest income earned from these loan agreements amounted to 24.2 million as of March 31, 2019 (2018 -
P22 million). Accrued interest receivable amounted to 1.5 million both for the periods ending March 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018.

(d) Management fees

Since 2013, the Parent Company had management agreement with its related companies for a monthly fee. The
management fee is subject to change depending upon the extent and volume of services provided by the Parent
Company. This covers regular consultancy, financial reporting, personnel and administration services. The
agreement is considered renewed every year thereafter, unless one party gives the other a written termination at
least three (3) months prior to the date of expiration. In January 2018, the monthly management fee being
charged to Kepwealth Inc., KECI, KIVI, and Kepventure is $23,000, P20,000, £15,000 and 25,000,
respectively. As of January 31, 2019, the management fee remains the same,

Management fees earned amounted to 0.2 million both for the periods ending March 31, 2019 and 2018.
(e) Other income

In 2014, the Parent Company entered in to a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with KPMI to assist the
latter in its bidding activities for projects for a 1% share in revenue. The Parent Company received P0.4 million
in December 31, 2018 and nil as of March 31, 2019. This is recognized under “other income” in the
consolidated statement of income.

() Key management personnel

Outstanding balance related to salaries and other employees benefits of key management personnel amounting
to B10.6 million and 210.0 million as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively is presented
within accrued expenses under accounts payable and other cmrent liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

15.

Capital Stock

The Class “A” and Class “B” shares of stock are identical in all respects and have B1 par value, except that Class
“A™ shares are restricted in ownership to Philippine nationals, Class “B” shares are 18% and 82% owned by
Philippine nationals and foreign nationals, respectively, as of March 31, 2019. Authorized and issued shares as of
March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 as follows:

Authorized Tssued

Class “ A ™ 90,000,000 - 39,840,970

Class“B™ 200,000,000 33,332,530

290,000,000 73,173,500

Details of the Parent Company’s shares as at March 31, 2019 and 2018 as follows:

Treasury shares

Class“ A ™ 3,674,000

Class“B” 11,696,081

15,370,081

: 21



Weighted average number of shares

Class* A ™ 36,166,970
Class “ B ” 21,636,449
57,803,419

In accordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended (2011), Annex 68-D, below is a summary of the Parent Company’s
track record of registration of securities as at March 31, 2019 and 2018:

Number of Shares Issue/Offer Date of Number of Holders
Common Shares Registered Price Approval of Securities
March 31, 2019
Class“A” 36,166,970 1.00 June 30, 2000 380
Class“B” 21,636,449 1.00 June 30, 2000 55
57,803,419
March 31, 2018 -
Class“A” 36,166,970 1.00 June 30, 2000 382
Clags“B” 21,636,449 1.00 June 30, 2000 56
57,803,419

There are 422 and 424 total sharcholders per record holding both Class “A™ and “B” shares as of March 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

16. Retained Earnings and Treasury Shares

The portion of retained earnings, corresponding to the undistributed equity in net earnings of the associates, is not
available for distribution as dividends until declared by the associates.

Retained earnings are further restricted to the extent of with the following details as of March 31, 2019 and 2018.

No. of Shares Cost
Class “A” ‘ 3,674,000 P13,408,963
Class “B ™ ' 11,696,081 9,214,013
15,370,081 222,622,976

There are no cash dividend declared during the first quarter of 2019 and 20138.

17, Operating Expenses
This account consists of:

Unaudited Unaudited
March 31 March 31
2019 2018
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits £2,993,232 2,506,053
Taxes and licenses 1,146,796 1,393,686
Professional fees 1,126,534 280,149
Provision for impairment losses 829,550 96,632
Rental 621,000 -
Utilities 195,370 149,117
Repairs and maintenance 183,785 9,197
Membership dues and subscriptions 138,847 109,414
Transportation and travel 87,801 113,012
Office supplies 42,061 36,748
Depreciation and amortization 18,844 78,939
Postages 4,640 10,708
Insurance 7,600 5,837
QOthers 232,305 141,016
£7,628,365 4,930,508

Other expenses consist of fringe tax expense, out-of-pocket charges, bank charges, business development expenses
and various items that are individually immaterial.
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18.

Segment Information

For management reporting purposes, these Group activities are classified into business segments - (1) investment
holding and (2) real estate. Details of the Group’s business segments are as follows:

Unaundited March 31, 2019

Investment

Holdings Real Estate Combined  Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenue
KPMI &Third party £10,302,817 £4,163,681 P14,466,498 B- P14,466,498
Inter-segment, including interest income 195,000 - 195,000 (195,000) -
Equity in net earnings of an associate - 2,007,190 2,007,190 - 2,007,190
Total Revenue 10,497,817 6,170,871 16,668,688 (195,000 16,473,688
Income before tax 4,169,136 4,712,540 8,881,676 - 8,881,676
Income tax expense (287,358) {431,275) (718,633) - (718,633)
Net Income 3,881,778 4,281,265 8,163,043 - 8,163,043
Other Information
Segment assets 381,082,073 752,223,677 1,133,305,750  (110,165,068) 1,023,140,682
Sepment liabilities 19,417,721 3,361,328 22,779,049 (896,342) 21,882,707
Depreciation & amortization 16,626 2,218 18,844 - 18,844

Audited December 31, 2018
Investment

Holdings Real Estate Combined  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenue
KPMI &Third party £19,516,577 P18,910,268 B38,426,845 B- 38,426,845
Inter-segment, including interest income 37,720,000 - 37,720,000 (37,720,000} -
Equity in net earnings of an associale - 10,037,399 10,037,399 - 10,037,399
Total revenue 57,236,577 28,947,667 86,184,244 (37,720,000) 48,464,244
Income before tax 32,817,910 21,186,955 54,004,865 (36,940,000) 17,064,863
Income tax expense {482,603) (2,393,296) (2,873,899) - (2,873,899)
Net Income 32,335,307 18,793,659 51,128,966 (36,940,000) 14,188,966
Other Information
Sepment assets 373,636,030 749,624,030 1,123,260,060  (110,930,068) 1,012,329,992
Segment labilities 16,042,453 4,853,949 20,896,402 (1,661,342) 19,235,060
Depreciation & amortization 76,4535 239,197 315,652 - 315,652

Segment assets and segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the consolidated financial statements.
These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment. Segment revemue, segiment
expenses and segment results include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated in
consolidation.

All the Group’s revenues are derived from operation within the Philippines, hence, the Group did not present
geographical information required by PFRS 8, Operating Segments.

Rental income from KPMI amounted to 23.2 million both for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018. Rental
from KPMI comprises more than 19% and 35% of the Group’s revenue for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and
2018.

19.

Finaneial Risk Management Objectives and Capital Management

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s activities sxpose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, and
liquidity risk that could affect its financial position and results of operations. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

The BOD reviews and appraves the policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:

The main risk arising from the Group’s consolidated financial statements are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:
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{a) Creditrisk

The Group has adopted stringent procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring its credit risk.
Majority of the lease transactions are with related parties with reliable credit history. The loss allowance for other
financial assets at amortized cost as at December 31, 2018 reconciles to the opening loss allowance on January 1,
2019. The Group transacts mostly with related parties, thus, there is no requirement for collateral.

Receivables are monitored on an ongeing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Significant concentration of credit risk as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 pertains fo loan
receivables from a related company both amounting to £272.0 million which comprise §8% of the Group’s loan and
receivables in both periods, respectively.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Group:

Unaudited Aundited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents * 42,692,577 P39.477,151

Receivables

Loan receivable from related party . 272,000,000 272,000,000
Current portion of lease receivables** 5,987,120 3,697,045
Interest receivable 1,623,284 1,558,175
Due from related party 116,322 -
P322.419,303 £316,732,371

*Fxcluding cash on hand

**Noncurrent portion of lease receivables arises from the straighi-line recognition of rental income

(i) Credit quality

The Group expects the current portion of the lease receivables to be realized within three (3) months from end of the
reporting period. The amounts due from related parties are all collectible and of good credit quality.

High grade assets are considered as having very low risk and can easily be converted to cash. These assets are
considered for counterparties that possess strong to very strong capacity to meet their obligations.

(ii) Cash in bank

The Group has maintained business relationships with an accredited wmiversal bank that has high credit standing in
the financial services industry. The remaining cash in the consolidated financial position pertains to cash on hand
which is not subject to credit risk.

(iii) Receivables
Loan, legse. interest and other veceivables from related pariies

Credit exposure of the Group on loan and other receivables from related parties is considered to be low as there is no
history of default and known fo have strong credit standing of concerned related parties. Credit risk is negligible
since the related parties are faithfully paying on normal credit terms based on contracts,

The maximum credit exposure is equal to the carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,

Receivables from third parties

The credit quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed as reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. The Group does not hold any collateral in relation to the receivables.
Nene of the financial assets thaf are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year or period.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of the changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term loan receivable with interest rate repriced on periodic basis, Since the Group’s
long-term loan was granted to a related party, there is no requirement for collateral or guaranty. The Group has no
long-termn loan receivable in 2018.

(¢) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equities will decrease resulting from changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of the individual stocks. The Group’s price risk exposure relates to its quoted equity
investments where values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Such quoted equity investments are
subject to price risk due to changes in market values arising from factors specific to the instruments or its issuer or
factors specific to the instruments traded in the market.
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{d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is the risk that the entity will encounter difficalty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of cash and cash equivalents, and loans. The Group. also monitors its risk to shortage of finds through monthly
gvaluation of the projected and actual cash flow information.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The Group manages its
capital siructure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio, which is the total liabilities divided by total equity. Total
liabilities include current and noncurrent liabilities. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The Group’s objective is to ensure that there are no known events that may trigger direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the Group, including default or acceleration of an obligation that will require increased

capitalization.

The debt to equity ratios as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as follows:
Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
Total liabilities $21,882,707 219,235,060
Total equity 1,001,257,975 993,094,932
Debt io equity ratio 0.022:1 0.019:1

The Group is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirements and there were no changes in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the year/period.

Fair Value Estimation of Financial Assets

(a) Recelvables

Due to the short-term nature of the Group’s financial instruments, the carrying amounts approximate their fair values
as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, The carrying amounts of interest-bearing long-term loan receivables
approximate their fair values due to periodic repricing based on market interest rates.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income/Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of quoted equity instruments is determined by reference to quoted market bid price at the close of
business at the end of the reporting dates since this is actively traded in organized financial markets. Unquoted
financial assets are carried at cost, less any allowance for impairment loss.

{c) Fair value hierarchy

As of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Group classifies its quoted financial assets at fair value thorough
other comprehensive income/available-for-sale financial asset amounting to £35.0 million in both periods under
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. During the reporting periods ending March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level
3 fair value measurement.

20. Financial Soundness - Key Performance Indicators

Unaudited Audited
March 31 December 31
2019 2018
A, Current and Liquidity Ratios
1. Cuwrent Ratio
{Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 16.10 18.02
2. Acid-test Ratio or Quick Ratio
(Monetary Current Assets/Ciurrent Liabilities) 15.88 17.26
B. Selvency Ratio
1. Net Income + Depreciation/Total Liabilities (annualized) 1.50 0.75
2. Total Assets/Total Liabilities 46.76 52.63
C. Debt to Equity Ratio
(Total Liabilities/Stockholders’ Equity) 0.02 0.02
D. Asset to Equity Ratio ' 1.02 1.02
E.

Debt Ratio (Total Liabilities/Total Assets) 0,02 0.02



F. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio (EBIT/Interest Expense) Nil Nil
G. Profitability % (annualized)

1. Return on Assets (Net Income/Total Assets) 3.19 1.40

2. Return on Equity (Net Income/Stockholders Bquity) 3.26 1.43
H. Earnings per Share Atiributable to Equity Holders of Parent (B)

(Annualized) 0.43 0.09
I. Book Value per Share Attributable to Equity Holders

of the Parent (&) 11.09 10.98

21. Other Matters

In September 2003, the Parent Company filed a complaint against the PNOC for specific performance with the
Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Batangas City for the enforcement of the contract relating to the option to purchase a
parcel of land in Batangas. Judgment was rendered in January 2006 in favor of the Parent Company ordering PNOC
to accept the payment of P4.1 million, which was consigned with the Clerk of Court, as full and complete payment
of the purchase price, and to execute a Deed of Absolute Sale in favor of the Parent Company. PNOC, however,
filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA), in the same year which was dismissed on December 19, 2011.

On July 25, 2016, the Supreme Court (SC) affirmed the decision of the CA in December 2011 in the resolution dated
May 14, 2012 and upheld the Parent Company’s option to buy the land and remanded the case to the RTC of
Batangas City to update the Parent’s Company’s Filipino equity ownership. On December 14, 2016, SC’s decision
became final and executory and was recorded in the Book of Entries of Judgments. On September 24, 2018, the RTC
issued a resolution against the Parent Company. The Parent Company filed a motion for reconsideration on October
12, 2018 with RTC to argue the merits. As of March 31, 2019, the Parent Company is still awaiting on the finai
resolution of the RTC.

The Parent Company’s cash deposit of P4.1 million with the Court which is presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position under other noncwrrent assets. The said piece of land is the subject of a lease agreement
between the Parent Company and KPMI. (see Note 14)



Aging of Receivable as at March 31, 2019:

More than 1
Total Current 2-3Mos ; 4-6Mos | 7 -12 Mos year

Loan receivable - current R272.000,000| £272,000,000 B B B- £2-
Lease receivables - current 5,987,120 4,842,133 | 1,144,987 - - -
Interest receivable 1,623,284 1,623,284 - - - -
Due from related parties 116,322 17,322 99,000 . - -
Nontrade - receivables 2,152,580 - - - - 2,152,380
Total 281,879,306 278,482,739 | 1,243,987 - - 2,152,580
1.ess Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,152,580 - - - -l 2,152,580
Net Receivables P279,726,726 B278,482,739 | 21,243,987 - 2- B-
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EXHIBIT 11

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Results of Operations

The Group recorded a net income of 28.2 million for the first quarter ended March 31, 2019 as against £3.7 million during
the same period last year. The B4.5 million or 122% increase was due to higher rental and interest income. This was
partially offset by the lower equity in net earnings of associate, higher operating expenses and income tax expense.

Rental revenue for the quarter ending March 31, 2019 amounted to £9.6 million, 6.0 million or 167% higher than the
same period last year of B3.6 million. The increase was due to the lease on properties in Batangas City to a third party that
started in July 2018.

The Group earned inferest income of B4.6 million as of March 31, 2019, 22.0 miillion or 77% higher than the same period
last year of B2.6 million. The increase in net income was due to the higher short-term loan balance as of March 31, 2019
of B272.0 million and higher interest rates ranging from 5.9% to 6.5% per annum as of March 31, 2019 as against the
2242 5 million loan balance with interest rate of 3% to 5.4% in March 31, 2018.

During the first quarter of the year, the Group recognized lower equity in net earnings of associate of £2.0 million, £0.8
million or 29% lower than the same period fast year of B2.8 million. The decline in equity share was due to lower net
income recognized by the associate brought by the decline in the power sales distribution by 8% and higher operating
costs by 3%.

Management fees charged to related parties amounted to 0.2 million both for the periods ended March 31, 2019 and
2018.

This quarter's operating expenses of 27.6 million was higher by £2.7 million or 55% as against 24.9 million during the
same period last year. The increase in expenses was brought mainly by higher salaries and allowances and benefits,
professional fees particularly legal expenses, provision for impairment losses on creditable withholding tax, utilities,
repairs and maintenance relating to properties for rent, membership and subscriptions, office supplies and others. This was
partially offset by lower taxes and licenses, travel and transportation, depreciation and postages.

The Group recognized fair value gain on financiel assets at fair value through other comprehensive income this quarter as
against 23.0 million during the quarter ending March 2018.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Group as of March 31, 2019 amounted to B42,7 miilion, £3.2 million or 8% higher than the £39.5
million recorded as of December 31, 2018. The increase was due to the 4.6 million interest received from short-term
loans and time deposits, This was partially offset by net cash used in operating activities of £1.4 million, mainly due to
the prepayments of real property and business taxes, lower collections from lease rentals and increase in accounts payables
and accruals.

Total receivables, both current and non-current, net of allowance amounted to £307.8 million and R305.6 million in March
31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively, or an increase of £2.2 million. This increase was due to the net effect of
lower collection from lease rentals by 2.3 million and the increase in interest receivables by £0.07 million and due from
related companies by £0.1 million.

Other current assets as of this period increased to P4.4 million as against 1.0 million as of December 31, 2018. 'This was
mainly due to the prepayments for real property and business taxes of £3.3 million.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income was valued at B35.0 million both for the periods ended
March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Investments in associates increased from 24217 million as of December 31, 2018 to 2423,7 million as of March 31, 2019.

The increase of 22.0 million was due mainly to the recognition of equity in net earnings of associate.
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Investment properties and Property and equipment as of March 31, 2019 amounted to £205.4 million was almost at the
same level as of December 31, 2018. There was very minimal acquisition of office equipment and depreciation during the
- quarter.

Total liabilities as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 amounted £21.9 million and £1%.2 million, respectively.
The increase of 2.7 million was due to higher accounts payable and accruals by B2.5 million and income tax payable by
£0.2 million.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company as of March 31, 2019 amounted to 2641.1 million as
against last December 31, 2018 of 2634.9 million. The increase was due to the net income attributable to Parent Comparny
of 6.2 million for the quarter ending March 31, 2019.

Noncontrolling interests as of March 31, 2019 amounted to B360.2 million as against last December 31, 2018 of 2358.2
million, The increase was due to net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests of £2.0 million for the quarter
ending March 31, 2019,

The book value per share attributable to equity holders of the parent (equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
divided by common shares outstanding) at £11.09 as of March 31, 2019 was slightly higher than the 210.98 per share
recorded in December 31, 2018.

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent (net earnings for the quarter divided by common shares
outstanding) as shown in the consolidated statement of income was at B0.11 per share for the period ending March 31,
2019, 20.09 higher than the 20.02 per share recorded as of March 31, 2018.

Material Events and Uncertainties

Thete are no known trends, commitments, evenis or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the Group’s liquidity
for the remaining periods of the year. There are also no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the first quarter period.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING .~
OF STOCKHOLDERS OF = 4

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, !NC

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

Please take notice that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.
shall be held on 21 June 2019, Friday, at 11:30 a.m., at Function Rooms 2 & 3, Basement 1, Belmont
Hotel Manila, Newport Boulevard, Newport City, Pasay City.

The Agenda:

1.
2.
3

4

5.

6.

7.
8.
9
1

0.

Call to Order

Proof of Notice of Meeting and Certification of Quorum

Reading and Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting held on 22 June
2018

Presentation of the 2018 Annual Report and Approval of the 2018 Audited Financial
Statements

Ratification of Corporate Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directors, Officers and
Management of the Corporation for the Period under Review

Election of Directors for the Year 2019-2020

Directors’ Remuneration

Appointment of External Auditor

Such other matters as may properly come up before the Mesting

Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on 28 May 2019 as the record date for the-
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and vote at the meeting.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on 28 May 2019 are entitled to notice of, and to
vote at, this meeting. For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring your Identification
Card and present the same at the registration desk at address stated above. Registration shall start at 10:45

a.m.

MA. MELVA E. VALD

Corporate Secretary

A member of the Keppe! Group, Singapore



10.

11.

12.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-1S e
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION20 - = .-
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE ~ - DR

Check the appropriate box:
Preliminary Information Statement
X __ Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter; KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines

SEC Identification Number: 62596

BIR Tax Identification No: 000-163-715-000

Address of principal office: Postal Code:
Unit 3-B Country Space 1 Building 1200

133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue

Salcedo Village, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (632) 892-1816

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

Date i 21 June 2019
Time : 11:30 am, :
Place :  Function Rooms 2 & 3, Basement 1, Belmont Hotel

Newport Boulevard, Newport City, Pasay City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders:
30 May 2019

In case of Proxy Solicitations: NOT APPLICABLE

Name of Person Filing the Solicitation Statement:;
Address and Tel. No.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Section 4 and 8 of the RSA;

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Qutstanding
(As of 30 April 2019)

Class ‘A’ Common 36,166,970

Class ‘B’ Common 21,636,443

57,803,419 (Net of 15,370,081 Treasury shares)

Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on the Philippines Stock Exchange?
Yes _X No
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PART 1

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A, GENERAL INFORMATION

1.

Pate, Time and Piace of Meeting of Security Holders
{&)  The annual stockholders’ mesting shall be held on:

Date : 21.June 2019
Time :  11:30 am.
Place :  Function Rooms 2 & 3, Basement 1, Belmont Hotel, Newport Boulevard, Newport City, Pasay City

Compiete Mailing Address of Principal Office of Registrant:
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.

Linit 3-B Country Space 1 Building

133 Sen. Gli Puyat Avenue

Salcedo Viliage, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City 1200

(b} The approximate date on which the information statement is first to be sent and given to the security holders shall be 30 May 2018.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There are no matters or proposed corporate actions to be taken up during the annual stockholders meeting which may give rise 1o a
possible exercise by security holders of their appraisal rights under Section 80 of the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines
(Republic Act No. 11232).

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder wha shall have voted against the proposed corporate action, by making a written
demand on the corporation within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote taken for payment of the fair value of his shares:
Provided, that failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver for the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate
action is implemented or effected, the corporation shalt pay fo such stockholder upon surrender of his certificate{s) of stock representing
his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depragiation in
anticipation of such corporate action.

interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

{a) No person who has been a director or officer of the registrant at any time since the beginning of the last fiscal year, or any nomines
for election as a director of the registrant, or associate of any of the foregoing persons, has any substantial interest in, direct or
indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, on any matter to be acted upon ciher than election to offics,

(b) No director of the registrant has informed the registrant in writing that he intends to oppese any action 1o be taken by the registrant at
the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) Class of Voting Shares as of 30 April 2019:

No. of Shares No. of Vote Each Shares
Class of Voting Shares Outstanding Nationality % Entitled
Class ‘A’ Common Shares 36,166,970 Filipino §2.57 One (1) vote per share
Class ‘B’ Common Shares 3,911,336 Fitipino 6.77 One (1) vote per share
Class 'B' Common Shares 17,725,113 Foreign 30.86 One {1) vote per share
Total Common Shares 57,803.419 100.00 One (1) vote per share

(b) All stockholders of record as of 28 May 2019 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

{c) The election of directors shali be taken up at the mesting and pursuant to Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code of the
Philippines (Repubfic Act No. t1232). Each stockholder shafl be entitied to one (1) vote per share. A stockholder may vote such
number of shares registered in his name as of the record date for as many persons as there are directors to be slected or he may
cumulate saic shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors fo be elected muliiplied by the number of his
shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit. There afe no
conditions precedents for the exercise of the cumulafive voting rights in the election of directors. The total aumber of votes cast by
such stockholder should not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the Corporation multiplied by the
whole number of directors to be elected. The shares shall be votedicasted by secret balloting and/or raising hands. In all matters
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included in the agenda, except the election of directors, the caunting of votes will be done through the regular method. Stock Transfer
Setvice, Inc., a stock transfer agent is present to count and validates the voies during the Annuat Stockheiders’ Mesting.

In the election of director, the seven (7) nominees with the highest number of votes will be elected directors. i the number of

nominees for edection as directors does not exceed the number of direciors to be elected, the Secretary of the Mesting shall be
instructed to cast alt votes represented at the Meeting equally in favor of all such nomingss. On the other hand, if the number of
nominees for election as directors exceeds the number of directors to be elected, voting shall be done by ballot, cumulative voting wilt
be followed and counting of votes shail be done by representatives of the Company's external auditor or, in their absence, by the
Corporate Secretary,

Method of Counting Vofes

The Corporate Secretary will be responsible for counting the votes based an the number of shares entitled to vote owned by the
stockhalders who are present or represented by proxies af the Annuai Mesting of the stockhlders.

{e) Information required by Part 1V Paragraph (C) of “Annex C” to the extent known by the persons on whose behalf the soliciation is

made.

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Qwners:

The persons known to the registrant to be directly or indirectly the recerd or beneficial owner of mare than 5% of the registrant's
voting securities as of 30 April 2019 are as follows:

Tile of | Name, Address of record owner { Name of Beneficial Owner and Citizenship| No. of Shares Held Percent
Class and Relationship with Issuer Relationship with Record
Owner
Common | Kepwealth, Inc-# Same as Record Owner Class'A"; 28,817,182 | 5282
Unit 3-B, Country Space ! Bldg., Alan 1. Claveria Fifipino Class 'B: __1,715.748
133 Sen. Gil Puyat Ave. Salcedo (President) 30,632,830
Village, Barangay Bet-Air, Makati
City
Common | Keppel Corporation Limited Same as Record Owner Class'B: 16,894,087 { 28.23
1 Harbour Front Ave, #18-01, Paul Tan Poh Leg Singaporean
Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore (Chief Financial Offiger -
098632 Keppel Offshare Maring)
Commor | PCD Nominee Corp. - Filipino ¢ Filipino Class ‘A 4,758,298
37/F, Enterprise Bldg., Filipino Class'B' 2,110,505
Ayala Ave., Makati City Foreign | Class ‘B"; 612,815
7,481,618 12.94
@ Kepweallh, Inc. Is mafority-owned by Kepventure, inc. The Chairman, or in his absence, the Presidenf of Kepweaith Is duly authorized as
proxy to vote In the shares of Kepwealth in the Company.
b Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL) is listed in the Singapere Stock Exchange. The Chairman of the Board or in his absencs, the President or
in his atsence the Chairman of the meeting shall have the right to vote or direct voting or disposition of the sharehcliings of KCL in the
Compary.
¢.  PCD Nominee Corp. is a wholly-cwned subsidiary of ihe Philippine Central Depository, Inc. {PCDy. 1tis the registered owner of the shares jit
the books of the Company’s fransfer agents In the Philippines. The beneficial owners of such shares are PCD's participants. PCD holds the
shares on their (beneficial owners) behalf or on behaif of their (PCD) clients. PCD is a privale company organized by the major institutions
actively participating in the Phiiippine capital markets fo implement an automated book-enlry system of handling securifies fransactions in the
Phifippines. There are no ather clients of PCD-Nominee Corp. that are reporfed to own more than 5% of the Company’s fotal outstanding and
issued common shares.
(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of 30 April 2019:
Amount and Nature of
Title of Beneficial Ownership % of
Class Name of Beneficial Owner {"d” or “i"} Citizenship Class
Common Paul Tan Peh Lee — Chairman: / Director Class 'B; 1{d) Singaporean -~
Common Alan 1. Claveria — President / Director Class ‘A" 38 (d) Filipino -
Common Celso P. Vivas — Lead Independent Direcior Class ‘A" 1(d} Filiping -
Comman Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco — independent Dirgctor Class 'B": 1{d) Filipino -
Common Ramon J. Abejusla — Independent Director Class ‘A" 1(d) Filipino -
Common Stefan Tong Wai Mun - Diractor Class ‘B 1{d) Mataysian -
Common Felicidad V. Razon - Vice President / Treasurer / Director Class ‘A" 1 (d) Filipino -
Ma. Melva E. Vaidez — Corporate Secretary Filipino -
Lory Anne P, Manuel-McMulfin — Asst, Corporate Secretary - Filipino -
Directors and executive officers as a group 44 =
(d) for direct ownership and (i) for indirect ownership
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{3) Voting Trust Helders of 5% or More
There are no voting trust holders of 5% or more -+
{4} Changes in Control
There is no change in control of the registrant and there is no arangement which may result in change of control.

() Noechange in control of the registrant has occurred since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

5. Directors and Executive Officers

@

Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is currenily composed of seven (7) members, three (3} of whom are independent directors,
The term of office of each member is one {1) year except where the director is elected by the Board of Directors during the ferm. The
members of the Board of Directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to hold office until the next
succeeding annual meeting and until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. The curment members of the Board
of Directors are as follows:

1,

Paul Tan Poh Lee, 65, Singaporean, has been elected as Chairman of the Board of the Company on 5 Aprll 2017. He is the
Chief Financial Officer of Keppel Offshore Marine and Marine Lid, (KOM). He is also a director of several Keppel group of
companies., From 1898 until June 2018, he was at various times, Group Accountant, Group Accounts Manager, Financial
Controller and Group Controfler of Keppe! Corporation Limited (KCL). Mr. Tan is a Feltow of Association of Chartered and
Certified Accountanis and a Chartered Accountant, Singapore. He has more than 40 years of experience in his field of
profession.

Alan 1. Claveria, 48, Filipino, has been elected as President and elecled as regular Director of the Company on 14 September
2017. Prior to his appointment, he was the Seniar Manager, Administration and Corporate Affairs of Keppel Philippines Marine,
Inc. He is concurrently the President and Director of Consort Capital, Inc. He alse holds the position of Treasurer and Director
in KPSI Property, inc. and other Keppel companies in the Philippines. He provides advice in matters relating fo corporate affairs
and communication, admiristration and human resources, drawing from his experience from holding various positions in
Keppel's different business units involved in shipbuilding and ship repair, towage and salvage, investment and real estate. Mr,
Caveria holds a Master in Business Administration degree from the Atenec Graduate Schoo of Business and finished BS
Management, Major in Legal Management at the Ataneo de Manila University, He has been with Keppel in the Philippines for
over 20 years,

Celso P. Vivas, 72, Filipino, has been an Independent Director of Keppel Philippines Holdings, inc. since June 2005 and is
currently the Company's Lead Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management Committee {ARMC). Helis
an Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Keppet Phitippines Maring, Inc. and independent Director and
member of the Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. He is also an Independent Director of Megawide
Construction Corp., Chairman of #s Audit and Compliance Committee, and member of both the Board Risk Oversight and
Govemance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee. He is alsc an Independent Director of Republic Glass Holdings since
June 2017, Chairman of its Govemance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and member of the ARMC. He is also an
independent Director of Goodsoil Marine Realty, inc., and & regular director of Goodwealth Realty Sevelopment, Inc.,
subsidiaries of the Company, Independent director of Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. and regular director of Consort Land, inc. He
is & member of Marubeni Foundation's Board of Trustees. He was Risk Gonsulting Pariner and Assurance Business Advisory
Pariner of SGV & Company until his retirement in 2001. Mr. Vivas obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration
(Cum Laude) from the University of the East. He also obtained a Master's Degree in Business Management from the Asian
Insfitute of Management (SGV & Co. Scholar). He is also a graduate of Company Directors’ Gourse from Australian Institute of
Company Directors (ICD Scholar). Mr. Vivas is a Certified Public Accountant and has aver 50 years of experience in audi,
finance, enterprise risk management and corporate governance.

Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, 68, Filipino, has besn elected as Independent Director of the Company on 08 May 2017, prior to
which he was a non-executive Direstor dwing June 2002 to March 2015, in February 2019, ha is recently appointed as
President/Director of PBC Capital Investment Corporation. He is currently an Adviser to the Board of Directors of First Metro
Investment Corp. since 2015, non-executive director of First Metro Asset Management inc. since 2017, Vice President of First
Metro Securities Brokerage Corp., since 2018 and Independent Director of Mapfre insular Insurance Corp. and Omnipay, Inc.
since 2016 and 2017, respectively. He is also a non-executive Direcior of Rafael-Alunan Agro Development Inc. since 2006,
He is also an Indspendent Director of Keppe! Philippine Properties Inc., Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. and Keppel Subic
Shipyard Inc. since 2018. He is also Trustee of the Foundation for Camelite Scholastics and De La Salle College of St.
Benilde since 2012 and 2013, respectively. He served as the President of The Insular Life Assurance Co. Ltd. during 2004 to
2015 and was concurment Vice-Chairman and/or Director of various Insular Life subsidiaries and affiliates such as Pilipinas
Shell Petroleum Corp., Mapire insular Insurance Corp., Insular Savings Bank, insutar Healthcare Inc., Insular Investment Corp.,
Asian Hospital Inc.,, and Unicn: Bank of the Philippines. Mr. Ongsingco graduated from the De La Salle University with
Bachelor's Degrees (Magna Cum Laude) in Economics and Accounting. He also obtained Master's Degree in Business
Administration from the University of the Philippines and in National Security Administration from the National Defense College
of the Philippines {both with Honors). Mr. Ongsingco has 45 years of experience in banking, finance and insurance,

Ramon J, Abejuela, 70, Fillpino, has been elected as ndependent Director of the Company on 14 Seplember 2017, He is
aso the independent Director of Keppel Philippines Properties, Ine. (KPPI) from November 1999 to June 2008. He was re-
elected as Indepsndent Director in 2008 and currently the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee of KPPI. He also serves as
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Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of Philippine Nutri-Faods Corporation and NCP Publishing Inc. since 2004, Mr.
Abejuela holds a Bachelor of Chemical Engineeting {curm laude) Degree from De La Salle University and Master's Degree in
Business Management — General Management Cursiculum from Asian Institute of Management. Mr, Abejueia has more than
40 years of experience in the field of financial planning, control and consultancy.

6. Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 45, Malaysian, has been elected as regular Director of the Company since June 2007 and had been
the President for the same period untit 14 September 2017, He has been reqular Director of Keppe! Phifippines Properties, ing,
since June 2007 and has been elected as regular Director of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. since February 2010 and its
Execufive Vice-Prasident since June 2011. He is also a regular Director of various Keppel companies in the Philippines. Mr,
Tong graduated from the University of Western Ausiratia with a Bachelor's Degres in Accounting and Finance {Honors). Heis
a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Me has mare than 20 years of
experignce in banking, finance and real estate.

7. Felicidad V. Razon, 53, Filiping, has been elected as a regular Director of the Company since May 2014. She joined the
Company as Finance Manager since May 2008 and has been elected as Treasurer since June 2008 and elected/appointed as
Vice President/Treasurer, Corporate Information and Compliance Officer in November 2013. She is alse the Chaimman and
President of Goodsoii Marine Realty, Inc. and Goodwealth Realty Development Corp., Director and President of Consort Land,
Inc. and regular director and officer of other related companies. Prior to Keppe! Group, Ms. Razon has been Finance
Manager/Officer of various local companies involved in manufacturing, shipping and freight forwarding. She graduated from
the Polytechnic University of the Philippines with Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce major in Accountancy and is a
Certified Public Accountant. She has more than 30 years of experience in her fisld of profession.

The foregoing business experiences of the directors cover the five-year period.
{2) Nominees for Election as Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors

The Nominaticn Committes (now changed and called as “Comorate Governance & Nomination Commities” following approval by the
Board on 10 November 2017) composed of Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco (Chalrman), Celso P. Vivas, Ramon J, Abejuela and Stefan
Tong Wai Mun received recommendations for the position of Chairman, regular and independent directors for the Company. The said
recommendations were signed by the nominating stockholders together with the acceptance and conformity of the would-be
nominegs, The nominating stockholders are not acting as a nominee or representative of any director ar substantial shareholder of the
Company, andfor any of its related companies andfor any of its substantial shareholders, pursuant to a Deed of Trust or under any
coniract or amangement. The qualifications of the candidates were pre-screened by the Corporate Govemance and Nomination
Committee. Hereunder is the Final List of Candidates;

Nominee Nominating Person or Group Relationship with the Nominee
Pauf Tan Poh Lee (Chairman) Felicidad V. Razon None
Celso P. Vivas {Lead Independent Direcior) Afan |. Claveria None
Mayo Jose B. Ongsingeo (Independent Director) Alan |. Claveria None
Rarmon J, Absjuela (Independent Director) Alan |, Claveria None
Stefan Tong Wai Mun (Regular Director) Alan 1. Claveria None
Alan |, Claveria (Regutar Directar) Felicidad V. Razon None
Felicidad V. Razon (Regular Director) Alan . Claveria None

The amended By-laws of the Company, as approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on § September 2003 and further
amended on 4 July 2008, provides for the procedure for the nominatien and election of indepandent Directors pursuant to SRC Rule
38, as amended,

The nominees for the Board of Directors for the ensuing calendar year are as follows;
(1) Paul Tan Poh Lee

(2)  Alan|. Claveria

{3) CelsoP. Vivas - Lead Independent Director

{4)  Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco — Independent Direcior

(5)  RamonJ. Abejuela - independent Director

(6}  Stefan Tong Wai Mun

{7}  Felicidad V. Razon

No refationship exists as between the nominees and the person who nominated them,
(3) Incumbent Officers
()  Alan . Claveria, President - (See foregoing Director's Profile)

(b}  Felicidad V. Razon, Vice President / Treasurer / Corporate Compliance and Information Officer - {See foregoing
Director's Profile)

{c} Ma. Melva E. Valdez, Corporate Secretary 59, Filipino, has been the Corporate Secrstary of the Company since 1998,
She also served as Director of tha Company from 24 June 2008 to 11 June 2008, Atty. Valdez is also the Corporate
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4

(3)

{6)

Secretary of KPHI since 1898, She Is a Senior Partner of the law firm of Bello Valdez Caluya & Fernandez; she also the
Corporate Secretary of Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (listed company} and Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (a public
compary). She is lkewise the Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management, Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc.,
Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc. and various Keppel companies in the Philippines, EMS Companents Assembly Inc.,
EMS Resources Technology Inc., EMS Land Services Inc., EMS Services Philippines, Inc., EMS Services Intemnationat
Inc., Afliance Mansols Inc., Crectec Philippines inc., Wartsila Philippinss Inc and Asian Institute of Management. She is
also a member of the Board of Directors of Leighton Contractors (Phils.) Inc., Servier Phifippines Inc., Buena Homes
{Sandoval) Inc., Cambe Dental Inc., Surefrac Holdings inc., and Asia Contractors Holdings Inc. She holds directorship
positions in the following companies: Logwin Air«Qcean Philippines Inc., KPS| Property inc., Opon Really &
Development Corp., Opon-Ke Properties Inc., Asia Control Systems Philippines Inc., Yinda Communications Philippines
Inc., and Saint-Gobain Philippines Co. Lid. Inc. Afty. Vaidez graduated from the University of the Philippines with a
holder of degrees of Bachelor of Arts In Polifical Science and Bachelor of Laws. She has 32 years of working
experiencs in her field of profession as a lawyer.

{d) Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin, 49, Filipino, has been the Asst, Corporate Secretary of the Company since 1998, She
also serves as the Asst. Corporate Secretary of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (a public company}, Xeppel Subic
Shipyard, Inc. and other companies within the Ksppal group. Furthermore, she is the Asst. Corporate Secretary of
Logwin Air + Ocean Philippines, inc. and a regular Director and Corporate Secretary/Treasurer of Cominix {Philippines),
fnc. and Saint-Gobain Philippines Co. Lid., Inc.; Director/Comporate Secretary of Mektec (Philippines) Corp., Tokai
Electronics Philippines, inc. and A + O Disiribution Corp.; Director of Yosemite Holdings, Inc. and Cushman Wakefield
Philippines, Inc.; Corporate Secretary of Mitsuba Philippines Technical Center Comp., Nach Pilipinas Industries, Inc.,
Technol Eight Philippines Corporation, Yinda Communications (Philippines), Inc., and Sumi Philippines Wiring Systems
Corp.; Chief Representative of Charabot S.A. and Resident Agent of Mektec Corp. (Singapore) Pte. Lid., Entel HK Ltd,
Roquette Singapore Pte. Ltd, and SEB Asia Ltd. Atty. McMullin is & Jurior Partner of the law firm Bello Valdez Caluya &
Fernandez. She graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with Bachelor's degrees in Communication Arts and
Laws.

As Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. Is an investment holding company, there are only two (2) employees holding senior
management positions in the Company, namely, the President and Vice President/Treasurer,

The Officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors at its first mesting following the Annual Mesting of the
Stockholders, each to hold office until the comesponding mesting of the Board of Directors in the next year or unfil a
successor shalt have been elected or shall have been qualified,

Currently, there are no directors or officers connected with or emplayed by any govemment agencies or its instrumentalities.

The following are the incorporators of Keppel Philippines Holdings, nc. as appearing on the Company's Arlicles of
incorporation dated 24 July 1975:

Name Nationalities
George Edwin Bogaars Singaporean
Chua Chor Teck Singaporean
Benjamin P. Mata Filipino
Jose F.3. Bengzon, Jr. Filiping
Adolfo 8. Azcuna Filipino

Si_gniﬁcant Employees

Other than its current officers mentioned in the preceding subsection, the Company has not engaged the services of any
person who is expected fo make significant contribution to the business of the Cormpany.

Family Relationships

There are no family refaticnships up to the fourth civil degree sither by consanguinity or affinity among directors, executive
officers, persons nominated or chosen by the Company te become directors o executive officers, any security holder of certain
record, beneficial owner or management.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge andfor information of the Company, none of the directorsiominess and officers was involved during the past
five (5) years up to the fatest date in any bankrupicy proceedings. Neither have they besn convicted by final judgment in any
criminal proceeding, or been subject to any order, judgment or decres of compatent jurisdiction, permanently or termporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or oftherwise limiting their invoivement in any type of business, securities, commedities o
banking activities, nor found in an action by any court or administrative bodies to have violated a securities and commadifies
faw,
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{T) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

in the ordinary course of business, the Company kas transactions with its affiliates. The significant transactions with affiliates
are indicated in Nofe 10 - Related Party Transactions of the Accempanying Audited Consoiidated Financial Statements.

{b) There was no other direcior who resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the board of directors since the date of the last annual

meeting of security holders because of a disagreement with the Registrant on any matter relating to the Registrans operations,
policies and practices.

6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

{a)

(b

{d)

As the Company is an investment holding company, it has only two (2) senior officers, namely, the President and Vice-
President/Treasurer. The total annual compensation of the senior officers of ihe Company during the last two (2) fiscal years and the
projected aggregate compensation to be paid for the current fiscal year are as follows:

Name & Principal Position Year Safary (B) Bonus | Other Compensation
Aggregate for all officers 2019 - Estimate 8,448,000 None None
2018 7,116,000 None None
2017 5,215,000 None Naone
Aggregate for alt officars 2018~ Estimate 8,688,000 None None
and directors as & group 2018 7,344 000 None None
2017 5,440,000 Nong None

Under the Company's By-Laws, directors shall receive such compensation for their services from time o time as maybe fixed by the
stockholders. For the year 2018, the directors were each paid directors’ fes amounting to B60,000 each and the same amount is
budgeted for 2019 as annual directors’ fee. There is no bonus, profit sharing or other compensation plan, coniract or arrangement in
whigh any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officers of the registrant will participate.

There were no standard or special arrangements and no special consulting contracts awarded to any director or officer of the
Company, which was accordingly compensated or to be compensated and there are no amounts payable {o any of the direciors
arising from participation in any working committee or special assignments in the current fiscal year o in the coming year.

The employment confracts of key personnel are standard contract between employee and Company, specifying the work
respensibifities, compensation and other benefits and is not exceptional in nature and will not be affected by a change-in-control,
should this oceur, nor would it occur to a liability o the part of the registrant that would exceed B2 500,000 per officer.

There are no existing warants, options or rights to purchase any securities being issued or given to the Directors or Executive
Officers as a form of compensation for services rendered.

7. independent Public Accountants

(a)

(b)

The external auditor of the Company for the most recenily completed calendar year of 2018 is [sfa Lipana & Co. (PWC). The Audit
and Risk Management Committee, composed of Celso P, Vivas (Chairman), Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, Ramon J. Abejuela and Stefan
Tong Wai Mun, has recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Isla Lipana & Co (PwC) as the external auditor of the Company
for the fiscal year 2019, The same shall be submitted o the stockhalders for approval at the forthcoming annual stockholders’
meeting.

The Audit and Risk Management Commiitee evaluates proposals based on the quality of service, commitment to deadline and fees.
The Gommittee may require a presentation from each proponent to clarify some issues.

Mr. Roderick M. Danao, Vice Chairman and Assurance Managing Partner of Isla Lipana & Ca. {PwC} is the partner-in-charge for the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. Representatives of isla Lipanz & Co. are
expected to be present during the stockholders' meeting. The representatives will have the opportunity to make statements if they
desire to do so and will be available fo respond io appropriate questions from the security holders.

The Company is in full compliance with SRC Rule 68, par. 3{b) {iv) on Rotation of External Auditors. The Company has engaged Isfa
Lipana & Co. in 2016 and has not engaged Mr, Danao, partner of Isia Lipana & Co., for more than five (5) years.

(¢} The aggregate annual extemal audit fees billed for each of the last two {2) fiscal years for the audit of the Company’s annual financial

statements or services that are normadly provided by the external auditor as follows:

2018 2017
1. Audt, other Assurance and Related Fees R292,000 2292000
2. Tax Fees - -
3. All Other Fees - -
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{d) During the zegistrant's two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim period,

(1)

{2

No independent accountant who was previously engaged as the principal accountant to audit the registrant's financial
statements, or an independent accountant on whom the principal accountant expressed reliance in its report regarding &

significant subsidiary, has resigned {or indicated it has declined to stand for re-election after the completion of the current audif)
or was dismissed; and

No new independent accountant has been engaged as either the principal accouniant to audit the registrant's financial
statements or as an independent accountant on whom the principal accountant has expressed or is expacted to express
reliance in its repert regarding a significant subsidiary.

8. Compensation Plans

{a) No action is to be taken with respect to any stock options, warrants or rights plan,

(b) No action is to be taken with respect to any other type of compensation plan.

C. ISSUAN

CE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES — Mot Applicable

D. OTHER MATTERS

15. Actions with Respect to Reports

The approval of the stockholders on the foliowing matters will be taken;

(a)  Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Approval of the Annuzl Report/Audited Financial Statements constitutes a ratification of the Company's performance during the
previous fiscal ysar as contained therein.

(b)  Minutes of the 2018 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders

1.

Approval of the Minutes of the 2018 Annual Stockholders' Meeting constitutes a rafification of the accuracy and fathfulness of
the Minutes s to the events which transpired during the said meeting, such as the Approval of the Minutes of the Annual
Stackholders’ Mesting held on 16 June 2017, Presentation of the 2017 Annual Report and Approval of the 2017 Audited
Financial Statements, Ratification of Corporate Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directors, Officers and Management for
the Period under Review, Election of Directors for the Year 2018 - 2519, Approval of Directors’ Remuneration, Appointment of
External Auditor and Approval of Amendmant of By-laws {Article V- Sections 3, 4 and 8).

This does not constitute a second approval of the same matters taken up at the 2018 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting which had
already been approved.

16. Matters Not Requirad to be Submitted

No action s to be taken with respect to any matier which is not required to be submitted to a vate of security holders,

17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

There is no proposat to amend the ariicles and by-laws of the Company.

18. Other Proposed Action

No action on any matter, other than those stated in the Agenda for the Meefing, including the following items, are preposed fo he taken,
except matters of incidence that may properly come during the Meeting:

{8) Ratification of Corporate Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directers, Officers and Management covering the period 22 June
2018 to 14 May 2019, These acts and proceedings are covered by resofutions of the Board of Directors duly adopted in the course
of business which includes, among others: appointment of signatoriesfaporoval of signing authorities and limits; ireasury matters
refated to opening of accounts and bank transactions; and appointment of officer.
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19.

(b)
(c)
)

Corporate Acts/Resolutions (June 2018 to May 2019)

22 June 2018 e Approval of Directors’ Remuneration for 2018
{Regular Meeting) e Approval of Cash Dividend Declaration
22 June 2018 »  Election of Officers for ensuing year 2018 - 2019
(Organizational Meefing) » Appointment of Chairmen, Members of Varous Commitiees and Compliance
Officer/Corporate Information Officer
3 August 2018 »  Approval of Y2018 2 Quarter Financial Results (SEC Form 17-Q) and Interim Results
(Regular Mesting)
9 November 2018 ¢ Approval of Y2018 3rd Quarter Financial Results (SEC Form 17-Q)
(Regular Meeting)
24 January 2019 »  Approval of the 2018 Consolidated and Parent Company Audited Financial Statements and
(Regular Mesting) SEC Form 17-A (Annual Reparl) and the Release thereof
s Setting of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Record Date
14 May 2019 *  Approval of Y2019 1st Quarter Financiat Results (SEC Form 17-Q)
{Regular Meeting) e Appcintment of External Audifor for the Year 2019
e Presentation by NOMCOM of the Final List of Candidates for Regular and Independent
Directors
*  Approval of the 2018 I-ACGR

Elaction of members of the Board of Directors for the yaar 2018 - 2020
Directors' Remuneration
Appointment of External Auditor

Voting Procedures

(a}

{d)

An affirmative vote by the stockholders owning at least a majority of the outstanding capital stack shall be sufficient for the approval
of the 1) Minutes of the Previous Stockholders' Meeting; 2) Audited Financial Statements; 3) Ratification of the Acts and
Proceedings of the Board of Directors, Officers and Management of the Company from the date of the last annual stockholders’
meeling as refiected in the minutes; 4) Directors’ Remuneration; 5) Appointment of External Auditor; and 8} Amendment of By-
Laws,

The holders of @ majority of interest of all outstanding stock of the Company entitied 1o vote at the meeting, in person or by proxy,
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

The holders of common stock are entitiad to one vote per share, but in connection with the cumuiative voling feature applicable to
the election of directors, each stockholder is entitied to as many votes as shail equal the number of shares held by such person at
the close of business on the record date, multiplied by the number of direciors to be slected. A stockholder may ¢ast all of such
votes for a single nominee or may apportion such votes among any two or more nominees. The shares shall be votedfcast by
secret balloting and/or raising of hands. In all matters included in the agenda, except the election of directors, the counting of votes
will be done through the regutar method. For the efection of directors, the counding will be cumulative.

In the election of director, the seven (7) nominees with the highest number of votes will be elected directors, If the number of
nominess for election as directors does not exceed the number of directors to be elected, the Secretary of the Meeting shall be
instrucied to cast al votes represented at the Meeting equally in favor of &l such nominees. Stock Transfer Service, Ing., a stock
transfer agent, is present to count and validate the votes during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. On the other hand, ¥ the
number of nominees for election as directors exceeds the number of directors to be elected, voting shall be done by baliot,
cumulative voting will be followed and counting of votes shalt be done by representatives of the Company's external auditor or, in
their absence, by the Corporate Secretary.

Method of Counting Votes

The Corporate Secretary will be responsible for counting the votes based on the number of shares entifled to vole owned by the
stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at the Annual Meeting of the stockholders.

PART Il ]

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM
{This form shall be prepared In accordance with paragraph {5} of SRC Rule 20)

NOT APPLICABLE
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PART I

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonabie inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set forth in this report is true, complete and
corregt, This report is signed ir: the City of Pasig on 23 May 2018,

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.

By:

Upon the written request of the stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said stockholder a copy of SEC Form 17-A free of charge,
except for exhibits attached thereto which shall be charged at cost. Any written request for a copy of SEC Form 17-A shail be addressed as
follows:

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.
Unit 3-B, Country Space i Building
133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue
Salcedo Village, Barangay Bel-air
Makati City 1200

Attention: The Corporate Secratary
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.
MANAGEMENT REPORT

INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

A, Description of Business

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (hereafter as “KPH" or “Company®} was incorporated in July 1975 under the former name of Keppel
Philippines Shipyard, Inc. The Company was established as a subsidiary of Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL) of Singapore to carry out ship
repair and shipbuilding activities in the Philippines. In 1993, the Company was converted into an investment holding company under the name
of Keppel Philippines Holdings, inc. KPH shares are being traded at the Phifippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

Currently, the Company has twe core businesses: namely, investment holdings and real estate.

The contribution from each segment of the busingsses to the consolidated revenues and net income of the Company is stated in Note 16 of
the audited financial statements,

Subsidiaries under real estate industry;

KPSI Property, Inc. (‘KPSI'), a wholly owned subsidiary of KPH, owns and leases out the office space in Country Space 1 Building,
Makati City.

Goodwealth Realty Development Corp. (*GRDC"), 51% owned by KPH, owns and leases out parcels of land and land improvements in
Batangas Cily.

Goodsoil Merine Reaity, Inc. (*GMRI"), wholly owned by GRDC and effectively 51% owned by KPH, owns and leases the land in Bauan,
Batangas to Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. ("KPMI"} used for the construction and repair of ali types and classes of vessels, the
fabrication of offshore marine structures together with the related services and operations of a shipyard, GMRI is registared as an
Ecozone DeveloperfOperator with the Philippine Ecenomic Zone Authority (PEZA) since 2007.

Consort Land, Inc, {*CLI"), 25% owned by GMRI and effectively 13% owned by KPH, owns and leases the lard in Subic, Zambales to
Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. ("KSSI"} used for the construction and repair of all types and classas of vessels and the fabrication of
offshore marine structures. CLt is registered with PEZA as an Economic Developer /Operator of the Subic Shipyard - Subi¢ Economic
Zone and purchases power and distributes to its locators.

KPH owns the following properties:

Owned by Property Description Area
KPH Two (2) office condominium units at Fedman Suite in Makati City 166 sqm
KPS ;\:!cladgg)] (i)riﬁ&ea :;Jt?%c':g:"mum units and five {5 parking stots at Country Space | 345 sqm
GRDC Five (5) lots of residential land in Batangas City 1,500 sam
GMRi Land located in Bauan, Batangas 248,584 sgm
CLi Land and building locatad in Suble, Zambales 840,043 sqm

The propecties owned by the Company and its subsidiary and asscciates are free from any fien. The Company has average 22%
effective ownership on the above properties.

B. Legal Proceedings

In September 20C3, the Company filed a complaint against Philippine National il Company {PNOC) for specific performance with the
Regional Trial Court (RTC) in Batangas City for the enforcement of the coniract relating to the opfion to purchase parcels of land in Balangas.
Judgment was rendered in January 2006 in favor of KPH ordering PNOG to accept the payment of P4.1 million, which was consigned with the
Clerk of Court as full and complete payment of the purchase price, and to execute a Deed of Absolite Sale in favor of the Company, PNOC,
however, filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA), which was dismissed on 18 December 2011.

On 25 July 2018, the Supreme Court {SC) affirmed the decision of the CA in December 2011 in the resolution dated 4 May 2012 and upheld
the Company's option to buy the land and remanded the case to the RTC of Batangas City to update the Company’s Filipino equity ownership.
On 14 December 2018, the SC's decision became firal and executory and was recorded in the Book of Entries of Judgments. On 14
September 2018, the RTC Issued a resolution against the Company. The Company filed a motion for reconsideration on 12 October 2018 with
RTC to argue the merits.
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C. Securities of the Registrant

Market Price, Dividends and Related Stockholder Matters

The principal market of the Company's common equity is PSE where i was listed fast 26 August 1987. The high and low closing prices far
each quarter within the [ast two (2) fiscal years and first quarter of 2019 as traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange are as follows:

2018 2017
High Low High Low
First Quarter ‘A’ B5.50 ‘A B5.20 ‘A’ B5.50 ‘A’ R4.06
‘B #5.98 'B'R5.36 ‘B 25.34 ‘B’ 25.26
Second Quarter ‘ATP5 90 'A'R5.25 ‘A’ P5.88 AT R432
'B'P6.38 ‘B'R5.33 ‘B’ R7.46 ‘B R5.02
Third Quarter ‘A P4.47 ‘A R4.AT7 ‘A'B6.22 ‘AR5 03
‘B’ B5.36 'B'85.34 'B' B6.12 ‘B R5.33
Fourth Quarter ‘A’ BB .80 ‘AT R3.46 ‘A’ 85 89 ‘A RS04
‘B' 826,57 ‘B R2.94 ‘B 2570 'B' 25.35
2019
_High Low
First Quarter ‘A'RG.97 ‘A’ B4.80
‘B B4.91 ‘B 243
High Low
April fo May 219 - -
‘B 26.3% 'B' £4.91
The number of sharehoiders of record as of 30 Aprit 2018 was 422,
Common shares outstanding as of 30 April 2019 were 57,803,419 broken down as follows:
Nationality Class No. of Shares %

Filipino A 38,166,970 §2.57
Filipino B 3,911,336 6.77
Foreign B 17,725,113 30.66
Total 57,803,419 100.00

The Company has 17.95% or 10,376,358 shares owned by the public out of the 57,803,419 total outstanding shares as of 30 April 2019,

Top 20 Stockholders as of 30 April 2019 are as follows:

Shareholders No. of Shares Held %
1. iKepwealth, Inc. 30,532,930 52822
2. |Keppel Corporation Lid, 16,894,087 | 29.297
3. |PCD Nominee Corp. — Filipino 6,868,803 11.883
4. |Internaticnal Container Terminal Services, Inc, 2,121,287 3670
5. _|PCD Nominee Corp. — Foreign 612,815 1.080
6. |Soh Ngoi May 83,179 0.144
7. |Willy Y. C. Lim 80,175 0.104
8. |Edbert G. Tantuco 50017 0.087
9. |Fmilic C. Tiu 23,238 0.040
10. |National Book Store, ine. 22422 0.039
1. |Ang Guan Figo 21,900 0.038
12, |Manolo Z. Aicasabas 21,170 0.037
13, |Willy Yew Chai Lim 20,085 0.035
14, Yeo Chee Chiow 18,848 0.033
15. Liwayway Sy 17,938 0.031
18. Ma. Victoria R. Del Rosario 17,338 0.031
17. |Ramon R. Del Rosario Jr. 17,938 0.031
18. {Dr. Victorino Medrana Jr. &/or Ofelia R. Medrano 13,952 0.024
19. |Procurador General De Padres Franciscano De Manila 11,211 G019
20. {Josefina Tengeo Reyes 11,211 0.018
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Top 20 Stockholders of Ciass “A” shares out of 36,166,870 shares as of 30 April 2019 are as foliows:

Shareholders No. of Shares Held %
1. [Kepwealth, Inc. 28,817 182 79.678
2. |PCD Nominee Corp. ~ Filiping 4,758,298 13.156
3. lIntemational Container Terminal Services, Inc, 2,121,287 5.865
4. Emilio C. Tiu 23,238 0.064
5. iNational Book Store, Inc. 22422 0062
8. (Ma. Victoria R. Del Rosario 17,938 0.050
7. |Ramon R. Del Rosario Jr, 17,938 0,050
8. |Liwayway Sy 17,938 0.050
9. |Dr. Victorino Medrano, Jr. &or Ofelia R. Medrano 13,852 0.039
10. |Josefina Tengco Reyes 11,211 0,031
11, [Procurador General de Padres Franciscano de Manila 11,214 0.031
12. |Barcelon Roxas Securities, inc. 9524 0.027
13. |Denis L. Lipio ITF Valerie May Lipio 9,697 0.027
14. |Cenis L. Lipie ITF Elizah Anne Ligic 9,897 0.027
15. |Ronald L. Lipio ITF Frederick Brian Lipio 9,697 0.027
6. |Prudencic B. Zulsaga 8,969 0.025
7. |[Justino H. Cacanindin 8,968 0.025
18. IRoberic Tan Lim 8,968 0.025
18, Momas L. Tiu 8968 0.025
20. Nancy Saw 8,230 0.025
Top 20 Stockhalders of “Class B” shares out of 21,636,449 shares as of 30 April 2019 are as follows:
Shareholders No. of Shares Held %
1. |Keppel Corporation Lid. 16,804,087 78.082
2. |PCD Nominee Corporation — Filipino 2,110,505 9.754
3. |[Kepwesith, Inc. 1,715,748 7.930
4. PCD Nominee Corp. — Non- Filipino 812,815 2832
5. 1Soh Ngei May 83,179 0.384
6. (Willy Y.C.Lim 60,175 0.278
7. Edbert G, Tantuco 44059 0.204
8. 1Ang Guan Piao 21,900 0.101
9. |Manolo Z. Alcasabas 21,170 0.098
10, |Willy Yew Chai Lim 20,085 0.093
11. [Yeo Chee Chiow 18,848 0.087
12. 1Sofidbank Trust Division as Sub-Custodian 8,000 0.037
13. (CBNA MLA 0OBO A/C # 6011800001 7,204 0.034
14, ‘Franciscan Phil Province 4484 0.021
15. {Ronzld Co &/or Susana Co 1,815 £.008
16. Lee Fatt Yong 1,663 0.008
17. |Keppel Marine Industries Limited 1,584 0.007
18. |BPI TA#13115826 1,303 0.008
19. |Citibank Mia OBO BBH {Lux) Sub A/C Fidelity 1,195 0.005
20, |Fernando Y. Adrias 1,135 0.065

The declaration and payment of dividends will depend, among ofhers, upon the Company’s eamings, cash flow, capital requirements and
financial conditicn in addition to other factors. Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board of Directors but no stockholders’ approvat
is required. Dividends are payable to stockholders whose names are recorded in the stock and transfer bocks as of the record date fixed by
the Board. The Company declared cash dividends in 2018, 2017 and 2016. Cash dividend detgils are as follows:

Y2018 Y2017 Y2016
Date of BOD Approval June 22 June 16 June 17
Record Date July 6 July 3 Jufy 1
Payment Date July 31 July 27 July 27
Amount of Dividend per Share B20.10 or 10% 20.10 or 10% 2010 0r 10%

There has Deen no sale of registerad or exempt securities within the past three years,
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D. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Results for the 15t Quarter March 2019

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. ("KPHI" or the “Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) recorded a nat
income of 88.2 million for the first quarter anded 31 March 2019 as against 3.7 miflion in same period last year. The R4.5 million or 122%
increase was due to higher rentat and interest income. This was partially offset by the lower equity in net eamings of associate, higher operaing
expenses and income tax expanse.

Rental revenue for the quarter ending 31 March 2619 amounted to 9.6 million, 25.0 million or 167% higher than same period last year of 23.6
millian. The increase was due to the lease on properties in Batangas City to a third party that started in July 2018.

The Group eamed interest income of R4.6 million: as of 31 March 2019, 22.0 million or 77% higher than the same peried last year B2.6 miflior,
The increase in net income was due 1o the higher short-term loan balance as of 31 March 2019 of R272.0 million and higher interest rates
ranging from 5,9% fo 6.5% per annum as of 31 March 2019 as against the 2242.5 million foan balance with interest rate of 3% to 5.4% in 31
March 2018.

- During the first quarter of the year, the Group recognized lower equity in net eamings of associate of B2.0 million, £0.8 million or 28% lower than
the same period last year of 22.8 million. The decline in equity share was due to lower net income recognized by the assaciate brought by the
decline in the power sales distributior: by 8% and higher operating costs by 3%.

Management fees charged to refated parties amounted to 0.2 miflion both for the periods ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,

This quarter's cperating expenses of B7.6 miilion was higher by R2.7 million or 55% as against R4.9 million during the same period last year.
The increase in expenses was brought mainly by higher salaries and aliowances and benefits, professional fees particularly legal expenses,
provision for impairment fosses on creditable withholding tax, utilities, repairs and maintenance relating to properties for rent, membership and
subscriptions, office supplies and others. This was partially ofiset by lower taxes and licenses, travel and transportation, depreciation and
postages.

The Group did regognize fair value gain on financial asssts at fair value through other comprehensive income this quarter as against 25.0 million
during the quarter ending March 2018,

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Group as of 31 March 2019 amounted to R42.7 mittion, R3.2 million or 8% higher than the £38.5 million recorded as of
31 Becember 2018. The increase was due to the P4.6 million interest received from short-term loans and time deposits. This was partially
offset by net cash used in operating activities of R1.4 milfion, mainly due to the prepayments of real property and business taxes, lower
collections from lease rentals and increase in accounts payabies and accruals,

Total receivables, both current and non-current, net of allowance amounted to R307.8 million and R305.8 miflion in 31 March 2019 and 31
December 2018, respeciively, or an increase of B2.2 million. This increase was due to the net effect of lower coliection from igase rentals by
£2.3 million and the increase in interest receivables by 20.07 millior and due from related companies by 20,1 million.

Other current assets as of this period increased to P4.4 millior: as against £1.0 million as of 31 December 2018. This was mainty due to the
prepayments for real property and business taxes of B3.2 million

Financial agsets at falr value through other comprehensive income was velued at R35.0 million both for the periods ended 31 March 2019 and
31 December 2018.

Investments in asseciates increased from R421.7 miflion as of 31 December 2018 to 2423.7 milion as of 31 March 2018. The increass of 2.0
million was due mainly to the recognition of equity in net earnings of associate.

Investment properties and Property and equipment as of 31 March 2019 amounted to 2205.4 million was almost at same level as of 31
December 2018. There was very minimal acquisition of office equipment and depreciation during the quarter.

Total liabilities as of 31 March 2019 and 31 December 2018 amounted R21.9 milken and £19.2 million, respectively. The increase of B2.7
million was due to the higher accounts payable and accruals by B2.5 miltion and income tax payable by £0.2 miilion.

The equity affributable to equity holders of the Parent Company as of 31 March 2019 amounted to R641.1 million as against fast 31 December
2018 of B634.9 million. The increase was due to the net income attributable to Parent Companyy of 8.2 million for the quarter ending 31 March
2018,

Noncontrolling interests as of 31 March 2019 amounted to R360.2 milion as against last 31 December 2018 of R358.2 million. The increase was
due to the netincome attributable to the noncontrolling interests of R2.0 million for the quarter ending 31 March 2018.

The book value per share aftributable to equity holders of the Parent Company (equity attributable. to equity holders of the Parent Company
divided by common shares outstanding) at B11.00 as of 31 March 2019 slightly higher than in 31 December 2018 at R10.98 per share.
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Earnings per share atiibutable to the equity holders of the Pasent Company (net eamings for the quarter divided by common shares
outstanding) as shown in the consolidated statement of income was at R0.11 per share for the period anding 31 March 2019, R0.09 higher than
the £0.02 per share recorded as of 31 March 2018,

Year Ended 2018

Keppel Philippines Holdings, inc. ("KPHI" or the *Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group’) recorded a net
income of 14.2 million in 2018, lower compared to 854.9 millior: in 2017 and 823.8 million in 2016. The decrease was primarily due to the
lower revenue during the year at PA8.5 million as against 891.2 million in 2017, and R44.7 million in 2016. Operating expenses, which
increased to 831.4 mitlion in 2018 from R23.6 million in 2017 and R15.7 million in 2016, also contributed to the dacline in Net Income. This
was partially ofiset by the lower income tax expense of B2.9 mitlion this 2018 as against 212.8 million and 24.2 million In 2017 and 2018,
respectively. Revenuas in 2018 were mainly from rental income, interest eamed from loans and short-term deposits, equity In net eamings of
an associate, gain on sale of investment properties and management fees.

Rental revenue for the year amounied to B22.7 million as against 218.0 million and R20.5 million in 2017 and 2018, respectively. Decrease in
rental revenue was expected the year due to the sale in 2017 of condominium and residential units situated in Makati City and Cebu City.
This, however, was more than offset by a new lease an properties in Batangas City to a third party which contributed about B 8.7 million in
rental.

The Group eamed interest income of R12.2 million in 2018, R12.5 miflion in 2017, and B10.6 million in 2016. The interest eamed from the
loans granted to a related company amounted o 810.7 millicn in 2018, 211.5 million in 2017 and R10.0 million in 2018. The decline in inferest
eamed from loans to a related company was due to prepayment of long-term loan amounting to 287.5 million. Interest rates are agreed upon
with related party at ams-length based on the lowest commercial loan rates on date of granting or renewal of the loan. The Group aiso eamed
interest from short-term deposits amounting to R1.5 millior, £0.9 milfion, and 80.6 million In 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

The Group realized a gain on sale on investment properties of 1.9 million from the sale of another residential unit at Batangas City during the
year as against the gains recognized in 2017 amounting to 249.6 million from the sale of its cendominium units in Makati City, Cebu City and a
residential unit in Batangas City. The proceeds received from the sale of properties amounted to 22.3 million in 2018 as against R52.9 millian
in 2017.

The equity in net eamings of associate CLI as of 31 December 2018 amounted to R10.0 million, higher than B8.7 million in 2017 and slightly
lower than the £10.3 milfion recorded in 2016. The Group received cash dividend from CL! amounting to 28.7 miltion in 2018, £3.5 miltion in
2017 and 211.1 milkion in 2016.

Management iees charged 1o related parties amounted to B0.8 milfion, £1.8 million and R1.4 miflion in 2018, 2017, and 2048, respeciively.
The decrease was due to the lower number of related companies bsing served by the Parent Company.

Operating expenses amounted to 831.4 million, B23.6 miliion, and R16.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The increase in
expenses was brought mainly by: a) higher salaries & benefits due to accrual of refirement plan benefits for the staff; b) higher professional
(legal) fees; ¢} repairs and maintenance relating to properties for rent and d) travel and transportation.

The Group have unrealized fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through other comprehansive income of R15.0 million in 2018, and
unrealized fair value gain on Avallable for Sale financial assets of RS million in 2017 and 83.7 million in 2016,

Financiat Condition

The cash position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to R39.5 million as against 287.9 million af year-end 2017.
The decrease of R48.4 million in cash position was brought about by a 830.0 million increase in loans granted, net of repayment; payment of
dividends of 240.3 million; and, net cash used for operating activities of 2.8 million. These however were partially offset by inferest income
received from toans and deposits of B11.5 million; receipt of dividends from CLI of 28.7 million; and, proceeds from the sale of investment
properties in Batangas City of 2.3 miltion,

Total receivabies both current and non-Gurrent this year amounted to B305.6 millicn as against last year's R276.0 million. The increase was
brought about mainly by the granting of new short-term foans amounting io 2150.0 million with 88 to 90-day {ermn and bearing interest of 3.2%
t0 6.3%, subject to renewal upon maturity. This was partially offset by the repayment of short-ferm and long-term loans of 2120.0 million.

Other current assets increased to B1.0 million as against £0.7 million fast year. The increase was due to higher creditable withholding tax
recelved not fully applied against income tax expense which was subjected to provision for impairment losses. This was partialiy offset by
lower input VAT net appliad against oufput fax and lower advances to employaes.

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share at fair value price as of December 2018 amounting to R35.0 million was
reclassified as Financial assefs at fair value through other comprehensive income. Available-for-sale financial assets in 2047 amounted to
£20.0 million.

Investment in an associate increased from B420.4 milfion in 2017 o 2421.7 million this year. The increase was mainly due to equity share in
net income of CLE of 210.0 million, which was partiatly offset by the cash dividend received from CLI this year amounting to R8.7 million.

Investment properties and Property and equipment decreased from B206.0 million in 20%7 to R205.4 million this period due fo sale of a
residential property in Batangas City with book value of £0.2 million and B0.4 million, respectively, nel of depreciation and write-off of chsolete
assels.

Total fiabilities increased from £11.1 million in 2017 to 219.2 million this year, The 8.1 million increment was due to the following increases:
a} accrual of operating expenses by R5.0 million, pariicutarly retirement cost of B4.5 million; b} uneamed rent by R0.6 million; ¢) payable fo
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govemment agencies & others by £0.2 million; d) dividends payable to minority sharehalders by B0.7 million; &) refundable deposit by 1.9
millior;; and, f) deferred income tax liability by 80.1 million. This was pariially offset by the decrease in incoma tax payable by 20.4 miflion.

Total equity amounted to 993.1 millian as of 31 December 2018 and B1,004.2 million in December 2017. Retained eamings amounted to
R476.7 million as of December 2018 as compared to B477.2 million in December 2017, since the year's net income after non-coniralling
interests of £5.2 million was more than offset by cash dividend of B5.8 million.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company amourded to B634.9 million and P620.4 million as of December 2018 and
2017, respectively. The net baok value per share as of December 2018 was 210.98 as against December 2017 of R10.73. The eamnings per
share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company for the years 2018 and 2017 were R0.09 and £0,78, respectively.

Year Endad 2017

Keppel Philippines Holdings, tnc. "KPH!" or the *Parent Cormpany”) and its subsidiaries {collectivaly referred to as “the Group™ recorded & net
income of B54.9 miflion in 2017, higher than R223.8 million in 2016 and B26.% million in 2015. The increase was primarly due fo higher
revenue this year of B91.2 milfion as against R44.7 million in 2016, and P46.3 million in 2015. Revenues in 2017 were mainly from gain on
sale of investment properties, rental income, interest income, equity in net earnings of an associate, and management fees. The increase in
revenue was partially offset by higher aperating expenses of 823.6 million in 2017 and higher provision for income tax of 212.8 million.

The Group realized gain on sale on investment properties of 249.6 million from sale of its condominium units in Makati City, Cebu City and
residential unit at Batangas Cify, The proceads received from the sale of properties amounted o 852.8 million.

Rentat revenue for the year amounted to P18.0 million as against rental revenue of B20.5 miltion and 219.4 miilion in 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The decrease was due to the sale of the condominium units.

Interest income from short-term and long-term foans granted to related company and short-ferm deposits this year amounted to 212.5 millon,
210.6 miftion in 2016, and B9.6 million in 2015. The interest eamed from the loans granted to a related company amounted to ®11.5 million,
£10.0 millicn and #8.0 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest rates are agreed upon with related party on arms-length based on
average commercial loan rates on date of granting or renewal of the loan. The interest eamed from shori-term deposits amounted to B0.9
milllion, £3.6 million, and &1.6 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The equity in net eamnings of associate CLI as of 31 December 2017 amounted 1o 28.7 million lower than in 2016 of £10.3 million and in 2015
of 214.8 million. This was brought by lower income realized by CLI during the years. The Group received cash dividend from CLI amounting
1o B3.5 million in 2017, 211.1 milfion in 2016 and R17.5 million in 2015,

Management fess charged to related parties amounted to 21.8 million, 21.4 million and £1.2 million in 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

Operating expenses amounted to 823.6 million, R16.7 million, and R14.7 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The increase in
expensas was brought mainly by: a) higher salaries & benefits due to accrual of rafirement plan beneits for the staff and cost of transfer of
empioyees from related company to the KPH; b} higher professional {lega) fees; c} higher provision for impairment losses; and d) commission
for the sale of investment properies.

The Group realized other comprehensive income from fair value gain adjustment on AFS financial assets of 20.5 millicn in 2017, B3.7 million
in 2018, and £0.8 million in 2015.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted o #87.9 million as against the same period fast year of 224.3
million. The increase of £83.6 milion was brought mainly by the procesds from the sale of investment property of P52.9 million, nef effect of
granting of new loan and repayment amounting to B75.0 million, interest income recelved from loans and deposits of 212.8 million, and recelpt
of dividends of B3.5 millior. This was parfially offset by payment of dividends of £69.0 million, net cash provided for operating activities of
B11.% mitlior and acquisition of office equipment of 2 0.1 milkon.

Total receivables both current and non-current this year amounted to R276.0 million as against last year of 23537 million. The decrease was
brought mainty by repayment of shortterm and leng-term loans of £207.5 million partially offset by the granting of new short-erm loans
amounting to B132.5 million, with 80-day, interest bearing of 2.8% to 3.5% and collsction from rental receivable.

Other current assefs increased to B0.7 million as against 80.1 million last year. The increase was due to higher creditable withholding tax of
received not fully applied against income tax payable and higher advances subject for liquidation. This was partially offset by lower input VAT
which was applied against output tax.

Available-for-sale financial assets related fo a quoled club share at fair value price as of December 2017 and 2016 amounting to 220.0 milfion
and 218.5 million, respectively.

lnvestment in an associate increased from R415.2 million in 206 to 2420.4 million this year. The increase was mainly due fo equity share in
net income of CLI of B8.7 million. The share was reduced by the cash dividend received from CLI this year amounting to R3.5 million.

Investment properties and Property and equipment decreased from 2209.5 million in 2016 to 2206.0 million this period due fo sale of
depreciated condominium units with book value of B3.3 million, depreciation of 20.3 million and partially offset by purchase of office equipment
amounting fo R0.1 million.

Total liabilities fncreased from £8.6 miliion in 2016 to 811.1 million this year. The increase of R2.5 million was dus to the net effect of higher
accruals of operating expenses amounting to R4.4 milfion, particularly retirement cost of B4.0 million and payable to government agencies
including income: tax liability of 0.6 million. This was partially offset by decrease in security deposits and advance rental of 22.8 miltion,
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Total equity as of 31 December 2017 amounted to 81,004.2 million and R1,017.9 million in December 2015. Retained earmings amounted io
B477.2 million as of December 2017 as compared to 2438.2 miilion in December 2016. The increase was due to net income after non-
controlling interests of R44.8 millian partially offset by cash dividend of R5.8 million.

The equity attributable fo equity holders of the Parent Company amounted o 2620.4 million and R580.9 million as of December 2047 and
2016, respectively. The net book value per share as of December 2017 was 810.73 as against December 2016 of R10.05. The eamings per
share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as of December 2017 and 2016 were R0.78 and R0.24, respectively.

Year Ended 2016

Keppel Philippines Holdings, inc. ("KPHI" or the “Parent Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Groug™) recorded a net
income of £23.8 million in 2016 as against £26.9 million in 2015 and 226.2 million in 2014. The Group achieved revenues of R44.7 million
this year as against 246.3 miliion in 2015, and R46.2 million in 2014. Revenues in 2016 were mainty from rental income, equity share in net
earnings of associates, interest income, dividend income and management fees.

The Group realized rental revenue of B20.5 million, 219.4 million and £19.3 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, brought by increase
in rental rate. The squity share in nat eamings of associate CLI as of Dacember 31, 2016 of R10.3 millicn was lower than in 2015 of 214.8
milfion and in 2014 of 820.0 million. This was brought by lower income realized by CLI in 2016. The Group received cash dividend from CLI
amounting to 211.1 miftion in 2016, B17.5 million in 2015 and B14.0 million in 2014.

The Group eamed interest income from loans granted to & related company and from short-term deposits amounting to 2106 miflion in 2018,
B9.6 million in 2015, and £4.7 milfion in 2014, The interest eamed from the loans granted to 2 related company amounted to 210.0 million,
B8.0 milien and £2.0 milion in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase was brought by the higher shor:-term loan granted from
£100.0 million in 2015 to B229.5 million in 2016, This was partially offset by lower interest eamed from long-term lean due to repayment of
principat amounting to B50.0 milien. The interest eamed from shori-term deposits amounted to 0.6 miliion, 1.6 million and £2.7 millien in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respactively. The decreass was due io lower funds in shart-term deposits.

The Group easmed dividend income from an associate of R1.6 million in 2016. Management fees charged fo related parties amounted to 21.4
million in 20186, and £1.2 million in 2015, and 2014

The Group generated other income of 20.3 mitlior: this year as against R1.3 million in 2015 and £4.1 mitlion in 2014. The decrease was
brought by reversal of prior years' accrual amounting to RO.7 million and commission eamed from joint venture agreement with related
company of 0.3 miflicn in 2015 and 20.9 in 2014

Operating expenses in 2016 amounted o R16.7 miflion, 14% higher as against R14.7 million in 2015, and 4% lower as against 217.5 million in
2014. Increase in expenses was brought mainty by the impact of the recovered creditable withholding tax which was previously provided with
allowance in prior years and none this year. Salaries and benefils, taxes and ficenses, travel and transporiation cost, utilities and office
supplies also increased and were partially offset by lower depreciation expense, membership dues, professiona! fees and others.

The Group reatized other comprehensive incame from fair value gain adjusiment on AFS financial assets of 3.7 million in 2016, 20.8 million
in 2015 and nil in 2014,

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to R24.3 mitlion as against the same period Jast year of £55.1
million. The decrease of 56% or B30.8 million was brought mainly by the net effect of granting of new loan and repayment amounting fo 229.5
million, payment of dividends of 215.7 million and buy-back of KPH shares amounting to R12.7 million. This was partially offset by the receipt
of cash dividend of R12.7 million, receipt of interest from loans and deposits of 810.2 million and net cash provided by operating activities of
£4.8 million

Tolal net receivables this year amounted to R353.7 miflion as against fast year of 2324.2 million. The increase was by brought mainly by
2176.8 miltion short-term loan with 80-day, interest bearing of 2.8% to 3.2% granted to a related company, increase in interest receivable of
81.2 million in 2016 from RO.8 million in 2015 and increase ir other receivables of R1.5 million as against last year of R1.2 million. The
increase was partially offset by principal payment on long term lean of 50,0 million and payment of shori-term loan recaivable of £97.3
miltion.

Other current assets decreased to 0.1 miltion this year as against 21.0 mitlion in 2015, The decrease was due primarily to application of
creditable withholding tax and input vat against provision for income tax and output tax.

Available-for-gale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2016 and 2015 amounted to B19.5 million and 15,8 million,
respectively. Investment in an associate decreased from P416.0 million in 2015 to R415.2 million this year. The decrease was due primarily
to lower equity share in net income of CL! of 210.3 million this year as against R14.9 million 2015. The share was reduced by the cash
dividend received from CL this year amounting to 211.1 million as against R17.5 million in 2045.

Investment properties and Property and equipment decreased from B208.9 million in 2015 to R208.6 million this period due to depreciation.
There was purchase of office eguipment amounting to £3.03 million this year and nil in 2015.

Total liabilities increased from 7.4 million in 2015 to B8.6 million this year. The 13.0% increase was due increase in accruals for expenses
and provision for income tax.

Total equity as of 31 December 2016 amounted to #1,017.9 miltion and R1,018.8 million in December 2015. Retained eamings amounted to
£438.2 mifion as of December 2016 as compared to B430.7 million in December 2015. The increase was due to net income after non-
controliing intereste of R13.6 miltion partially offset by cash dividend of 6.0 million. The number of ireasury shares increased from
12,806,081 shares amounting to B9.9 million to 15,370,081 shares at 22,6 miflion. This was due fo purchase from the open market of
2,564,000 shares at P4.95 per share plus related sxpenses
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The equity attributable to equity hoiders of the Parent Company amounted to R580.9 million and 2582.4 million as of December 2018 and
2015, respectively, The net book value per share as of December 2016 was 210,05 as against same period last year of 29.65. The eamings
per share attributable 10 the equity holders of the Parent Campany as of December 2016 and 2015 were 20,24 and 20,22, respectively.

Plan of Action for 2019

KPH shall focus on maintaining and adding value on its investment properties. Among others, the strategies may include purchase of shares
of stock, purchase of additional investment properties, increasing occupancy and rental rates. Certain properties may be considered for sale
where it can contribute the best value to the Group and its shareholders. investment properties of strategic vaiue shall be reviewed for further
investments where appropriate.

Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators of the Group for the last three (3) fiscal years and first quarter of 2019 are follows:

Particuiars 1QMar 2019 2018 2017 2018
Current Ratio
{Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 16.10 18.02 3.1 52.22
Acid Test Ratio or Quick Ratio
{Monetary Current Assefs/Current Liabilifies) 15.88 17.96 30.93 52.20
Solvency Ratio
{Net Incorne + Depraciation)/Total Liabiiities * 1.50 075 497 280
{Total Assefs/Toial Liabilifies) 46.76 52.63 91.44 119.08
Asset to Equity Ratio 1.02 1.02 1.01 1.01
Debt Ratio
(Total Liabilities/Total Assets) 6.02 0.02 0.01 001
Debt 1o Equity Ratio
(Total Liabilities/Stockholders’ Equity) 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01
Reium on Assets {%) *
{Net Income/Total Assets) 319 1.40 540 23
Return on Equity (%) *
(Net Income/Stockholders’ Equity) 3.26 143 548 2.33
Eamings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of Parent (B) * 0.43 0.09 0.78 0.24
Book Value per Share Atiributable to Equity Holders of the Parent (8) 11.09 10.98 10.73 10.05
*Annualized '

There are no known events that may trigger a direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Group, including any default or
acceleration of an obfigation that was not disclosed. There are nio material off-balance sheet transactions, cbligations {including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the Group with unsoficited entities or other persons created during the reporting period that has not
been disclosed, The Group has no material commitment for capital expenditures for the next 12 months that would nead to raise or generate
funds for.

There are nc trends, events or uncertainties that may have a material effect or impact, whether favorable or unfavorable, on the revenues or
income from continuirg operations of the Group. The financial condition or results of operations of the Group is not affected by any seasonal
change.

E. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
in the ordinary course of business, the Group has transactions with its effiliates. The significant fransactions with affiliates are as follows:
1} Lease agreements

GMRI

GMRI leases parcels of land to KPMI where the latter's shipyard is located. The agresment covering these properties is for a period of 50
years beginning 1983. The annual lease raie amounted to 2t0.5 million and is subject to an escalation ctause of 2% after every five (5}
years. Rental income, based on the straight-fine method, amounted to 29.6 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016. Total outstanding balance of
lease receivables presented in the consolidated statement of financial position representing lease differential in the computation of rent
income using straight line method amounted to R32.0 miflicn and R32.9 miltion as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively.

In 2015, GMRI entered info a new lease agreement with KPM! for another parce! of land covering a period of one {1) year commencing on 1
January 2015 to 3t December 2015, subject to yearly renewal. The lease agreement was renewed in 2018 and 2017 with monthly rental of
£0.04 million, Rental income generated from this agresment amounted to R0.4 mitlion in 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016.
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GRDC
GREC leases its properties to KPMI for a period of one (1) year, renewable annually under such terms and conditions as may be mutually
agreed upon by both parties. Total rent income recognized for the year amounted to 0.3 million as of 31 December 2018, 2047 and 2016.

KPSt

KPSt leases certain properties to KPMI, KIV, Kepwealth Property, and KECI for a period of one {1) year, renewable annually. Kepwealth
Property's lease confract was terminated on 31 October 2017. Total rent income recognized during the year amounted to £0.7 million as of
31 December 2018 and 21.3 miliion in 2017 and 2016, respectively,

Parent Company

The Parent Company and KPMI has an existing land lease agreement on a piece of land which is the subject of complaint against the
Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC}. The monthly rent for the said piece of tand is R0.2 million for a period of one (1) year, subject to
yearly renewal. In July 2018, the lease agreement was renewed for ancther year with no increase in the monthly rental rate. Total rental
income recognized amounted 1o #22.1 million in 2018, 2017 and 2015.

Tetal rental income earned from these agraements amaunied to R13.2 milion for the year anded 31 December 2018 and R13.7 million for
2017 and 2016.

{2) Loan agreements with KPMI

GMRI
Outstanding Outstanding
as of as of
Release Principal 31 December Transactions 31 December
Date Amount 017 Availment Payment 2018 Terms and Conditions
Long- Sep 2014 200,006,000 87,500,000 . {87.500,000) - Unsecured, S-year, 4 equal
term quarterly instaliments, interest
subject fo repricing
semi-annual, option for eary
repayment, interest rates:
2017 - 3.6% {0 4.6%,
2018-4.5% 0 5.4%
87,500,000 - (87,500,000 -
Short- Dec 2017 12,600,000 12,500,000 {12,500,000) - Unsecured, 8880 days with
term renewal; interest rates 2017-
- 3% to 4.3% interest rates,
Aug 2018 15,000,000 15,000,000 {15,000,000) 2018 - 88 days at 4.3%,
Sep 2018 82,000,000 62,000,000 62,000,000 90 days at 6.3%

12,600,900 77,000,000 {27,500,000) 62,000,000

100,000,000 77,000,000 (115,000,000) 62,003,000

Totai outstanding ican of KPMI as of 31 December 2018 amounted o B52.0 million (2017 — R100.0 million). Interest income recognized
from these loans amounted to £3.8 million as of 31 December 2018 (2017 - R8.6 million, 2016 - B7.2 million). Accrued Interest receivable as
of 31 Decernber 20118 and 2017 both amounted to B0.3 million.

KPs!

KPSi granted short-term loan to KPMI since February 2016. As of 31 December 2017, KPMI has outstanding R15.0 million with 90-day term
and was renewed thereafter, Partial payment of B5.0 million was in December 2018. Remaining balance of 210.C million was renewed for 88
days ferm at 6.3%. Interest income recognized from the short-term loan amounted to 0.6 milfion as of 31 December 2018 (2017 — 20.5
million; 2016 - 20.3 million). Accrued interest recsivable amounted fo R0.05 miltion as of 31 December 2018 {2017 — R3.1 million).

Qutstanding as Outstanding
of as of
Principal 31 December Transactions 31 December
Release Date Amount 2017 Availment Payment 2018 Terms and Conditions
17 Qct 2016 15,800,000 15,000,000 (5,000,000) 10,000,000  Unsecured 90 days with renewal,

interest in 2017 - 3.0% to 3.5%;
2018 - 3.2% fo 4.8%; Renewed
November 2018 - 88 days at 6.3%
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Parent Company
The Parent Company started to grant short-term loans to KPMI in June 2015, As of 31 Decernber 2018, KPMI has loan balance of 2200.0
million (2017 - £127.0 miilion).

As of 31 Decamber 2018, KPM! has outstanding short-term Ioans as foliows:

Outstanding Outstanding as
as of of
Principat 31 December Transactions 31December
Release Date Amount 2017 Avaiiment Payment 2018 Terms and Conditions
16 June 2017 52,000,008 52,000,000 - - 52,060,000 Unsecured 90 days with renewal,
27 Nov 2017 50,000,000 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000  intersst — 2017 2.8% fo 3.5%; 2018
4 Dec 2017 25,000,000 25,000,000 - - 25000000 3% 106.3%
127,600,000 127,000,000
12 Mar 2018 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 . 18,000,000  Unsecured 90 days with renewal at
7 Apr2018 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 3.0% t0 6.3%;
14 Dec 2018 30,000,000 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 80 days at 5.9%

127,000,008 73,000,000

170,000,000

Interest income recognized from these loans by the Parent Company amounted to B5.4 million as of 31 December 2018 (2017 —R2.4 million,
016 - #2.5 milfion). Accrued interest receivable amounted to 1.2 miltion as of 31 December 2018 (2017 - 0.3 million).

Total interest income earried from these loan agreements amounted to 10.7 million for the year ended 3t December 2018 (2017 - R11.5
million, 2018 - #10.0 million). Accrued interest receivable amounted to 1.2 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017 — £0.7 million).

(3) Management fees

Since 2013, the Parent Company had management agresment with ifs related companies for a monthly fee. The manthly management fees
are subject to change depending upon the extent and volume of services provided by the Parent Company. This cavers regular consultancy,
handling of financial reporting, perscnnel and administration services. The agreement is considered renewed every year thereafter, unless
one party gives the other a written notice of termination at least thres (3) months prior to the expiration date. tn January 2018, the monthly
management fees of Kepventure, Inc., Kepwealth, Inc. and KIVI is 25,000, B23,000, and 215,000, respectively {2017- B2,500, 212,000, and
B15,000, respectively). The management agreement with Kepwealth Properly was terminated on 31 October 2017 due to the sale of
Kepwealth Property to a third party.

The Parent Company also provides accounting services o KEC, an entity under common control, for a monthly management fee of 220,000
in 2018 (2017 - 825,000). The agreement is considered renewed every year thereafter, unless one party gives the other a written notice of
termination af least three (3) months prior to the anniversary daie.

Management fees earned amounted to 0.8 million in 2018 {2017- R1.8 million; 2016 — 1.4 million). As at 31 December 2018, there was no
intention fram any of the parties to terminate the management services.

(4) Other income

In 2014, the Parent Company entered into a Memorandum of Undertaking {MOU) with KPMI to assist the latter in its bidding activities for
projects for a 1% share in revenue. The Parent Company received B0.4 million in 2018 (2017 & 2016 — nil),

{9) Advances for various expenses and charges

Other transactions with related parties consist of reimbursements or sharing of comman expenses such as legal, communication and business
development expenses,

F. Management and Certain Security Holders

Directors, Executive Officers _
There are seven (7) members of the Board, three (3} of whom are independent directors who hold office for one (1) year. Please refer to Part
1, pages & to 8 of SEC Form 20-IS for the list of incumbent directors and officers,

G. Information on Independent Accountants and Other Related Matters

(1) External Audit Fees and Services
a. Audit and Related Fees - The Company proposes to have the external auditor, isla Lipana & Co. (PwC} to audit the financial
slatements for the Year 2018. Amount of fee will be discussed with the Management,

The aggregate fee billed by Ista Lipana & Co. for 2018 audit of the Company' s annual financial statements was 292,000 and the
aggregate fee bitled by SGV for the audit of the Company's annual financial stafements was 292,000 for 2017 and 2046. There
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were no other services performed by Ist Lipana & Co. last three fiscal years. The services performed by the Company's extemal
auditors and the fees are reviewed by the Audit & Risk Management Committse prior to submission to the Board of Directors for
approval,

b. Tax Fees — No tax fees were paid for the years 2018, 2017 and 2016,

¢. Other Fees -~ No other fees were paid for the years 2018, 2017 and 2016,

d. Audit & Risk Management Commitiee’s Approval Policies & Procedures — The Committee evaluates proposals based cn the Guality
of sesvice, commitment for deadline and fees. The Committee may require a presentation from each propanent fo clarify some
issues.

(2) ~ Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Changes in accounting standards in accordance with PFRS are stated in Note 20 to the financial statements. For the last thres fiscal
years, there were no disagreements with the independent accountants relating to accounting principles or practices, financial
statements disclosure, or procedure,

H. Corporate Governance

The Company had been in substantial compliance with its Manual on Corporate Goverance ("Manual’) for the period January to December
2018. There were no major deviations from the adopted Manuat. The Company, its directors, officers and employees complied with all the
leading practices on good corporate governance as embodied in the Corporation’s Manual, Most of the members of the Board of Diractors of
the Company and Officers have attended and completed a seminar on Corporate Governanse conducted by Risk, Opporiunities, Assessment
and Management (ROAM) Inc. on 21 June 2018 at Belmont Hotet Manila, Pasay City except for Mr. Mayo Jose Ongsingco, who aitended the
Anti-Money Laundering, Corporate Govemance & Ethics Seminar on 25 October 2018 at GT Tower Penthause, Makasi City.

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are separate and there are adequate checks and balances to ensure that independent, outside views,
perspectives, and that judgment are given praper hearing in the Board.

The Board's responsibilty is to oversee the business, assets, affairs and performance of the Company in the best inferest of its shareholders.
The Board focuses its activities on corporate strategy, major investments and divestments, financial performance, risk management and other
corporate governance practices. Management's responsibility is to sun the business in accordance with the policies and strategies set by the
Board. The Company held six (6) Board of Directors meetings in 2048,

Date of Board Meetings
Name 25 10 22 22 03 09 % of
January May June June August | November | Attendance
Regular Regular | Regufar | Organizational | Regular Regular
1. Pau Tan Poh Lee v v v v v v 100%
2. Celso P, Vivas —
v v v v v v g
Lead Independent Director 100%
3. Mayc Juse B. Ongsingco - v v o
Independent Director Y v v v 100%
4, Ramen J. Abgjusla v » v v v v o
Independent Director 100%
5. Stefan Tong Wai Mun v v v v v v 100%
8. Alan |. Claveria v v v v v v 100%
7. Felicidad V. Razon v v v v v v 100%
Legend:
¥ — present x —absent

The three (3) independent directors filed with the SEC and PSE their cerfificates of qualification declaring that they possess all the
qualifications and none of the disquadifications to serve as an independent directar as provided in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code
and its implementing rules and regulations. The certifications include tistings of affiliations with companies and organizations and compliance
with the independent directors’ duties and responsibiiities.

All Audit and Risk Management Commitiee (ARMC) members have the related financial and accounting expertise and sxperience necessary
to discharge their responsibilities. The ARMC assists the Board to ensure integrity of financial reporting and that there is in place sound
internal confrol, enterprise fisk management systems and related party transactions. The Company adopted Audit and Risk Management
Committee Charter and was submitted to SEC last 2 Cctober 2012. The ARMC comprises of the following members: Celso P. Vivas as
Chaimman - Lead Independent Director; Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco — Independent Director, Ramon J. Abgjusla - Independent Director and
Stefan Tong Wai Mun, as members, The Commitiee met 4 times in 2018 (25 January, 10 May, 3 August and 9 November 2018).

The Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee (CGNC) covers matters on corporate govemnancs, nomination and compensation. It
is comprised of Mayo Jose B, Ongsingco as Chairman/independent Director, Celso P. Vivas ~ independent Director, Ramon J. Abgjuela -
Independent Director and Stefan Tong Wai Mun, as members. The Committee met three (3) times in 2318 (10 May, 22 June, and 9 Noverber
2018).
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The Board finds the Company's existing performanee monitoring system efficient and that the Board and Management {including officers and
staff) are fufly committed in adhering to the principles and best practices of the Company's Manual. The Company thus considers its Manyal
sufficient to ssrve as its guide, fo ensure that it operates with uimost integrity and to the highest standards of business conduct.

The Board of Directors of the Company approved its Amended Manual on Corporate Govemance on 4 February 2010 purstant fo SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 6, series of 2009 (Revised Code of Corporate Governance) and submitted the same to SEC on 15 March 2010.
The Company aisc complied with the submissicn of SEC Form ACGR (Arnual Corporate Governance Report) to SEC and PSE (online) on 1
July 2013 as per SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, series of 2013, The Company submitted the New Manual on Corporate Governance in
July 2017 and was revised and approved on 10 November 2017. The Company also submitted fo SEC its I-ACGR for the fiscal year 2017 on
30 May 2018. The Company wilt endeavor to submit its Y2018 I-ACGR prior to the 30 May 2018 deadiine.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHiLIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )S.S.

CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

i, CELSOQ P. VIVAS, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of No. 125 Wilson Circle, San

Juan, Metro Manila, after having been duly sworn in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1.

t am a nominee for independent director of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI) with
office address at Unit 3B Country Space | Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo
Village, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City. | have been its independent director since 2005 and
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

2. lam affiliated with the following companies or organizations,
Company/QOrganization Position/Relationship Period of Service
Marubeni Foundation Member, Board of Trustees March 2001 o present
Keppel Philippines Properties inc. | Independent Director November 2004 to
present
Keppetl Philippines Marine, Inc. Chairman of the Audit April 2005 to present
Committee and Independent
Director
Keppe! Subic Shipyard, inc. independent Director 2011 to present
Megawide Construction Corp. Chairman of the Audit July 2018 to present
Committee and Independent
Director
Republic Glass Hotdings Corp. independent Director May 2017 to present

3. | possess aill the qualifications and none of the disqualifications {o serve as an Independent
Director of Keppel Philinpines Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regutations and other SEC issuances.

4. | am not related to any of the directors/officers/substantial shareholder/s of KPHI.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding.

6. | shalt faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regutation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations,
Code of Corporate Governance and SEC issuances.

7. | shall inform the Corporate Secratary of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. of any changes in
the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

MAR 2 1 2013
Done this ___day of 2019, at Makati City, Philippines. .

W
CELSO P. VIVAS
Affiant

2019 at

LZﬁSC ; AND SWORN to before me this _ g of
Ciﬁ : N&Eﬁ?‘ Philippines, affiant personally appeared before rie and exhibited to me his Tax

ldentification Number (TIN)

H / Anpointment No. M-1£3 (2015.2020)
Doc. No. ; PTR No. 7333104 fan. 3, 2019/ Makati
Page No. ; 189 Lifetkme No. 656155 Rolt Mo, 40091
Book No. ; RACLE Complizace No. V-0006934
Series of 2018. 101 Urban Ava, Camypus Rueda Bldg,

Beay. Plo el Plilar, Niakesl Oty




' REPUBLIC OF w&_wﬁﬂ s

CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

t, MAYO JOSE B. ONGSINGCO, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of No. 85, 9™ Street corner
Broadway Avenue, New Manila, Quezon City, after having been duly sworn in accordance with law do
hereby declare that:

1. | am a nominee for independent director of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI), with office
address at Unit 3B Countryspace | Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village, Barangay
Bel-Air, Makati City, and have been its independent director on 08 May 2017,

2. [ am affiliated with the foliowing companies or organizations:

Company/Organization Position/Relationship Period of Service
PBC Capital Investment Corp. Director/President February 2019*

First Metro Securities Brokerage Corp. Vice Chairman 2018 up to present
Keppel Philippines Maring, inc. Independent Director 2018 up to present
Keppel Philippines Propertias, Inc. Independent Director 2018 up to present
Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. Independent Director 2018 up to present
First Metro Asset Management, Inc. Non-executive Director 2017 up to prasent
Omnipay, Inc. independent Director 2017 up to present
Mapfre Insular Insurance Corporation Independent Director 2016 up to present
First Metro Investment Corporation Adviser to the Board of Directors { 2015 up o present
De La Salle College of St. Benilde Trustee 2013 up to present
Foundation for Carmelite Scholastics Trustee 2012 up 1o present
Rafael Alunan Agro-Development, inc. Noen-executive Director 2006 up to present

*Newly appointed Director/President

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent Director
of KPHI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules
and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. |am not related to any of the directors/officers/substantial shareholder/s of KPHI.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding.

8. | shall faithfuily and ditigently comply with my duiies and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Reguiation Code and its Implementing Ruies and Regulations, Code of
Corporate Governance and SEC issuances.

7. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of KPHI of any changes in the abovementioned information
within five days from its occurrence.

cimy i
Done this M'agl{ayzofl st* 2012 at TY OF MAKA“‘PhiIippines.
r&' o “7
</—~ MAYOJOSE By ONGSINGCO

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN tc before me et mg 2019 at
KATY | affiant personally appeared beftrs my to me his driver's license

Until
Apnointment Ha. M-183 a
Doc. No. : 9-?:-% No. 7333104 Jan. 3, z:nsv/wrakmu1
Page No. ' 157 Lietlme N, 656155 Roli No. 4009
Book No ; wieis Campliznce No. V-6006934
. . : 104 Urhan tve. Compos aueda Bidg-
Series ordts frgy. Fio Dol Flan siaketi Clity
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CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT PIRECTOR

{, RAMON J. ABEJUELA, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of No. 116 Ma. Cristina
Street, Ayala Alabang Village, Muntiniupa City, after having been duly sworn in accordance with law
do hereby declare that:

1. {am a nominee for independent director of Keppel Phitippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI) and have
been its independent director since September 14, 2017.

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

Company/Organization Position/Relationship Period of Service
Philippine Nutri-Foods Corporation | Director/Vice Ghairman 2004 fo Present
NCP Publishing inc. Director/Vice Chairman 2004 to present
Keppel Philippines Properties, inc. | Chairman of the Audit 2009 to present
Committee and Independent
Director

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an independent
Director of Keppe! Philippines Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. [ am not related to any of the directors/officers/substantial sharehoider/s of KPHL.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding.

6. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as Independent
Director under the Securities Reguiation Code and its Implementing Rules and Reguiations,
Code of Corporate Governance and SEC issuances.

7. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Keppel Philippines Holdings, inc. of any changes in
the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

MAR %1 2013 CITY OF MAKAT)

Done this 2019, at , Philippines,

- ————

R N J. ABEJUELA
Affiant

?H}B&EFRFEEA ND SWORN to before me this HAR dgy 102319 2019 at
C , Philippines, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited fo me his
Tax Identification Number (TIN) 172-761-781.

NEwpn B. ORTIZ JR.
Doc. No. ll( : piptary Publit Makst City
Page No . Uintii Dec, B1, 2018
' ! Anpelatment No. M-182 (2039-2020)
Book No. ; BT 0. 73321048 lan. 3, 2018/ Makat
Series of 2019. fatime Mo. 856155 Reli Mo. 49053




REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATICITY ) SS.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, being the Vice President of KEPPEL PHILIPPINES
HOLDINGS, INC. (KPHI), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of Philippine laws (SEC Identification No. 62596) with principal office at Unit
3-B Country Space 1 Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village, Barangay
Bel-Air, Makati City, do hereby certify that, as of current date, no members of the
Board of Directors and no officers of KIPHI are employed by or connected with any
government agency and/or instrumentalities.

This Certification is issued in connection with the filing/submission of KPHI's
Definitive Information Sheet with the SEC and for all legal purposes it may serve.

FELICIDADW, RAZON
Vice President/Treasurer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this MAR 212019 at Makati City; affiant
exhibited to me her Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Card bearing numbers
112-942-756.

Doc. No. _?% ; |
Page No. U“ S Ho. 7321304 Jan, 3, 2018/Makati
55 Lifetime 0. 536155 Roll No. 40081

Book No. / FACLE Codaphiance Mo, V-0006934

Series of 2019. 491 Urkan Ave. Gampos Ruefia Bldg.
tirgy. Plo Det Piiar, Makaii City
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE STOCKHOLDERS
Held at Eunction Rooms 2 & 3, Basement 1, Belmont Hotel Manila,
Newport Boutevard, Newport City, Pasay City on 22 June 2018

CALLTO ORDER

The Chairman, Mr. Paut Tan Poh Lee, called the meeting to order at about
11:30 a.m. Befare proceeding with the agenda, the Chairman introduced each
of the members of the Board who were all present including the Corporate
Secretary.

PROOF OF NOTICE OF MEETING AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

Upon request by the Chairman, the Corporate Secretary confirmed that notice
for this meeting has have been sent to each and every stockholder in
accordance with the 8y-laws of the Corporation and rules of the Securities &
Exchange Commission (SEC) and was also published in the Philippine Daily
Inguirer last 28 May 2018. Out of the total outstanding shares, about 82.05%
were present either in person or by proxy; hence, there was a quorum.

READING AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL
STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING HELD ON 16 JUNE 2017

It was indicated that copies of the.minutes of the last annual meeting held on
16 June 2017 were made available to the stockholders before the start of the
meeting. Thus, on proper maotion duly made and seconded, the reading of the
aforesaid minutes was dispensed with and the minutes was accordingly
approved.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL REPORT AND APPROVAL OF AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Chairman stated that the Annual Report is available at the PSE website or
may be requested from the Corporate Secretary and printed copies are also
avallable at the entrance. All relevant information can be found under the
Company’s Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) and/or Definitive Information
Statement {SEC Form 20-15). The SEC Form 20-S which contains the audited
financial statements has been sent out to the stockholders prior to the
stockholders’ meeting and that copies thereof were made available at the
entrance of the venue for the meeting for those who have not received a copy
yet.

On the other hand, when inquired by a stockholder of the Corperation, the
President, Mr. Alan |. Claveria, stated that the two (2) businesses of KPHI are:
1) investment holdings and 2) real estate.
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There being no other questions and on motion duly made and seconded, the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 2017 was approved.

V. RATIFICATION OF THE ACTS AND. PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND MANAGEMENT DURING THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW

Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution was
adopted:

“RESOLVED, That all the official or corporate acts
and proceedings of the Board of Directors, Officers and
Management of the Corporation since the last annual
meeting of the stockholders up to the present are
hereby ratified.”

Vi ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman inquired from the Corporate Secretary if there had been any
nominations submitted in accordance with the Corporation’s By-laws and
Manual on Corporate Governance. The Secretary answered in the affirmative
and read the names of the four (4) nominees for election as regular members
of the Board of Directors and three (3) nominees for independent directors for
the year 2018-2019. She added that there were no other nominations filed in
accordance with the By-laws and New Manual on Corporate Governance other
than the names she had mentioned.

Considering that there were seven {7} nominees, the Chairman directed the
Corporate Secratary to cast the votes equally in their favor, The following were
then elected as directors of the Corporation for the year 2018-2015 and shall
serve as such until their successors are elected and shall have qualified:

Paul Tan Poh Lee

Alan |, Claveria

Celso P, Vivas — Lead Independent Director
Mayo jose B. Ongsingco ~ Independent Director
Ramon J. Abejuela — Independent Director
Stefan Tong Wai Mun

Felicidad V. Razon

I L

Vii.  DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution was
adopted:
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“RESOLVED, That the amount of SIXTY
THOUSAND PESOS {P60,000.00} per director be as it is
hereby appropriated as and by way of directors’
remuneration for the last fiscal year.”

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution was
adopted:

“RESOLVED, That Isla Lipana & Co. {PWC) be as it
is hereby reappointed as the external auditor of the
Corporation for the year 2018 at a fee to be fixed by
Management.”

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS (ARTICLE 1V-Sections 3, 4 and 5)

Upon motion duly made and seconded, in order that the By-laws of the
Corporation Is made consistent with the revisions made to the New Manual on
Corporate Governance (MCG), the stockholders adopted the following
resolutions as initially approved by the Board in its meeting held on 10
Navember 2017

“RESOLVED, That Sections 3, 4 and 5 of the Fourth Articie of the
Corporation’s By-laws be amended to rzad as follows:

Section 3. Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee [CGNC) - The Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee shall be composed of at least three
members, all of whom will be independent directors,
including the Chairman.

The CGNC has the following functions:

. Corporate Governance
. Nomination
- Compensation

Corporate Governance Functions:

The Committee is tasked in ensuring compilance with and
proper observance of corporate governance principles and
practices,

The Corporate Governance functions are as follows:

i Oversee the implementation of the corporate
governance framework and periodically reviews the
said framework to ensure that it remains appropriate
in light of material changes to the Corporation’s size,
complexity and business strategy, as well as its
business and regulatory environments;
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ii. Oversee the periodic performance evaluation of the
Board and its committees as well as executive
management, and conduct an annual salf-evaluation
of its performance;

fil. Ensure that the results of the Board evaluation are
shared, discussed, and that concrete action plans are
developed and impiemented to address the
identified areas for improvement;

v, Recommend continuing education/training
programs for directors, assignment of tasks/projects
10 board committees, succession plan for the board
members and senior officers, and remuneration
packages for corporate and individual performance;

V. Adopt corporate governance policies and ensures
that these are reviewed and updated regularly, and

consistently implemented in form and substance;

vi. Propose and plan relevant trainings for the members
of the Board.

Nomination Functions:

Determine the nomination and election process for the
Corporation’s directors and has the special duty of defining
the general profile of board members that the Corporation
may need and - ensuring appropriate knowledge,
competencies and expertise that complement the existing
skiils of the Board.

The Nomination functions are as follows:

i Pre-screen and shortlist all candidates to the Board
and other appointments that require Board
approval, in accordance with the qualificatiens and
disquzlifications enumerated provided under this
Manual, the Corporation Code, Securities
Regulations Cede, and other pertinent rules and
regulations;

ii, Assess the effectiveness of the Board's processes and
procedures in the election or replacement of
directors;

ifi. in consultation with the Executive Committee, re-
define the role, duties and responsibilities of the
President by integrating the dynamic requirements
of the business as a going concern and future
expansionary prospects within the realm of good
corporate governance at all times;
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iv. Ensure compliance and proper observance by the

directors of the corporate governance principles and
practices;
V. Oversee the periodic performance evaluation of the

Board and its Committees as well as executive
management and tonduct an annual self-evaiuation
of its performance;

vi. Ensure that the results of the Board evaluation are
shared, discussed, and that concrete action plans are
developed and implemented to address the
identified areas for imgrovement; and

wii. Ensure the nomination and election process are
comglied with.

The nomination and election process include the review and
evaluation of the qualifications of all persons nominated to
the Board, in relation to criteria set forth in the Corporation’s
“Manual on Corporate Governance, By-iaws, and applicable
regulations, inciuding whether the candidate:

. possesses the knowledge, skills, experience;

. Has Independence of ming, especially to the NED,
given their responsibilities to the Board;

. Has a record of integrity and good repute;

. Has sufficient time to carty out the responsibilities;
and

. Has the ahility to promete smooth interaction

between board members,

The Corporate Governance Committee may secure the
assistance of an executive search firm, if necessary, for this
purpose.

The process includes monitoring the qualifications of the
directors and the grounds for disqualification whether
permanent or temporary.

Section 4. Audit and Risk Management Committee
{ARMC) - The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall be
composed of at least three (3} appropriately qualified non-
executive directors, the majority of whom, including the
Chairman, will be independent. Alt of the members of the
committee must have relevant background, knowledge, skills,
and/ar experience in the areas of accounting, auditing and
¢éinance. The Chalrman of the ARMC will not be the chairman
of the Board or of any other committees.

The ARMC has the following functions:
. Audit

. Enterprise Risk Management
° Related Party Transaction
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Audit Functions:

The ARMC will enhance its oversight capabllity over the
Corporation’s financial reporting, internal control system,
internal and external audit processes, and compliance with
applicable iaws and regulations. 1t will be responsitle for
oversesing the senior ménagement in establishing and
maintaining an adequate, effective and efficient internal
control framework. It ensures that systems and processes are
designed to provide assurance in areas including reporting,
monitoring compiiance with laws, regulations and internal
policies, efficiency and effectiveness of operations, and
safeguarding of assets.

The Audit functions are as follows:

i Recommend the approval of the Internal Audit
Charter (1A Charter}, which formally defines the role
of internal Audit and the audit plan as weli as
oversees the implementation of the IA Charter;

ii. Fven if the Corporation has no Internal Audit
Department, the Internal Audit functions will be
outsourced. It will monitor and evaluate the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control system, integrity of financial
reporting, and security of physical and information
assets. Well-designed internal control proceduves
and processeé that will provide a system of checks
and balances will be in ptace in order to (3) safeguard
the Corporation’s resources and ensure their
effective utilization, {b) prevent occurrence of fraud
and other irregularities, (c) protect the accuracy and
reliability of the Corporation's financlal data, and {d)
ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

fil. Oversee the outsourcing of internal audit services. It
will recommend the appointment and/or grounds for
approval of the terms and conditions for outsourcing
internal audit services;

iv. Establish and identify the reporting line of the
internal Auditor (Qutscurced) to enable him to
properly fulfifl his duties and responsibilities. For this
purpose, he will directly report to the Committee;

V. Review and moniter Management's responsiveness
to the Internal Auditor's findings and
recommendations;

i, Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss
with the External Auditor the nature, scope and
expenses of the audit, and ensure the proper
coordination if more than one audit firm is involved
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in the activity to secure proper coverage and
minimize duplication of efforts;

Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, if any,
of the External Auditor, and periodically reviews the
non-audit fees paid to the External Auditor in
relation ta the total fees pald to him and to the
Corporation’s overall consultancy expenses. The
Committee will disaltow any non-audit work that will
conflict with his duties as an Externat Auditor or may
pose a threat to his independence. The non-audlt
work, if aliowed, will be disclosed in the
Corporation’s Annual Repart and Annual Corporate
Governance Report;

Review and approve the interim and Annual Financiat
Statermnents before their submission to the Board,
with particuiar focus on the following matters:

Any change/s in accounting policies and practices
Areas where a significant amount of judgment has
been exercised

Significant adjustments resulting from the audit
Gaoing concern assumptions

Compliance with accounting standards

Compliance with tax, legal and regulatory
reguirements

Review the disposition of the recernmendations in
the External Auditor's management letter;

Parform oversight functions over the Corporation’s
Internal  and External Auditors; ensure the
independence of Internal and £xternal Auditors, and
that both auditors are given unrestricted access to all
records, properties and personnel to enable them to
perform their respective audit functions;

Coordinate, monitor and facllitate compliance with
laws, rules and regulations;

Recommend to the Board the appointment,
reappointment, removal and fees of the External
Auditor, duly accredited by the Commission, who
undertakes an independent audit of the Corporation,
and provide an objective assurance on the manner
by which the financial statements will be prepared
and presented to the stockholders; and

Meet with the Board at least every quarter without
the presence of the President or other management
team members, and periodicaily mest with the head
of the internal audit. The Committee may invite the
President or other management team if deemed
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nacessary to answer queries raised Dy the
Committee.

Enterprise Risk Mapagement (ERM) Functions:

The ARMC will ensure the functionality and effectiveness of
enterprise risk management frameworks.

The ERM functions are as follows:

ii.

18

vi.

wii.

Pevelop a formal enterprise risk management plan
which contains the foliowing elements: {a) common
language or register or risk, {b) well-defined risk
managemant goals, objectives and oversight, (¢}
uniform processes of assessing risk and developing
strategies to manage prioritized risk, [d} designing
and implementing risk management strategies, and
{e) continuing assessments o improve risk
strategies, processes and measures;

Oversee the implementation of the enterprise risk
management plan. The Committee conducts regular
discussions on the Corporation’s prioritized and
residual  exposures hased on reguler risk
management reports and assesses how the
concerned units or offices are addressing and
manhaging these risks;

Evaluate the risk management plan to ensure iis
continued -relevance, comprehensiveness and
effectiveness. The Committee revisits defined risk
management strategies, looks for emerging or
changing material exposures, and stays abreast of
significant developments that seriously impact the
likelihood of harm or [oss;

Advise the Board on its risk appetite levels and risk
tolerance levels;

Review annually the Corporation’s risk appetite
levels and risk tolerance limits based on changes and
developments in the business, the regulatory
framework, the external economic and business
environment, and when major events occur that are
considered {0 have major impacts on the
Corporation;

Assess the probability of each identified risk
becoming reality and estimates Its possible
significant Impact and likelthood of occurrence,
Priority areas of concern are those risks that are the
most likely to eccur and to impact the performance
and stability of the Corporation and its stakeholders;

Provide oversight over Management's activities in
managing credit, market liquidity, operational, legal
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and other risk exposures of the Corparation. This
function includes regularly receiving information on
risk exposures and risk management activities from
Management, and

Report ta the Board on a regular basis, or as deemed
necessary, the Corﬁoration‘s material risk exposures,
the actions taken %o reduce the risks, and
recommends further action or pians, as necessary.

Further detalls on internal control and risk
management framework can be found on Article 5 of
the Integrated Annual Corporate Goverhance
Report.

Related Party Transactions (RPT} Functigns:

As one of the functions of the ARME, the Committee is tasked
in general to review all material related party transactions of
the Corporation 1o ensure that it is an arms-length, market
based and in compliance with all applicable laws.

The RPT functions are as follows:

Evaluate on an ongoing-basis the existing relations
between and amang businesses and counterparties
to ensure that all related parties are continually
identifled, RPT's are monitored, and subsequent
changes in relationships with counterparties {from
non-related to related and vice versa) are captured.
Related parties, RPTs and changes in relationships
will be reflected in the relevant reports to the Board
and regulators/supervisors;

Evatuate all material RPTs to ensurg that these are
not undertaken on maore favorable economic terms
(e.g., price, commissians, interests rates, fees, tenor,
coliateral requirement) to such related parties than
similar transactions with non-related parties under
simifar circumstances and that no corporate or
business resources of the Corporation are
misappropriated or misapplied, and to determine
any potential reputationa! risk issues that may arise
as a result of or in connection with the transactions.
In evaluating RPTs, the Committee takes into
account, among others, the following:

The related party’s relationship to the Corporation
and interest in the transaction;

The material facts of the proposed RPT, including the
proposed aggregate value of such transaction;

The benefits to the Corporation of the proposed RPT;
The availability of other sources or comparable
products or services; and

An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is on

o
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terms and conditions that are comparable to the
terms generally available toan unrelated party under
similar circumstances. The Corporation wili have an
effective price discovery system in place and exercise
due diligence in determining a fair price for RPTs.

Hii. Ensure that appropriate disclasure is made, and/or
information is provided to reguiating and supervising
suthorities relating to the Corporation’s RPT
exposures, and policies on conflicts of interest or
potential conflicts of interest. The disclosure will also
include information on the approach to managing
material conflicts of interest that are inconsistent
with such policies and conflicts that could arise as a
result of the Corporation’s affiliation or transactions
with other related parties;

iv. Report to the Board of Directors on 2 regular basis,
status and aggregate exposures to each reiated
party, as well as the totat amount of exposures to all
related partles;

V. Ensure that transactions with related parties,
including write-off of exposures are subject to a
periodic independent review or audit process; and

vi. Oversee the implementation of the system for
identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling, and
reporting RPT's, Including perlodic review of RPT
policies and proceduras.

RESOLVED FURTHERMORE, that the Vice President/Treasurer of
the Corporation, Felicidad V. Razon, assisted by the Corporate Secretary,
Atty. Ma. Melva E. Valdez, Assistant Corporate Secretary, Atty. Lory Anne
P, Manuel- McMullin, Attys, Pameta Ann T. Cayabyab and Ma. Nenita Yumi
N. Gregory, or any of the authorized representatives of Bello Vaidez Caluya
and Fernandez Law Offices (JGLaw), with office address at 17 Floor
Robinsons Equitable Tower No, ADB Avenue corner 4 Poveda Drive Ortigas
pasig, City, be authorized to Impiement the foregoing, to perform any
and/or alt acts, and to effect any and/or alf amendments to any and/or all
documents as may be necessary or appropriate to implement the

pracessing of the foregoing application before the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SECL.”

OTHER MATTERS

The Chairman announced that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held
earlier today, prior to the holding of the annual stockholders’ meeting, had
declared a Ten Centavos {P0.10) or 10% per share cash dividend for

stockholders of record as of 06 July 2018; payment to be made on or before
31 July 2018.
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Xl ADJOURNMENT

There being no ather matters to be discussed, the meeting was adjourned at

agbout 11:50 a.m.
MA. MELVA E. VALDEZ

Corporate Secretary

PAUL TAN POH LEE
Chairman



